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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

AFUHREE

(For the year ended 31 December) (BEZ+=A=+—HIFE)

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY AEMBRE
RMB’000 AREFTT
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
—TE-HAEFE ZE-TF —T-F —ZT--F ZBIE=EF
(Restated) (Restated)
(&=E5) (i&E5)
Revenue WA 3,306,519 5578524 6,503,428 5,146,301 4,360,280
Gross profit EF 28,270 914,408 1,074,976 1,125,050 994,876
Profit (loss) before tax BRI ATE R (E51R) (976,452) 215,023 290,104 144,270 28,379
Profit (loss) attributable to owners ~ ZARATIHEB A

of the Company (R F (B518) (995,228) 310,632 221,410 43418 (22,743)
Basic earnings (loss) per share BREAZT ()

(RMB)* (ARET)~ (1.004) 0.132 0.088 0.017 (0.009)
Diluted earnings (loss) per share SR EEEEF (E518)

(RMB)* (AR®T)* (1.004) 0.132 0.088 0.017 (0.009)
Non-current assets EREBEE 4682596 5264592 6,005,322 8740028 8,528,079
Current assets RENEE 7,274,664 8458746 8592662 10,660,306 13,110,373
Non-current liabilities FERBEE 4,602,960 3612931 3,424,563 5914269 5,433,710
Current liabilities mEAE 3,317,564 5521938 6,491,422 8,024,696 10,795,996
Net assets BEFE 4,036,736 4588469 4,681,999 5461369 5,408,746

REVENUE PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS

PN OF THE COMPANY~

RATIHB ANEGGF

7,000,000 -

T 6,503,428 700,000

6,000,000 COULY

5,578,524 AT
5,146,301 ) 310,632
5,000,000 Al
4,360,280 200,000 43,418
4,000,000 0 —
3,306,519
U, -22,743
3,000,000 ALY
-400,000
2,000,000
-600,000
1,000,000 -800,000
-1,000,000 =
0 995,228
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
(Restated) (Restated)
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
EERE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors, | am pleased to present the annual results
of China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2023
(the “Year” or the “reporting period”).

As of 31 December 2023, the Group realized a total revenue of RMB4,360
million, representing a year-on-year decrease of 15.3%; the operating profit
amounted to approximately RMB548 million, representing a year-on-year
decrease of 6.0%; the total profit before tax amounted to RMB28 million,
representing a year-on-year decrease of 80.3%.

FOCUS ON THREE PRINCIPAL BUSINESSES,
STRENGTHEN THE INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT
RESULTS

During the year, the revenue of the clean energy business amounted to
RMB1.380 billion, representing a year-on-year decrease of 53.6%; the tariff
revenue amounted to RMB766 million, representing a year-on-year increase
of 10.8%. As of 31 December 2023, the Group has owned clean energy
assets with an aggregate installed capacity of over 955MW in Guangdong,
Hunan, Shandong, Xinjiang and other parts of the country.

The revenue of the green building business amounted to RMB1,057 million,
representing a year-on-year decrease of 1.8%. During the year, through the
extension of the industrial chain, the Group’s technical support, construction
management capabilities and brand influence have improved.

The revenue of the new material business amounted to RMB85 million,
representing a year-on-year increase of 9.1%. The market share of the
Group’s ITO film was near 65%, firmly securing a top position in the market.
The light-adjusting film products continued to maintain a leading position with
a market share of 40%. The Group has continued to enlarge the production
of vehicle film, laying a good foundation for the full entry into the automotive
industry.

—Bo=HER
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
EERE

INSIST ON TAKING THE LEAD, EMPHASIZE ON
TECHNOLOGY EMPOWERMENT

The Group insists on taking the lead, focusing on the principal businesses,
and constantly upgrading in the industry. In 2023, the Company ranked
352nd in the “Top 500 Global New Energy Enterprises” and ranked
18th among EPC general contracting companies in China’s photovoltaic
construction industry. The Company also ranked among the top 20 energy
storage enterprises in China, and was awarded second place in the annual
excellent bidding committee in 2023 of Guangdong Provincial Professional
Standardization Technical Committee, and was listed in the excellent bidding
committee for five consecutive years. 60 new patents were added during
the year, with 10 standard patents published, including one international
patent. The R&D and industrialization of key technology for new LCD
dimming products won the first prize in the science and technology award
of Guangdong High-Tech Enterprise Association; the application technical
standards of photovoltaic system construction won the second prize in CECS
Standard Science and Technology Innovation Award; the construction phase
of CTG investment building project — integrated BIM application won the
second prize in the 4th Engineering Construction Industry BIM Competition;
and the new high-transparent LCD dimming film was selected in the 2023
Distinguished High-tech Products in Guangdong.

ACCELERATE ENTERPRISE TRANSFORMATION,
OPT FOR HIGH-QUALITY DEVELOPMENT

Looking forward, as the country steadily facilitates energy transformation
and reform, Shuifa Singyes Energy will resolutely and comprehensively
implement the national energy security strategy and highly participate in the
reform of energy production and consumption, in a bid to build a clean and
low-carbon modern energy system emphasizing on safety and efficiency.
On that note, the Group will establish a development philosophy centering
on economic benefits, strengthen refined management, and opt for high-
quality development, so as to continuously improve the economic benefits.
The Group will also establish a business philosophy focusing on its principal
businesses, with the aim of accelerating its transformation into a high-quality
green power operator with core competitiveness and becoming a leading
clean energy enterprise. Moreover, the Group will establish a responsibility
philosophy which prioritizes serving the society, increase investment in
ESG, and enhance the awareness of social responsibility, thereby promoting
sustainable development of the society. With the clean energy and low-carbon
construction businesses as the main driving force, the Group will continue to
expedite the construction of rural infrastructure and industrial development.

Wang Dongkai
Chairman
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERME

OVERVIEW

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) recognise the importance of
incorporating elements of good corporate governance in the management
structures and internal control procedures of the Group so as to achieve
effective accountability. This report outlines the principles and the code
provisions of the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”)
contained in Appendix C1 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). The
Directors consider that, for the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company
has applied the principles and complied with all the applicable code
provisions set out in the Code, except with the deviation set out in this report.

In accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules, the Company
has established an audit committee in compliance with code provision D.3
of the Code to oversee the financial reporting system and internal control
procedures of the Group so as to ensure compliance with the Listing Rules. It
has also established a nomination committee and a remuneration committee
with defined terms of reference.

The Directors are committed to upholding the corporate governance practices
of the Company to ensure formal and transparent procedures are in place to
protect and maximize the interests of the shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”).

Set out below is a detailed discussion of the corporate governance practices
adopted and observed by the Company from the listing date up to the date of
this report (the “Review Period”).

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix C3
to the Listing Rules as the standard for securities transactions by Directors.
The Company has made specific enquiries of all the Directors and all the
Directors confirmed that they have complied with the required standards set
out in the Model Code and its code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transactions throughout the year.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERRE

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The board of Directors (the “Board”) takes responsibility to oversee all major
matters of the Company, including the formulation and approval of overall
business strategies, internal control and risk management systems, and
supervising and monitoring the performance of the senior management who
are delegated with the authority and responsibility for day-to-day management
and operation of the Company. The Directors have the responsibility to act
objectively in the interests of the Company.

Currently, the Board comprises nine Directors, including three executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Wang Dongkai, who is also the Chairman of the
Company, Mr. Zhou Guangyan and who is also the Vice-chairman of the
Company, and Mr. Chen Fushan, three non-executive Directors, namely, Mr.
Liu Hongwei, Ms. Wang Suhui and Mr. Hu Xiao and three independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon, Dr. Wang Ching, and
Dr. Tan Hongwei.

The Board has a strong independent element in its composition with over half
of the board members are non-executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors to ensure that all decisions of the Board are made in the
best interest of the Group’s long-term development.

The Board has delegated various responsibilities to the Board committees
including the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), the remuneration
committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) and the nomination committee
(the “Nomination Committee”) (collectively, the “Board Committees”).
Further details of these committees are set out below on pages 15 to 20.

The composition of the Board is well balanced with each Director having
sound board level experience and expertise relevant to the business
operations and development of the Group. The Board is comprised of
members with extensive business, government, regulatory and policy
experience from a variety of backgrounds. There is diversity of nationality,
ethnicity, educational background, functional expertise and experience. A
Board Diversity Policy was adopted by the Board in 2013.

During the year and up to the date of this report, to the best knowledge of
the Company, there is no financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship among members of the Board.

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERRE

BOARD INDEPENDENCE EETHEIH

The Group has established mechanisms to ensure independent views and NEBEETHME  HREESSESETE
input are available to the Board and such mechanisms will be reviewed LRER EERSBFRIBEKS

annually by the Board:

. At least one-third of the Board are independent non-executive directors .
in compliance with the Listing Rules requirements, and the Company
will assess the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors on at least an annual basis.

. The Nomination Committee will assess the independence of a .
candidate who is nominated to be a new independent non-executive
Director before appointment and the continued independence of
the current long-serving independent non-executive Directors on an
annual basis. All independent non-executive Directors are required to
submit a written confirmation to the Company annually to confirm the
independence of each of them and their immediate family members,
and their compliance with the requirements as set out in the Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules.

. All Directors and committees of the Board are entitled to retain .
independent professional advisors as and when it is required.

. All Directors are encouraged to express their views in an open and .
candid manner during the Board/Board committee meetings.

. The Chairman of the Board will meet with the independent non- .
executive Directors at least annually without the presence of the
executive Directors.

. A Director (including the independent non-executive Directors) who .
has material interest in any contract, transaction or arrangement shall
abstain from voting and not be counted in the quorum on any Board
resolution approving the same.

. No equity-based remuneration with performance-related elements will .
generally be granted to independent nonexecutive Directors.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EEAEE

BOARD MEETINGS

The Company will adopt the practice of holding board meetings regularly
for at least four times a year at approximately quarterly intervals. Adhoc
meetings will also be convened if necessary to discuss the overall strategy as
well as the operation and financial performance of the Group. Notice of board
meeting will be sent to all Directors at least 14 days prior to a regular board
meeting. Reasonable notices will also be given to the Directors for ad-hoc
board meetings.

Directors may participate either in person or through electronic means of
communications.

The Company will adopt the practice to provide relevant materials to all
the Directors relating to the matters brought before the meetings. All the
Directors will be provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties,
and, upon reasonable request, the Directors will be able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s
expenses. All Directors will have the opportunity to include matters in the
agenda for Board meetings.

Prior notice convening the Board meeting was dispatched to the Directors
setting out the matters to be discussed. At the meeting, the Directors were
provided with relevant documents to be discussed and approved. The
company secretary of the Company is responsible for keeping minutes of the
Board meetings.

Should a potential conflict of interest involving a substantial shareholder of the
Company or a Director arise, the matter will be discussed in a physical Board
meeting, as opposed to being dealt with by a written resolution. Independent
non-executive Directors with no conflict of interest will be present at meetings
dealing with such conflict issues.

An updated list of the Directors identifying the independent non-executive
directors and the roles and functions of the Directors is maintained on the
website of the Company and the website of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERRE

During the reporting period, the Board held a total of 4 Board meetings. The
attendance of individual Directors at the board meetings and annual general

meeting are set out below:

Board Meetings

Name of Directors

General Meeting

RIFEHRE - E5
BRlEELEES
REHNT

HBITARELEEH -
FHEMBRBFAENE

I8 )

EFeeE

Annual Special

General Meeting Board Meeting

EEfZ REEEXE BRREXE EETEH
Executive Directors BITEE
Mr. Wang Dongkai (Chairman) IRIEE(EE)

(appointed on 27 April 2023) (RZZ_=FMA-++AERT) 171 01 2/4
Mr. Zheng Qingtao (Chairman) EEELE(LE)

(resigned on 26 April 2023) (RZZZ=FMA=+,"HFHL) 01 01 2/4
Mr. Zhou Guangyan (Vice-chairman) Jﬂﬁ?‘?ﬁi&?&*ﬁ)

(appointed on 12 March 2024) (RZZE-NE=A+-HEZT) 01 N/A 7~ N/A 7N F
Mr. Wang Dongwei THRELE

(resigned on 12 March 2024) (RZZBZME=R+_AFHL) 11 0/1 4/4
Mr. Chen Fushan BRIl st e 01 01 4/4
Non-executive Directors FEHRITES
Mr. Xie Wen Eﬁfﬁ?ﬁi

(resigned on 21 May 2023) (R—Z-_=FRA-+—HET) 01 on 2/4
Ms. Li Li $%ﬁt

(resigned on 16 October 2023) (RZZZ=F+HTRA#E) 01 01 3/4
Ms. Wang Suhui THBZLT

(appointed on 21 May 2023) (RZZFZ=FRA-+—HEZMT) 0/1 01 2/4
Mr. Hu Xiao Bt

(appointed on 16 October 2023) (R=ZE==F1+A+HEZT) 01 on 1/4
Independent Non-executive Directors JBILIEITEE
Dr. Wang Ching T Rt 1/1 1/1 4/4
Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon DKL /1 01 4/4
Dr. Tan Hongwei EREELT 171 01 4/4

STRAMEXEF22(6RE  EFREFELRE
BRBFERE - EFETFIRICELFEL
IRTHARRBFRE  YEETRRE

general meeting and answered questions from Shareholders. i o

Code Provision F.2.2 of the Code specifies that the chairman of the Board
should attend the annual general meeting. Mr. Wang Dongkai, the chairman
of the Board, has attended and took the chair of the aforementioned annual

PEIKEEEEREEER QA
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SKILLS, KNOWLEDGE, EXPERIENCE AND
ATTRIBUTES OF DIRECTORS

All Directors of the Board had served in office during the period under review.
Every Director commits to give sufficient time and attention to the affairs
of the Company. The Directors also demonstrate their understanding and
commit to high standards of corporate governance. The executive Director
brings his perspectives to the Board through his deep understanding of the
Group’s business. The non-executive Directors and the independent non-
executive Directors contribute their own skills and experience, understanding
of local and global economies, and knowledge of capital markets to the
Group’s business. The Company is responsible for arranging and funding
suitable continuous professional development programmes for all Directors to
hone and refresh their knowledge and skills.

INDUCTION AND TRAINING

Each newly appointed Director, executive or non-executive, is required
to undertake an induction program to ensure that he has a proper
understanding of his duties and responsibilities. The induction program
includes an overview of the Group’s business operation and governance
policies, the Board meetings’ procedures, matters reserved to the Board,
an introduction of the Board committees, the Directors’ responsibilities and
duties, relevant regulatory requirements, review(s) of minutes of the Board
and Board committees in the past 12 months, and briefings with senior
officers of the Group and site visits (if necessary). Pursuant to the Code
Provision A.6.5 of the Code, all Directors should participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. This is to ensure their contribution to the Board remains informed
and relevant. During the Year, all Directors had participated in appropriate
continuous professional development activities by ways of attending training
and/or reading materials relevant to the Company’s business or to the
Directors’ duties and responsibilities.

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023
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The company secretary of the Company maintains records of training

attended by the Directors. The training attended by each Director during the

Year is tabulated as follows:

Training Records

ARABZARMERFEEHE
RER  RERHFERIZE

B laoER

ZH 2 FO8% o
ﬂ%@’i\lﬁﬂ :

Name Type of trainings  Training matters
2 ElER BEIIEIE
(Note 1) (Note 2)
(PBiFEL) (BFzE2)
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Wang Dongkai (Chairman) E%ﬂlf‘ﬁi(f/ﬁ)
(appointed on 27 April 2023) (RZZE-=FMUA-++BEZE) ab i, i, dii, iv
Mr. Zheng Qingtao (Chairman) BESRE (LE)
(resigned on 26 April 2023) (RZEBE=Z=FMA =+ <HET) a, b i, i, i, v
Mr. Zhou Guangyan (Vice-chairman) RBEE&4 (BIF/E)
(appointed on 12 March 2024) (RZZ-_MFE=A+_BEZHE) a,b i, i, il iv
Mr. Wang Dongwei FRERE
(resigned on 12 March 2024) (R—ZE-—meE=A+-H§T) a,b i, i, il iv
Mr. Chen Fushan BRAELL A a,b i i, iv
Non-executive Directors ERTEE
Mr. Xie Wen Xk
(resigned on 21 May 2023) (R=ZZ_=FRAA=-+—HB&MT) a,b i, i, dii, iv
Ms. Li Li TR L
(resigned on 16 October 2023) (RZZE=Z=F+ A+ H&T) a, b i, i, il iv
Ms. Wang Suhui FRBELLT
(appointed on 21 May 2023) (RZZE_=FRA-1+—HEZMT) N/ATE A N/A @A
Mr. Hu Xiao #h iﬁ‘ﬁi
(appointed on 16 October 2023) (RZZEZ=F+A+BEZE) N/A 7 i F N/A 7N F
Independent Non-Executive Directors BILFFHITEE
Dr. Wang Ching T miEL a,b i, i, v
Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon SKEERAE a,b i i, i, iv
Dr. Tan Hongwei ERAE LT a, b i, i, il v
Note 1: MEEL -
a attending seminar or training session a TR gSEIgE®
b self-development and updates relating to general economy, business b EERENMEARELE X8R -EF
development, director’s duties and responsibilities, etc. MBEMETE -
Note 2: MiEE2
i corporate governance i TEER
i regulatory compliance i JERIE ST
if finance i [y
iv management and operation % BN EE
TED=FEFH PEUKBEEEREEARAA
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

For the year ended 31 December 2023, Mr. Wang Dongkai has been the
chairman of the Board and Mr. Wang Dongwei has been the president and
Vice chairman of the Company. The division of the responsibilities between
the chairman of the Board and the president has been clearly set out in
writing.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All independent non-executive Directors of the Company possess a wealth
of professional and industry expertise and management experience and
have provided their professional advices to the Board. They have played a
significant role in the Board by virtue of their independent judgment and
their views carry significant weight in the Board’s decision. In particular, they
bring an impartial view on issues of the Company’s strategy, performance and
control. The Board also considers that independent non-executive Directors
provide independent advice on the Company’s business strategy, results and
management so that all interests of Shareholders are taken into consideration,
and the interests of the Company and its shareholders are taken into account
in all business decisions. The Company has received the annual confirmation
signed by each independent non-executive Director to acknowledge their
respective independence. After prudent enquiry, the Board is of the view that
each of Mr. YICK Wing Fat, Simon, Dr. WANG Ching, and Dr. Tan Hongwei
maintains the independence as required by Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

All independent non-executive Directors of the Company will review, on an
annual basis, any decisions in relation to new business opportunities referred
to the Company. As at the date of this report, there is no new business
opportunity introduced to the Group.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITY
INSURANCE AND INDEMNITY

The bye-laws of the Company provides that every Director is entitled to
be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the
Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which they or any of them, their or any of their heirs, executors or
administrators, shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done,
concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty.

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023
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The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to indemnify
its Directors and officers in respect of legal actions against the Directors.
Throughout 2023, no claim had been made against the Directors and the
officers of the Company.

APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF
DIRECTORS

The Bye-laws of the Company provide that at each annual general meeting,
one-third of the directors for the time being shall retire from office by rotation
and that every director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years.

All of the non-executive Director and independent non-executive Directors
are appointed for a specific term but they are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting in accordance with
the Articles. The term of appointment of each independent non-executive
Director has been set out in the section headed “Directors’ Service Contracts”
of this report. Each independent non-executive Director is required to inform
the Company as soon as practicable if there is any change that may affect his
independence and must provide an annual confirmation of his independence
to the Company.

BOARD COMMITTEES
Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee pursuant to a resolution of
the Directors passed on 19 December 2008 in compliance with Rules 3.21 to
3.23 of the Listing Rules and paragraph C.3 of the Code. The primary duties
of the Audit Committee are to oversee the financial reporting process and
internal control procedure of the Group, to review the financial information
of the Group and to consider issues relating to the external auditor. The
Audit Committee consists of the three independent non-executive Directors,
namely, Dr. Wang Ching, Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon and Dr. Tan Hongwei,
Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon is the Chairman of the Audit Committee. The Audit
Committee has reviewed the Group’s consolidated financial statements for
the six months ended 30 June 2023 and for the year ended 31 December
2023, the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and the
system of internal control.
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The Audit Committee has considered significant issues on the financial
reporting, operational and compliance controls, the effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control systems and internal audit function,
appointment of external auditors, engagement of non-audit services and
relevant scope of works and arrangements for employees to raise concerns

about possible improprieties.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Audit Committee held 2
meetings.

The Audit Committee communicate with the external auditor, internal audit
consultant and also the management regularly to ensure internal control
policies were properly implemented by the management; and the financial
statements comply with internal accounting standards in all material aspects.

The following table shows the attendance of members of the Audit

Committee’s meetings:

BB ENABMBRE  EERAR
B BREIERARREE RS AR MR AR
BRI - RTINS ZEED - ZIIERBURS
AR B8R TIFHIE MR B R WEETETTRH
LHEEKRER -

=F+=A

IREE& o

=T HIEFE - B

T

1

HBE
£8

&
=

3

Bk B EINEZHED - NERBEELE
BEEETER  NERRREEEERIREN
BRERIEER - UMM MR EMAEATES
HanEtestER -

TRENEZZBEUELRFERNER -

No. of Audit Committee

Directors: meetings attended/held:
EE: i BITEXESE

ERAIRE :
Yick Wing Fat, Simon (Chairman) DX (EE) 2/2
Dr. Wang Ching T RiEL 2/2
Dr. Tan Hongwei AEREE T 2/2

The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources to perform its
duties. Latest terms of reference of the Audit Committee can be viewed on
the website of the Company and the website of the Stock Exchange.
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Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee pursuant to a
resolution of the Directors passed on 19 December 2008. The primary
duties of the Remuneration Committee are to make recommendations
to the Board on the Company’s policy for remuneration of Directors and
senior management and on the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing policy on such remuneration and for fixing the
remuneration packages for all Directors. The Remuneration Committee
consists of five members, including three independent non-executive
Directors and the Chairman and Vice-chairman of the Board, namely, Dr. Tan
Hongwei, Mr. Wang Dongkai, Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon, Dr. Wang Ching and
Mr. Wang Dongwei. The Chairman of the Remuneration Committee is Dr. Tan

Hongwei.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Remuneration Committee
held 1 meeting to assess individual performance of the Directors and review
the remuneration packages and overall benefit of the Directors. The following
table shows the attendance and members of the.

The Remuneration Committee is tasked within its term of reference to
review and/or approve matters relating to share schemes under Chapter 17
of the Listing Rules. The remuneration policy and package of the Group’s
employees are periodically reviewed by the Remuneration Committee.
The Remuneration Committee has reviewed the remuneration policy and
package of the Group, including an assessment of individual performance,
attractiveness of the rewards offered by the Company, talent retention and
incentivization, the financial condition and performance of the Group. No
share awards or share options were recommended to be awarded or granted
by the Remuneration Committee during the year ended 31 December 2023.
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AN\ A =5 ‘Z_\
(= % #& =]
Remuneration Committee during the year ended 31 December 2023: TREBFEE_ZE-_=F+=A4 :‘l'— At
EFMEE KB LEERNE)
No. of Remuneration Committee
Directors: meetings attended/held:
BE: HE BITHEMESS
=5 ey
Tan Hongwei (Chairman) AR () 1/1
Wang Dongkai TES 1/1
Yick Wing Fat, Simon SoxEE 1/1
Wang Ching T = 1/1
Mr. Wang Dongwei Iﬁﬁ
(resigned on 12 March 2024) (R=ZZE-—mF=/+-HET) 1/1
Mr. Zhou Guangyan BAREERE
(appointed on 12 March 2024) (RZZE-—MF=A+-HEZT) 0/1
The Remuneration Committee is provided with sufficient resources to perform FTMEZETRRETEERBITERE -

its duties. The current duties and responsibilities of the Remuneration ?E\WZE AR R B AFIEE N s
Committee are more specifically set out in its latest terms of reference, details HBER - BRIFHE R B4 KR A
of which can be viewed on the website of the Company and the website of U 2 o

the Stock Exchange.

Nomination Committee REEEEH

The Company established a Nomination Committee pursuant to a ARRIRBEER-_ZTZT/\F+-_A+AB@E
resolution of the Directors passed on 19 December 2008. The primary BRABRRKIIRREES - RRZE8 EE’J‘I
duties of the Nomination committee include reviewing the structure, CREPRERTHRTEESNERS  BE -
size, composition and diversity of the Board on a regular basis and R ZT - LA KRB E R VE T A & Eﬂﬁi%
making recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed changes. ZRUES RELZBEhRAUKE (BE=
The Nomination Committee consists of five members, including three (B IEMITEE LM TES) 48/ - BD
independent non-executive Directors and two executive Directors, namely TERISE - TRELRE - TR - HokE
Mr. Wang Dongkai, Mr. Wang Dongwei, Dr. Wang Ching, Mr. Yick Wing Fat, SENELEEL - REZEBSHIRINEE
Simon, and Dr. Tan Hongwei. The Nomination Committee is chaired by BEERE -

Mr. Wang Dongkai.
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Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted the board diversity policy which sets out the approach
to achieve diversity on the Board. Accordingly, selection of candidates to the
Board is based on a range of measurable objectives, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional experience
and qualifications, skills, knowledge and length of service, having due regard
to the Company’s own business model and specific needs from time to time.
With the existing Board members coming from a variety of business and
professional background, the Company considers that the Board possesses
a balance of skills, experience, expertise and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s business.

The Board had not set any measurable objective for implementing the
diversity policy during the Year. As at the date of this report, there were 8
male Directors and 1 female Director on the Board and the male to female
ratio in the workforce (including senior management) of the Group was
approximately 7:3.

The Board considered that the composition of the Board and the workforce
were sufficiently diversified in terms of gender, in the context of a company
in the renewable energy sectpr. The Board has not set any numerical targets,
plans and timelines set for achieving gender diversity on its Board and in
the workforce. The Board is mindful of the objectives for the factors as set
out in the diversity policy for assessing the candidacy of the Board members
and will ensure that any successors to the Board shall follow the diversity
policy. Similar considerations will also be in place to assess the candidacy
of the senior management team from time to time. The Group is determined
to maintain gender diversity and equality in terms of the whole workforce,
and to procure the senior management team to achieve gender equality in
terms of the gender ratio. The Nomination Committee will discuss periodically
and when necessary, agree on further measurable objectives and plans for
achieving diversity, including gender diversity, on the Board and recommend
them to the Board for adoption.
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Nomination procedures include identification and acknowledgement of
qualified individuals by the Nomination Committee and review and approval
of such nomination by the Board. The Nomination Committee will evaluate
potential candidates by considering factors such as professional expertise,
relevant experience, personal ethics and integrity.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Nomination Committee held
2 meetings to review the policies on senior management appointments and
promotion. The following table shows the attendance and members of the
Nomination Committee during the year ended 31 December 2023:

RERFEEBIERZBSHAIMERERIA
THER  YhERSRN MBIBIIRRS
REZBEEREBINEERIM - HRELR - &
NEBRFERFEFEAREBERE LT
flr o

BE_T_=F+_A=1T—HLLFE &
ZERRITRASENERZERETSRE
BEMNEE - TRIJNBE_F_=F1+_A
=t-RALEFEREZEENBHFEERNGE
5

No. of Nomination Committee

Directors: meetings attended/held:
EE: i BITREESE
BRERRE :

Wang Dongkai (Chairman) TRI(EE) 2/2
Wang Dongwei THRE

(resigned on 12 March 2024) (R=ZE-—MF=A+=HET) 2/2
Mr. Zhou Guangyan Jﬂr??ﬁi

(appointed on 12 March 2024) (RZZZMFE=A+_HEZT) N/A i A
Wang Ching F R 2/2
Yick Wing Fat, Simon SoKEE 2/2
Tan Hongwei R 2/2

The Nomination Committee is provided with sufficient resources to perform its
duties. The current duties and responsibilities of the Nomination Committee
are more specifically set out in its latest terms of reference, details of which
can be viewed on the website of the Company and the website of the Stock
Exchange.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”) is
responsible for keeping detailed minutes of each meeting of the Board or
the Board committees including any dissenting views expressed by the
Directors, which should be available to all Directors for inspection. He is also
responsible for ensuring that the Board procedures comply with all applicable
laws, rules and regulations and advising the Board on corporate governance
matters. All agenda, relevant materials and document are required to be
sent out at least 3 days prior to the intended dates of the Board meetings or
meetings of the Board committees. It is the responsibility of the Company
Secretary to send the draft minutes of the meetings of the Board or the Board
committees to all Directors for comments within a reasonable time after the
aforesaid meetings. Final versions of minutes of meetings of the Board or the
Board committees are also required to be sent to all Directors for record. All
Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary to
ensure that the Board procedures and all applicable laws are followed.

Moreover, the Company Secretary is responsible for keeping all Directors
updated on the Listing Rules, regulatory requirements, as well as internal
codes of conduct of the Company.

During the Year, the Company Secretary had confirmed that he had taken no
less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.

FINANCIAL REPORTING AND INTERNAL CONTROL
Financial Reporting

The Board, supported by the finance department, is responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements of the Company and the Group. In
the preparation of financial statements, International Financial Reporting
Standards have been adopted and the appropriate accounting policies,
disclosure requirements under Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the
Listing Rules have been consistently used and applied. The Board aims to
present a clear and balanced assessment of the Group’s performance in
the annual and interim reports to the Shareholders, and make appropriate

disclosure and announcements in a timely manner.
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Auditor’s Remuneration

The audit committee of the Board is responsible for making recommendation
to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of the
authorized external auditors and to approve the remuneration and
terms of engagement of the external auditors, and any questions of
resignation or dismissal of the external auditors. The Group engaged
PricewaterhouseCoopers as its externals auditors. While Rongchuang CPA
Limited acted as the external auditor of the Company’s listed subsidiary China
Singyes New Materials Holdings Limited. Details of the fees paid/payable to
PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PWC”) and Rongchuang CPA Limited during the
year ended 31 December 2023 are as follows:

ZEETEN &

ERSRZLESHERTE - BERRBIEE
TEINEBAZERAD - HEfESNEDAZBRAD 2 B R FE R
{63 - AR BRANE A% B AT BT Sk AR EE B RARY (T
& MESFSELEBER - AEEEZ
BEZE ERUKB R ETRD RIS AT AINEPZBET - i
BAEIE MBS AR AR EEAAR LT
BB A )R BB S 3T A RHE AR IR A Rl FNER
BH - BHE_T_ZF+_A=Z+—HIHF
EEN AR KES TR BT R A E]
SHEBERATNERFBET -

Audit service - PWC

— Interim review and annual audit - PEIEBEMEEET

Audit service — Suya WWC CPA Limited
(Formerly known as Rongchuang CPA
Limited)

— Annual audit of China Singyes New - PRI EFMEHER AR QA

Materials Holdings Limited ([EZEFME]) FEFT

(“Singyes New Materials”)

SRS - B RRUKE S RTRENE AT

RMB5,400,000
AER# 5,400,000 7T

TR - B XSGR EHPAIER AR
(AITERb Rl & EtENEEATER AR

RMB800,000
AR # 800,000 7T

Internal control and risk management

The Board acknowledges that it is the responsibility of the Board for the
Group’s system of internal control and risk management as well reviewing its
effectiveness an on-going basis, and, in particular, considering the adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Group’s accounting
and financial reporting function, training programmes and budget. The
Board will conduct periodic review, at least annually, which cover all material
aspects, including financial, operational, risk management functions and
is in compliance with all relevant regulations and endeavor to enhance the
internal control and risk management measures of the Group. Such systems
are designed to manage the risk of failure to achieve business objectives,
and can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

The Directors consider that the internal control systems of the Group is
effective and adequate.
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There is currently no internal audit function within the Group, the
effectiveness of the internal control of the Group is reviewed by the internal
audit department under Shuifa Group. Based on the understanding of the
Directors, no material internal control weaknesses have been identified.

The Group also appointed external independent professional advisors to
review the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system for the year
ended 31 December 2023. The Group is in the process of improving and
establishing the internal control manual to further enhance its internal control
and risk management system.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended
31 December 2023, which were prepared in accordance with applicable
accounting standards.

The reporting responsibility of the external auditor of the Company on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group are set out in the independent
auditor’s report on pages 71 to 82.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS
Communication with Shareholders

The Board recognises the importance of effective and on-going
communications with Shareholders and continues to act in the best interests
of the Company and its shareholders. The Company keeps Shareholders and
investors informed of its business performance and strategies by adopting
a transparent and timely disclosure policy which complies with the Listing
Rules and provides all Shareholders equal access to such information. The
Company also publishes all documents on the Company’s website.

The annual general meeting of the Company (the “AGM”) also provides a
forum for the Board to dialogue and interact with the Shareholders directly.
The Directors and the committee members are available to answer questions
during the AGM. Notice of AGM, annual report, financial statements and
related papers were posted to Shareholders for their consideration at least 20
clear business days prior to the AGM.
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At each general meeting, the chairman of the meeting proposes individual
resolutions in respect of each substantially separate matter. All matters at
the Company’s general meetings are resolved by poll and the procedures for
conducting a poll will be explained at the meeting. Independent scrutineer
will be engaged to ensure all votes at general meeting are properly counted.
Poll vote results will be posted on the websites of the Company and HKEX in

a timely manner.

AGM proceedings and policies regarding Shareholders’ communication of
the Company are continually reviewed annually. The Board considers that
the policies regarding Shareholders’ communication are effective for the year
ended 31 December 2023.

Shareholders’ Rights

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the shareholders of the
Company as required to be disclosed pursuant to the mandatory disclosure
requirements under Paragraph O of the Code which is effective from 1 April
2012.

(a)  Convening of general meeting on requisition by shareholders

Members holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have
the right, by written requisition to the Company’s registered office in
Bermuda at 4th Floor North Cedar House, 41 Cedar Avenue, Hamilton
HM12, Bermuda and its principal office in Hong Kong at Unit 3108,
31/F, China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 168-200 Connaught
Road Central, Hong Kong for the attention of the Board or the Secretary
of the Company, to require a special general meeting to be called
by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition; and such meeting shall be held within three (3) months
after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of
such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the
requisitionists themselves may do so in accordance with the provisions
of Section 74(3) of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.
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(b)

(c)

EERHmE

Procedures for putting forward proposals at a Shareholders’ meeting

Pursuant to the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, either any number
of the shareholders holding not less than one-twentieth (5%) of the
total voting rights of all the shareholders of the Company, or not less
than one hundred of such shareholders, can request the Company
in writing to (a) give to shareholders entitled to receive notice of the
next general meeting notice of any resolution which may properly
be moved and is intended to be moved at that meeting; and (b)
circulate to shareholders entitled to have notice of any general
meeting any statement of not more than one thousand words with
respect to the matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the
business to be dealt with at that meeting. The requisition signed by
all the requisitionists must be deposited at the Company’s registered
office in Bermuda at 4th Floor North Cedar House, 41 Cedar Avenue,
Hamilton HM12, Bermuda and its principal office in Hong Kong at
Unit 3108, 31/F, China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 168-200
Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong for the attention of the Board on
the secretary of the Company, with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet
the Company’s relevant expenses and not less than six weeks before
the meeting in case of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution
and not less than one week before the meeting in the case of any
other requisition. Provided that if an annual general meeting is called
for a date six weeks or less after the requisition has been deposited,
the requisition though not deposited within the time required shall be
deemed to have been properly deposited for the purposes thereof.

Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may put forward enquiries to the Board in writing to
the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the
Company ceases to have such a principal office, the registered office
specifying the objects of the enquiries.

(b)

(c)
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INVESTOR RELATION

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 28 June 2023, the
Shareholders approved the amendments to the existing bye-laws of the
Company by way of the adoption of a new memorandum of association
and bye-laws of the Company in substitution for, and to the exclusion
of, the existing bye-laws in order to, inter alia, (i) bring the existing bye-
laws in alignment with the Core Shareholder Protection Standards set out
in Appendix Al to the Listing Rules and the applicable laws of Bermuda;
and (ii) making other housekeeping amendments, including consequential

amendments.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE ENHANCEMENT

The Company has been introducing, and continues to introduce, measures
to comply with the Corporate Governance Code. Enhancing corporate
governance is not simply a matter of applying and complying with the
Corporate Governance Code of the Stock Exchange but about promoting and
developing an ethical and healthy corporate culture.

The following is a summary of the work performed by the Board in respect of
corporate governance during the Year:

(@) review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance;

(b) review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management of the Company;

(c) review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d)  review and monitor the code of conduct applicable to employees and
the Directors; and

(e)  review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in
the Corporate Governance Report.
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The Board considered the Company’s risk management and internal ExgRA BEZ-_=F+=-A=+—H
control systems for the year ended 31 December 2023 are effective and LEFE - AREMRERBRERERANEIEFIE R
adequate. We will continue to review and, where appropriate, improve our BHRTR - TEBIRES - BB ZE
current practices on the basis of our experience, regulatory changes and RERE - TEHRATANEZERFRERNAT 2R
developments. Any views and suggestions from our shareholders to promote TEHR - AR RIBHANE R R EE
and improve our transparency are also welcome. LIRS Mg AR 2 FERAE -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The following table set out the breakdown of revenue:

E R AT DIRE

LN

TRIRKRADER

For the year

ended 31 December

BE+-A=t+—HILLEE

Increase/
2023 2022  (Decreased) by
—E-=% —T-—F N GEY)
RMB million RMB million
ARBEERT AREBET
(audited) (audited)
(Restated)
(FEZK) (EZR
ET)
Construction contracts BEAR
— Curtain wall and green building - BifE R EERE 1,057.0 1,076.9 (1.8%)
— Solar EPC - KIZ8EEPC 614.7 3729 64.8%
— Wind Power EPC - BgEEPC - 19115 (100%)
1,671.7 3,361.3 (50.3%)
Sale of electricity BHHEE 765.5 690.6 10.8%
Sale of products! EmEE! 1,815.5 830.9 1.2 times
Others Hitb 107.6 263.5 (59.2%)
Revenue WA 4,360.3 5,146.3 (15.3%)
Notes: S
1. Included Sale of New Material as at 31 December 2023 of RMB85.4 million (31 1. BEHMEBEE-_E_=F+_A=1+—8

December 2022: RMB78.1 million).
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Gross profit and gross profit margin EFREFZE
2023 2022
—®=-= —E-_F
RMB million %  RMB million %
BHET % BETT %
(Restated)
(geE7)
Construction contracts EEEL
— Curtain walls and green buildings - B MG B ESE 85.0 8.0 104.2 9.7
— Solar EPC —- KB58EEPC 47.6 7.7 3.2 09
— Wind EPC - AL EPC - - 4349 22.8
132.6 7.9 542.3 16.1
Sale of electricity BHHEE 453.0 59.2 412.6 59.7
Sale of products EmigE 323.4 17.8 91.7 11.0
Others EHAh 85.9 79.8 78.5 29.8
Total gross profit and gross profit BENRENE
margin 994.9 22.8 1,125.1 219

The Group’s revenue decreased by RMB786.0 million or 15.3%, from
RMB5,146.3 million in 2022 to RMB4,360.3 million in 2023. Gross profit
decreased by RMB130.2 million or 11.6%, from RMB1,125.1 million in 2022
to RMB994.9 million in 2023.

1) Curtain wall and green building

Revenue from curtain wall and green building EPC dropped by 1.8%,
while gross profit margin decreased from 9.7% to 8.0%. The major
reason for the decrease in gross profit margin was because of the
decrease in the proportion of green building business.

REBHBRABHZZTZZ_FMHARKES,146.3
BETRDARKE 76 0EETH153% 2
T-—FMARMA3603EETT EFE=
T FMARELIIEETRD AR
1302ABTHILSE-_T-_=—FHARK
94 9BHET °

1) BERZE#ERE

BB REEREEBHKRARD1.8%
MEFEANH.7% TFEES8.0% ° EF|
RPN EZREAREOEEERNL
BIBFT T -

ST FEFR PEKEREEGEREEARAT
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2)

3)

4)

5)

Solar EPC

Revenue from Solar EPC business increased by 64.8%, while gross
profit margin increased from 0.9% to 7.7%. The material costs for
solar EPC has dropped by comparing to 2022. As such, the profitability
of Solar EPC business had increased.

Wind Power EPC

The Group’s 2023 wind energy project is in the early preparation stage
and has not officially stared construction.

Sale of electricity

The Group’s accumulated project scale was around 955 megawatts
(“MW™) at 31 December 2023, which comprised of distributed power
stations, and centralized ground-mounted photovoltaic power stations
inside Mainland China and a solar farm located overseas. The sale of
electricity increased by 10.8% in 2023 with a stable margin of 59.2%
(2022: 59.7%).

Sale of products

Revenue from the sale of products mainly included the sale of

renewable energy products such as wind power and photovoltaic
project supporting products.

Administrative and distribution expenses

Distribution expenses decreased by RMB23.3 million or 34.1%, the decrease

in distribution expense is in line with the decrease in revenue of the Group.

Administrative expenses decreased by RMB75.8 million or 19.8% as

compared with the year 2022.
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Liquidity and financial resources

The Group’s primary source of funding included bank and other borrowings,
advances from Shuifa BVI and receivables from project contacts, product sale
as well as income from electricity sale. As at 31 December 2023, the Group
had outstanding bank and other loans and bonds payable of approximately
RMB8,966 million with effective interest rates ranging from 4.5% to 6.5%.

Apart from that, the Group also had outstanding balance of approximately
RMB236 million due to Shuifa Group, which bear interest at 6% per annum.

Capital expenditures
Capital expenditures of the Group amounted to RMB1,097.6 million for the
year (2022: RMB1,132.9 million), it mainly included the capital expenditure

incurred in wind power and solar photovoltaic power stations, as well as the
acquisition of subsidiaries.

Commitments

The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of the year:

RBEERUBER

AREE S NEB IR ERT RABEE -
ABBVIBRURMEMER A - ERWHER
BAMBRA - R-F-=F+ A=+
A - AKE R R RGT R R
HNBARIEBO66(ET - BEFIENF45%
£65%-°

AN - REE TR AR E EEE R EE AR
MARB2.361BTT - ZAHBIREFNEE%A S o

BEAZH

RAFEE AEENEATHAEARE
1,0076BE8T(ZE-—%F: AR¥1,1329
BEL) HEEREREE KA INE U,
EAMEARASTH » ANRKEHBAR -

A&iE

RER - AEBAATEAAE

2023 2022
—®== —EB-F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFIT
Contracted, but not provided for: EREMNEES

Capital contribution for equity investment PR BT E 491,300 995,074

Construction of buildings and BREFRARGE N AEL
solar photovoltaic power stations 52,065 171,512
543,365 1,166,586

ST FEFR PEKEREEGEREEARAT
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Dividend

The Directors did not recommend a final dividend in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2023 (2022: Nil). The actual dividend payout ratio in
each year will depend on the actual performance of the Group, the general
industry and economic environment, to be determined with reference to the

dividend policy of the Company.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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The table below sets forth information regarding our Directors:

TRUSIEHEENER

Name Age Position e FHR B

Wang Dongkai 48 Chairman and Executive Director FES 48 5% FERNTESE
Zhou Guangyan 52 Vice-Chairman and Executive Director AEE 52 5% BlEERRITES
Chen Fushan 49 Executive Director RAE L 49 5% WITEE

Liu Hongwei 60 Non-executive Director BUATHE 60 5% ERITESR

Wang Suhui 46 Non-executive Director T&E 46 5%, HEHITESE

Hu Xiao 32 Non-executive Director i 325% FEMITES

Wang Ching 69 Independent non-executive Director F =R 69 5% BN IEITESE
Yick Wing Fat, Simon 66 Independent non-executive Director 5K E 66 7% B IERITES
Tan Hongwei 64 Independent non-executive Director sl 64 5% BUIEHITES

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wang Dongkai, aged 48, has been appointed as an executive Director,
the Chairman of the Board (the “Chairman”), a member of the remuneration
committee of the Company and the chairman of the nomination committee
of the Company with effect from 27 April 2023. He has served as a member
of the party committee and deputy general manager of Shuifa Group Co.,
Ltd. since March 2023. From January 2022 to March 2023, he served as a
member of the party committee and deputy general manager of Shandong
Property Rights Exchange Group Co., Ltd.; and from March 2020 to January
2022, he served as a member of the party committee and deputy general
manager of Shandong Property Rights Exchange Center Co., Ltd. He
served as a member of the party committee and deputy general manager of
Shandong Guohui Investment Co., Ltd. from January 2017 to March 2020.
Mr. Wang holds a master’s degree in public administration awarded by
Shandong University of Finance and Economics, and holds the qualification
of senior economist. He has more than 20 years of experience in corporate
management.
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Mr. Zhou Guangyan, aged 52, is an executive Director, president and Vice
chairman of the Company since 12 March 2024 and fully responsible for
the day-to-day operation management and safety production of the Group.
He joined Shuifa Energy Group Co., Ltd. since July 2020. He was the deputy
secretary to the Communist Party Committee, a director and general manager
of Shuifa Energy Group Co., Ltd. from February 2023 to March 2024. He
joined Shandong Linuo Group in 2007 and served as the chairman of Linuo
Power Group Co., Ltd. from July 2013 to July 2020. Mr. Zhou graduated from
Harbin Institute of Technology with a bachelor’s degree. He has over 10 years
of senior management experience in the energy field.

Mr. Chen Fushan, aged 49, has been appointed as an executive Director of
our Company on 28 November 2019. He has been a deputy general manager
of Shuifa Energy Group Limited (KEBEREB AR AR since 2019.
During August 2014 to July 2018, Mr. Chen took the positions of marketing
director, member of party committee (2ZZ &) and assistant to director of
the Heze branch (Gil/£4%77) and director of the Yucheng branch (B 5
77) of Shanghai Pudong Development Bank. From June 2014 to July 2014,
he served as the general manager of risk management at the Heze branch
(RIZ777) of Laishang Bank (3€/$R77). Mr. Chen was the director of the
Yucheng branch (883%77) and operational director of the Heze branch
CaZE517) from May 2011 to June 2014 and from November 2010 to May
2011, respectively, both at Laishang Bank (%5$R1T). He worked at China
Construction Bank, as director of the Dan County branch (2883 1T) from
January 2007 to October 2010 and as deputy director of the Yucheng branch
(B35 77) from February 2006 to December 2006. During August 1994
to January 2006, Mr. Chen served as an international business settlement
officer, savings officer, officer and deputy manager of the credit department
and customer service executive of the Heze branch (R#%17) of China
Construction Bank. Mr. Chen graduated from Shandong Economics College*
(LR &EERR) (currently known as Shandong University of Finance and
Economics) with a major in international finance in the PRC in 2001 and has
approximately 25 years of experience in audit, financial management, finance
and initial public offerings etc.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Liu Hongwei, aged 60, a non-executive Director of our Company, He
founded our Group since August 1995. After obtaining a bachelor’s degree
in engineering in July 1986 from Wuhan Industrial University, now known as
Wuhan University of Technology, majoring in inorganic materials engineering,
Mr. Liu worked at the Shaanxi Glass Factory, as a technician until 1989.
From 1989 to 1991, Mr. Liu was the director of production department at the
Zhuhai Glass Factory. From 1991 to 1995, Mr. Liu Hongwei was the manager
of the operation department of Zhuhai Singyes Safety Glass. In 1995, Zhuhai
Singyes Green Building Technology Co., Ltd was established with Mr.Liu
acted as the general manager. Since November 2003, Mr. Liu has been an
executive Director of our Company. Mr. Liu is a Senior Engineer in respect
of construction materials. He has more than 30 years’ experience in the
curtain wall engineering sector and more than 20 years’ experience in the
photovoltaic application sector.

Mr. Liu is also a director and a 53% shareholder of Strong Eagle Holdings
Ltd. which holds 202,038,750 shares of the Company as at the date of
this report (representing approximately 8.01% of the issued share capital
of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the listed issuer under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the Securities and Futures

Ordinance.

Ms. Wang Suhui, aged 46, was appointed as a non-executive Director with
effect from 21 May 2023 and served as a non-executive Directors from 28
November 2019 to 17 February 2022. She has been a deputy director of
the Equity Investment Department of Shuifa Group Investment Development
Center. She was the general manager of the energy business department of
Shuifa Group Co., Ltd. since March 2019. From 2016 to 2018, she was a
business manager of the asset operations division of Shuifa Group Co., Ltd.
during 2004 to 2011, Ms. Wang has taken the positions of auditor, senior
manager and deputy director of the management consultancy department
of Xin Lian Yi Certified Public Accountants Co., Ltd.. Ms. Wang obtained her
master’s degree at the Shandong University of Science and Technology in
the PRC in 2004 and is a member of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.
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Mr. Hu Xiao, aged 32, a Certified Public has been appointed as a Non-
Executive Director from 16 October 2023. He Accountant in China, serves
as a senior Supervisor of the Capital Operations Department in Shuifa
Group Co., Ltd., a controlling shareholder of the Company, a position he
has taken since June 2022. From January 2018 to July 2019, Mr. Hu held
the position of Senior Investment Manager at Beijing Fangyuan Jinding
Investment Management Co., Ltd. From October 2019 to November 2020,
Mr. Hu assumed the role of Investment Director at Shandong Qiangwei
Peridot Equity Investment Fund Co., Ltd. From December 2020 to May
2022, Mr. Hu became the Deputy Manager of the Market Development
Department at ShuiFa Shangshan Group Co., Ltd.. Mr. Hu graduated from
Shandong University of Finance and Economics and holds a Master’s Degree
in World Economics from Liaoning University. He has been recognized as
an outstanding graduate of Shandong Province and has received a national
scholarship.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Wang Ching, aged 69, was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of our Company in December 2008. Dr. Wang has over 20 years’
managerial experience in investment banking, securities, treasury and asset
management in the United States, Hong Kong, Taiwan and the PRC. He
was the managing director of Shanghai International Asset Management
(HK) Co. Ltd. (a licensed corporation registered with Hong Kong Securities
and Futures Commission), and he was the executive director of Shanghai
International Shanghai Growth Investment Limited (a company listed on the
Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange). In addition, Dr. Wang is also
currently an independent non-executive director of Minth Group Limited and
Luen Thai Holdings Limited (both companies are listed on the Main Board of
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, as well as are independent third parties of
the Company and affiliates of the Company). Dr. Wang obtained his master
degree in business administration from the University of Houston and Ph.D.
in finance from Columbia University in the city of New York.
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Yick Wing Fat, Simon, aged 66, is our independent non-executive director
and chairman of the audit committee from 2008. Mr. Yick holds a Bachelor’s
degree in Business Administration from the Chinese University of Hong Kong,
majoring in Accounting. He is a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in
England. Mr. Yick has over 30 years of experience in audit, direct investment,
investment banking and corporate advisory services.

Mr. Yick also serves as an independent non-executive director and chairman
of the audit committee of Shenzhen Neptunus Interlong Bio-technique Co.,
Ltd. and Shanghai International Shanghai Growth Investment Limited (both
are listed on the Stock Exchange). Mr. Yick is an independent non-executive
director and chairman of audit committee and remuneration committee,
member of nomination committee of Meta Media Holdings Limited (listed on
Stock Exchange, Stock Code: 72).

Tan Hongwei, aged 64, is our non-executive Director and also a member
of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee and the chairman
of the Remuneration Committee from 2018. Dr. Tan graduated from the
Department of Architecture of Tokyo University with a doctoral degree in
1995. Dr. Tan has over 18 years of experience in the teaching and research
in respect of energy-saving building technologies, application technology
of renewable energy in buildings, building energy efficiency supervision
platform technology, urban low-carbon energy planning technology, urban
construction environment technology and other fields.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Zhang Chao, aged 52, is the deputy secretary to the Communist Party
Committee of the Group, and is responsible for the investment, merger
& acquisition and operation and management of the green building, new
materials and clean energy sectors. Zhang Chao graduated from Qigihaer
Railway Transportation Employee University majoring in civil construction in
July 1995, and he joined our Group in December 2002. Zhang Chao was
certified as a Construction Appraiser in 2003, and he was awarded as a
registered constructor in 2007. He has 20 years of experience in the curtain
wall engineering sector and nearly 20 years of experience in the photovoltaic
power application sector.

Yi Peng ({Fl5), aged 49, has been appointed as the secretary of the
discipline committee of the Group in November 2023, and is responsible
for discipline inspection and supervision. Yi Peng (f##5) graduated from
the Naval University of Engineering majoring in equipment economics
and management in June 2009. He has extensive experience in corporate
management and discipline inspection.

Yu Jing, aged 49, was appointed as the Co-CFO of the Group on February
13, 2023, responsible for fund planning and accounting and financial
management. She is a Senior Accountant, Taian City accounting leading
talent, representative of the 11th Party Congress of Taian City, graduated
from Taishan University majoring in financial management in 2013. She
worked in China National Building Material Ownership Corporation, Taian City
Investment Group Co., Ltd., Shuifa Water Group and other large enterprises
handle the financial work, she also served as the director and supervisor of
Huaneng Taishan Electric Power and Taian Aerospace Special Vehicle. She
has nearly 30 years of experience in financial management in manufacturing,
water, environmental protection and various industries.
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Sun Jinli, aged 60, is the vice-president of the Group, and is responsible for
the Group’s technology R&D and technology innovation. Sun Jinli graduated
from Wuhan Industrial University (currently known as the Wuhan University
of Technology) with a bachelor’s degree majoring in inorganic materials
engineering in July 1986. He joined the Group in August 1995. Sun Jinli was
certified as a Level 1 Project Manager in 2002 and awarded as a registered
constructor in 2007, and he has nearly 30 years of experience in the green
building sector. Sun Jinli is a director and a 15% shareholder of Strong Eagle
Holdings Ltd. (the second largest shareholder of the Group).

Zhou Qing, aged 48, is the vice-president of the Group, and is responsible
for the operation and management of the clean energy sector. Zhou Qing
graduated from Nanchang University (F§&AK2) in 1998, majoring in power
systems and automation, and joined the Group in May 2009. Zhou Qing was
certified as a senior engineer in 2017 and has over 20 years of experience in
power engineering and electrical engineering, as well as operation of large-
scale photovoltaic and wind power project. He is a director of China Singyes
New Materials Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 8073), a subsidiary of the
Company.

Guo Peidong, aged 41, he is the vice president of the group and is
responsible for administrative personnel management. He obtained an MBA
from Zhongnan University of Economics and Law in December 2018 and
joined the group in June 2020. He has extensive experience in corporate
administrative management.

Zhao Lei, aged 43, he is the vice president of the group and is responsible
for the development and operation of clean energy projects. He received
a bachelor’'s degree in management from North China Institute of Water
Resources and Hydropower in 2004 and joined the group in April 2022. He
has nearly 20 years of experience in the development and operation of clean
energy projects..

Zhu Longteng, aged 37, he is the vice president of the group, responsible
for engineering construction and technology research and development. He
obtained a master of science from the University of Chinese Academy of
Sciences in July 2013 and joined the group in June 2023. Zhu Longteng is
a senior engineer with extensive experience in marketing and engineering

construction.
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CHAN Koon Leung, Alexander, aged 47, he is the Company Secretary. He
has over 20 years’ experience in capital markets, financial management,
corporate finance, compliance of listing rules and corporate governance. He
is currently a fellow member of Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Prior to joining the company, he worked in an international accounting firm
and a listed company. He graduated from The University of Southampton
with a bachelor’s degree majoring in Accounting and Finance.

Mr. Chan also serves as the company secretary of China Singyes New
Materials Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 8073), which is a subsidiary of the
Company.

To the best knowledge of the Company, there are no financial, business or
other material/relevant relationships among members of the Board and the
senior management officers.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chan Koon Leung, Alexander, is our company secretary. For further
details regarding Mr. Chan, please see the paragraph headed “Senior
Management” above.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEREE

The Directors are pleased to present the annual report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2023.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda on 24 October 2003 as an
exempted company with limited liability. The registered office of the Company
is located at 4th Floor, North Cedar House, 41 Cedar Avenue, Hamilton HM
12, Bermuda. The Company has established a principal place of business
in Hong Kong at Unit 3108, 31st Floor, China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak
Centre, 168-200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong, and was registered
with the Registrar of Companies in Hong Kong as an oversea company under
Part XI of the Companies Ordinance on 29 August 2008. Mr. Chan Koon
Leung, Alexander has been appointed as the authorised representative of the
Company for the acceptance of service of process and notices on behalf of
the Company in Hong Kong.

As the Company is incorporated in the Bermuda, the operation of the
Company is subject to the Companies Law and to its constitution comprising
a memorandum of association and the bye-laws.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of the
Group are set out in the section of “Directors and Senior Management” of
this report. Save as disclosed in this report, there are no other changes to the
Directors’ information as required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1)
of the Listing Rules.
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The Group is a
professional clean energy system integrator and green building provider. With
respect to clean energy, the Group committed to the new energy business,
including wind energy and photovoltaic power storage, participating in the
development of a series of national, industry and local energy standards,
and investing and constructing in photovoltaic, wind energy and other clean
energy projects. With respect to curtain walls and green buildings, the Group
is engaged in domestic and international curtain wall design and consultancy,
construction of architectural curtain wall projects, operation and maintenance
of ultra-low energy buildings and other services.

The Group’s principal operating market is in Mainland China.

Details of the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 1 to the financial statements. There were no significant changes in the
nature of the Group’s principal activities during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group’s top five customers are the main contractors of various wind
and solar farm investors. In aggregate, the largest and top five customers
contributed approximately 10.1% and 28.6% of the Group’s total revenue in
2023 respectively.

The Group currently outsources part of the construction works for various
sub-contractors in the PRC, as well as sourcing solar penals, wind turbine,
aluminium from suppliers inside the PRC. In 2023, the top five suppliers are
energy project suppliers, and the largest and five largest suppliers were about
5.8% and 21.9% of the Group’s total cost of sale in 2023 respectively.
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At no time during the year have the Directors, their close associates or any
shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns
more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had any interest in these
major suppliers and/or customers.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries which principally affect
the results as at 31 December 2023 are set out in note 13 to the financial
statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND DIVIDENDS

The profits of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023 and the
Company’s and the Group’s financial positions as at the same date are set
out in the financial statements on pages 83 to 248. The Directors do not
recommend a payment of a final dividend for the year ended 31 December
2023 (2022: Nil).

There was no arrangement under which a shareholder of the Company has
waived or agreed to waive any dividends.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserve of the Group and the Company during
the year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
pages 87 to 88 of the annual report and in note 38 to the financial statements

respectively.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2023, the Company’s reserve available for distribution
calculated in accordance with the provisions of the applicable law of
Bermuda, amount to approximately RMB34,507,000.

INTEREST BEARING BANK LOANS

Particulars of interest bearing bank loans of the Group as at 31 December
2023 are set out in note 29 to the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of acquisitions and other movements in property, plant and equipment
are set out in note 14 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the year
are set out in note 24 to the financial statements. The Company and its
subsidiaries did not purchase, sell or redeem any listed securities of the
Company.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to the
shareholders of the Company by reason of their holding of the shares of the
Company.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last 5 financial years is set out on page 4 of the annual report.
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EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2023

The Group has no significant event after the reporting periods that needs to
be disclosed.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Wang Dongkai (Chairman)

(appointed on 27 April 2023)
Mr. Zhou Guangyan (Vice-chairman)

(appointed on 12 March 2024)
Mr. Zheng Qingtao (resigned on 26 April 2023)
Mr. Wang Dongwei (resigned on 12 March 2024)
Mr. Chen Fushan

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Liu Hongwei

Mr. Xie Wen (resigned on 21 May 2023)

Ms. Li Li (resigned on 16 October 2023)

Ms. Wang Suhui (appointed on 21 May 2023)
Mr. Hu Xiao (appointed on 16 October 2023)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Dr. Wang Ching

Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon

Dr. Tan Hongwei

In accordance with Bye-law 87 of the Bye-laws of the Company, Mr. Wang
Dongwei, Dr. Tan Hongwei and Mr. Hu Xiao are required to retire by rotation
at the forthcoming annual general meeting. Each of the above Directors will
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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REMUNERATION POLICY

The total number of employees of the Group as at 31 December 2023 was
1,243 (2022: 1,497). The Group’s remuneration policies are in line with local
market practices where the Group operates and are normally reviewed on an
annual basis. In addition to salary payments, there are other staff benefits
including provident fund, medical insurance and performance related bonus.
Share options and share awards may also be granted to eligible employees
and persons of the Group as incentivization for the long-term growth and
development of the Group.

The remuneration policy for the Directors and senior management members
of the Group was based on their individual performance as well as market
trends and practices. Details of the remuneration of the Directors are set out
in note 39 to the consolidated financial statements.

The emoluments paid to the senior management (excluding the Directors)
during the year ended 31 December 2023 were within the following bands:

FrENER

REBR_ZT_=F+_A=+—HHIEEL
HR12M3A(ZE -4 1497 A) - K&
B HENBCR AR B AT E RTS8
Pl—5 - WBBIRFHRT - BHEFHSIN - 0
BHEEMEBIREANBEAES - BRRR K
RABRATEAL - NEEAAREERABIAIAE
BRERERRDEBEAHASEREAER
KRR

TEBCEERESREBEBKE 2 HBIKETD
RIBEERRRARTSBE RE T IAE
Al BEZHMF BN GE M BRRM T
39/ e

REBE-Z-_=F+-A=+—HLFE %
NERERE(TEEES) Z2HFHN TR
TEE :

Number of
Senior Management

Bands gE BREEESE
RMB100,001 to RMB1,000,000 AR# 100,001 ;tE AR ¥ 1,000,000 7T 4
RMB1,000,001 to RMB2,000,000 AR 1,000,001 7tE ARE 2,000,000 7T

Total: At o

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Wang Dongkai, the executive Director, has signed a letter of appointment
with the Company for a term of three years commencing from 27 April 2023
unless terminated in accordance with the terms therein. Under the terms of
the letter of appointment, the appointment may be terminated by not less
than three months’ prior written notice or otherwise served by either party on
the other.
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Mr. Zhou Guangyan, the executive Director, has signed a letter of
appointment with the Company for a term of three years commencing from
12 March 2024 unless terminated in accordance with the terms therein.
Under the terms of the letter of appointment, the appointment may be
terminated by not less than three months’ prior written notice or otherwise
served by either party on the other.

Mr. Chen Fushan, the executive Directors, has signed a letter of appointment
with the Company for a term of three years commencing from 28 November
2019 unless terminated in accordance with the terms therein. Under the
terms of the letter of appointment, the appointment may be terminated by
not less than three months’ prior written notice or otherwise served by either
party on the other. His service contract will be automatically renewed for

another three years upon expiry.

Mr. Liu Hongwei, a non-executive Director, has entered into a service contract
with the Company for a term of one year commencing from 21 May 2023,
which may be terminated by either party giving one month’s written notice to
the other party.

Ms. Wang Suhui, the non-executive Director, has signed a letter of
appointment with the Company for a term of three years commencing from
21 May 2023 unless terminated in accordance with the terms therein. Under
the terms of the letter of appointment, the appointment may be terminated
by not less than one month’ prior written notice or otherwise served by either

party on the other.

Mr. Hu Xiao, the non-executive Director, has signed a letter of appointment
with the Company for a term of three years commencing from 16 October
2023 unless terminated in accordance with the terms therein. Under the
terms of the letter of appointment, the appointment may be terminated by not
less than one month’ prior written notice or otherwise served by either party
on the other.

Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon and Dr. Wang Ching, the independent non-
executive Directors, were appointed for a term of three years from 19
December 2008. Dr. Tan Hongwei, the independent non-executive director,
was appointed for a term of three years from 18 April 2018. Their service
contracts will be automatically renewed for another three years upon expiry.
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All Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years and in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service agreement with the Company which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

The remuneration of directors are determined by the remuneration committee
of the Company and by reference to the remuneration policies of other
companies in similar capacity and the experience of the directors.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 19 December 2008, the Company adopted a share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”). Under the Share Option Scheme, the Board may at
its discretion, offer eligible persons (being any Director or employee (whether
full-time or part-time), consultant or advisors of the Group who in the sole
discretion of the Board has contributed or will contribute to the Group) (the
“Eligible Persons”) who the Board may in its absolute discretion select to
subscribe for such number of Shares as the Board may determine at a
subscription price determined in accordance with the Share Option Scheme.

Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide incentive or reward
to Eligible Persons for their contribution to, and continuing efforts to promote
the interests of, the Group and for such other purposes as the Board may
approve from time to time.
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Total number of Shares available under the Share Option
Scheme

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme is 18,026,332
shares, representing 1.00% of the Company’s issued share capital as at the
date of this report. Pursuant to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, the
exercise price of and/or the number of Shares subject to the outstanding
Share Options are required to be adjusted as a result of a rights issue in
July 2016. In accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme and
the supplementary guidance issued by the Stock Exchange on 5 September
2005 regarding adjustment of share options under Rule 17.03(13) of the
Listing Rules, the exercise price of and the number of Shares subject to the
outstanding Share Options granted on 22 May 2015 has been adjusted with
effect from 20 July 2016:

R T Bl TR AR B B 488

RATERIR BRSNS TR OO EBR
EM A RERITHIRM BB &% /418,026,332
B% - EERARRRARE BHID BHITRA
1.00% ° BIRBERRMERT &I 2 1650 - MARTTHERS
i ZITEER/ SRNBBER =S —R"Ft
AHIRMTEIEL A% o RIBEARES B2 R
MR - EERFNATREMGERELT
MANE17.03(1) KRBT HERERAE 2 mFRE
5l RZE—RAFRAZF+ZARTZEKRT
EREARE 2 1TEERRMEE B R T H 1k
A% BT —A"FtAZ+ABER:

Before Adjustments After Adjustments
A R
Number of Number of
Shares Shares
subject to the subject to the

Exercise price

outstanding
Share Options

Exercise price

outstanding
Share Options

per Share BRiER per Share BRiER

Date of grant Sk TERREZ Sk TERREZ

R EH TEE rEE TiEE rEE
HK$ HK$
BT PETT

22 May 2015 —E—hRFRA=-+=H 11.70 6,026,332 11.65 6,026,332

5 April 2017 “E—+tFNARA 3.55 12,000,000 N/A 12,000,000
TEA
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Maximum entitlement of each Eligible Participant

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option scheme(s) of the Company (including exercised, cancelled
and outstanding options) to each Eligible Person in any 12-month period up
to the date of grant shall not exceed 1.0% of the shares in issue as at the
date of grant. Any further grant of options in excess of this 1.0% limit shall
be subject to the issue of a circular by the Company and the approval of our
Shareholders in general meeting with such Eligible Persons and his associate
(as defined in the Listing Rules) abstaining from voting and the number and
terms (including the subscription price) of such options being fixed before
such general meeting and other requirements prescribed under the Listing
Rules from time to time.

Time of exercise of option

There is no general requirement that an option must be held for any
minimum period before it can be exercised but the Board is empowered to
impose at its discretion any such minimum period at the time of grant of any
particular option. The Board is currently unable to determine such minimum
period. The date of grant of any particular option is the date on which the
offer relating to such option is duly accepted by the grantee in accordance
with the Share Option Scheme. An option may be exercised according to the
terms of the Share Option Scheme and the offer in whole or in part by the
grantee (or his personal representatives) before its expiry by giving notice
in writing to our Company stating that the option is to be exercised and the
number of Shares in respect of which it is exercised provided that the number
of Shares shall be equal to the size of a board lot for dealing in Shares on
the Stock Exchange or an integral multiple thereof. Such notice must be
accompanied by a remittance for the full amount of the subscription price for
the Shares in respect of which the notice is given. The period during which
an option may be exercised will be determined by the Board at its absolute
discretion, save that no option may be exercised more than 10 years from
the date of grant. No option may be granted more than 10 years after the
date of approval of the Share Option Scheme. Subject to earlier termination
by the Company in general meeting, the Share Option Scheme shall be valid
and effective for a period of 10 years from the date of adoption of the Share
Option Scheme by Shareholders by resolution at a general meeting.
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Price of Shares

The subscription price for a share in respect of any particular option granted
under the Share Option Scheme (which shall be payable upon exercise of
the option) shall be such price as the Board shall determine, save that such
price must not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of offer
to grant option, which must be a business day; (ii) the average of the closing
prices of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet
for the five business days immediately preceding the date of offer to grant
option (provided that the new issue price shall be used as the closing price
for any business day falling within the period before the listing of the shares
where our Company has been listed for less than five business days as at
the date of offer to grant option); and (iii) the nominal value of a Share. A
consideration of RMB1.00 is payable on acceptance of an offer of the grant
of an option.

Remaining life of the Share Option Scheme

The Company, by resolution in general meeting, or the Board may at any
time terminate the operation of the Share Option Scheme and in such event
no further option will be offered but in all other respects the provisions of
the Share Option Scheme shall remain in full force and effect and options
granted prior to such termination shall continue to be valid and exercisable
in accordance with the Share Option Scheme. The Share Option Scheme
was terminated on 19 December 2018 and the share options already granted
continue to be effective till 21 May 2027.

Movement and position

No option is available for grant under the scheme mandate as the Share
Option Scheme has been terminated.

Details of the movement in the share options granted under the Share Option
Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2023 are set out below.
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Number of share options
U
Balance Balance
asat Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed asat Exercise
llanvaty  dwingthe  duringthe  duringthe  duringthe 31 December Date of Exercise price Vesting
Name or category of participant 2023 year year year year 2023 grant period (HKS) period
=gz  Quk ]
-f-8 T2A=t-8 iR

SEELRAEN 268 REREE  REROE  REREE  RERRR &% feg fried (%) 5E4
Ohercnploes red U5 HERESEE 20878 . - - S8R ZEMB 2AG- LS 26005
entit participants and REBR L 2152025 2152016
service providers in 2008777 - - - - 2008777 262015 22502017 - 1165 22502015-
aggregate 211512025 2152017
2008777 - - - - 2008771 262015 225/2018- 1165 22502015-
211512025 21512018
4,000,000 - - - - 4,000,000 40T HI018- 3% BRI -
21612027 442018
4,000,000 - - - - 4,000,000 4017 5i019- 3% BRI -
21612027 442019
4,000,000 - - - - 4000000 SAN17 5iR00- 35 b1 -
/12027 442020

Sub-Total gt 18026332 - - - - 18026332

Note: PI3E

1. No share options were granted and to be granted in excess of the 1% individual 1. BERTRESE THIB 1% E5RENER
limit. o

2. No options exceeding 0.1% of the shares in issue were granted and to be 2. RER 1218 A AR B BB0.1% 2 B 31T
granted to any related entity participant or service provider in any 12-month RN TR FETFEMEREEL2EESR
period. ARty -

3. Save as disclosed above, no share options were granted and to be granted to 3. BEXFTHEBEEN  BEBRECE TS
other Directors, chief executive or substantial shareholders of the Company, or BRTPHMES ARRTTHRABSFERE
their respective associates. FFEZRNZHBA -

NEW SHARE OPTION SCHEME sl

The Company adopted a new share option scheme at its annual general
meeting on 4 June 2018 (the “New Share Option Scheme”). No Share Option
have been granted under such scheme.
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Participants of the New Share Option Scheme

Under the New Share Option Scheme, the Board may at its discretion, offer
eligible persons (being any Director or employee (whether full-time or part-
time), consultants or suppliers of the Group who in the sole discretion of the
Board has contributed or will contribute to the Group) (the “Eligible Person(s)
of the New Share Option Scheme”) who the Board may in its absolute
discretion select to subscribe for such number of shares as the Board may
determine at a subscription price determined in accordance with the New
Share Option Scheme.

Purpose of the New Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the New Share Option Scheme is to provide incentive
or reward to Eligible Persons of the New Share Option Scheme for their
contribution to, and continuing efforts to promote the interests of, the Group
and for such other purposes as the Board may approve from time to time.

Total number of Shares available under the New Share Option
Scheme

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the New Share Option Scheme is 83,407,319
shares, representing 3.31% of the Company’s issued share capital as at the
date of this report.

Maximum entitlement of each Eligible Person under the New
Share Option Scheme

The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued upon the exercise
of the share options granted under the New Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company to any Eligible Person(s) of the
New Share Option Scheme (including cancelled, exercised and outstanding
share options), in any 12-month period up to the date of grant shall not
exceed 1% of the number of shares in issue, unless such grant has been
duly approved by ordinary resolution of the Shareholders in general meeting
in the manner prescriber by the relevant provisions of Chapter 17 of the
Listing Rules and the terms of the New Share Option Scheme.
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Time of vesting and exercise of option

There is no general requirement that an option must be held for any
minimum period before it can be exercised but the Board may in its absolute
discretion specify the conditions which must be satisfied before the option
may be exercised as it thinks fit when making an offer to an Eligible Person
of the New Share Option Scheme. An option may be exercised according to
the terms of the New Share Option Scheme and the relevant offer letter in
whole or in part by the grantee (or his personal representatives) before its
expiry by giving notice in writing to the Company stating that the option is to
be exercised and the number of shares in respect of which it is exercised.
Such notice must be accompanied by a remittance for the full amount of
the subscription price for the shares in respect of which the notice is given.
Subject to the terms of the New Share Option Scheme, an option may be
exercised by the grantee (or his personal representatives) at any time during
the option period of 10 years from the date of grant of the option.

Basis of determining the subscription price and acceptance
price

Subject to the terms of the New Share Option Scheme, the subscription
price shall be a price solely determined by the Board and notified to an
Eligible Person and shall be at least the highest of (a) the closing price of the
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the offer
date, which must be a business day; (b) the average of the closing price of
the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the
five business days immediately preceding the offer; and (3) the nominal
value of the shares. The amount payable by a grantee of a share option to
the Company on acceptance of the offer for the grant of a share option is
HK$1.00.

Remaining life of the New Share Option Scheme

The New Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10
years commencing after the adoption date (i.e. 4 June 2018).

There was no exercise of any conversion or subscription rights under any
convertible securities, options, warrants or similar rights issued or granted
at any time by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during the year ended
31 December 2023.
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The Company adopted a Share Award Plan (the “Share Award Plan”) on 29
December 2020 (the “Adoption Date”).

Purpose

The purpose of the Share Award Plan is to recognise and reward the
contribution of certain Eligible Persons towards the growth and development
of the Group through an award of Shares.

Participants

The committee of the Company which is delegated with the power and
authority by the Board to administer the Share Award Plan (the “Appraisal
Committee”) may, in its absolute discretion, make an award to any employee
(whether full-time or part-time) of the Group, including Directors, senior
management and any other connected persons of the Company and any
consultant of the Group.

Plan Limit

The total number of Shares which may be purchased by the trustee under
the Share Award Plan will not exceed three per cent. (3%) of the total issued
Shares on the Adoption Date (the “Plan Limit"), being 75,632,453 Shares,
representing 3% of the issued share capital as at the date of this annual
report.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The accumulated maximum number of Shares which may be awarded to a
grantee under the Share Award Plan shall not exceed one per cent. (1%) of
the issued share capital of the Company from time to time.

Exercise period

As the Share Award Plan is a share award scheme of the Company instead of
a share option scheme, the awards granted under the Share Award Plan are
not subject to any exercise period nor are the Eligible Persons entitled to any
exercise rights.
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Vesting period
The Board may, at its absolute discretion, determine the terms and conditions

of an award (if any), including any vesting period, to an Eligible Person as
vesting conditions.

Acceptance price

No price is payable by the Eligible Persons upon acceptance of Award Shares
granted under the Share Award Plan.

Purchase price

The Board or Appraisal Committee may, at its absolute discretion, impose
condition(s) to any award in the related award notice, including the payment
of any purchase price upon vesting of the Award Shares.

Term

Subject to any early termination pursuant to the terms of the Share Award
Plan, the Share Award Plan will remain valid and effective for a period of six (6)
years commencing from the Adoption Date.

Movement and position

The number of awards that are available for grant under the Plan Limit as
at 1 January 2023 and 31 December 2023 was 15,132,453 Shares and
18,132,453 Shares.

Details of the movement in the share awards granted under the Share Award
Plan during the year ended 31 December 2023 are set out below.
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= =+
EEEHREE
Number of awards
#RYE
Balance Balance
asat Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed asat Exercise
1 January during the during the during the duringthe 31 December Date of Exercise price
Name or category of participant 2023 year year year year 2023 grant period (HKS)
 Qut Jm R-%z=
-R-H tZR=+-H iR
SEEERIEH 2Et RERRE  RERME O REREE  RERRY ba i 2] fiked (&%)
'000 '000 '000 '000 '000 '000
] T T T T T
Director 1]
Mr. Chen Fushan RalEE 1400 - - - - 1400 2911212020 NIATER NARER
M. Liv Hongwel BTttt 1,500 - - - - 1500 2912000 NATER NATER
Sub-Total It 2900 - - - - 290

Other employees, related ~ £40fES  EE
entity participantsand ~ EREERRE

senvice providers R
in aggregate 57600 - - (3,000) - 54,600 291212020 NATER NATER
Note: Mz -
1. No awards were granted and to be granted in excess of the 1% individual limit. 1. BEETREER THB1%ERIREMN R
& o
2. No awards exceeding 0.1% of the shares in issue were granted and to be 2. PAMET 1218 A HAR LR B0.1% 2 2B IR
granted to any related entity participant or service provider in any 12-month FREETFEMAEEEIHEE SRR M
period. ER
3. Save as disclosed above, no awards were granted and to be granted to other 3. BEXFTHEBEREN  BERBERTFIBE
Directors, chief executive or substantial shareholders of the Company, or their FHEHMEE ARRITHRABHEZRERLK
respective associates. HESRIZHEA -
4. % of the awarded
Shares to be vested
HFEEN
Vesting period BB eI BB EL
Commencing form the first trading day after the 24-month AR AR 24 @A HHERENEERSH 30
period from the Date of Grant and ending on the last trading REFRT AR 36 EAPHNEE—EXS
day of the 36-months period from the Date of Grant =Nl
Commencing form the first trading day after the 36-month B AR 36 @A AHERMENERERSH 30
period from the Date of Grant and ending on the last trading HEERH AT 48 8 A M RE —EX S
day of the 48-months period from the Date of Grant ik
Commencing form the first trading day after the 48-month B A48 A A EERENEERZZA 40

period from the Date of Grant and ending on the last trading BEFRT AR e0EAPHNEE —ERS

day of the 60-months period from the Date of Grant =Nl
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

None of the Directors or their respective associate (as defined under the
Listing Rules) was granted by the Company, or any of its subsidiaries, any
rights or options to acquire Shares or debentures during the year ended
31 December 2023.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share option scheme of the Company as disclosed in this report,
no equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing
shares or that require the Company to enter into any agreements that will or
may result in the Company issuing shares were entered into by the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2023 or subsisted at the end of the year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Appraisal Committee instructed
the Trustee to purchase 3,534,000 Shares on the Stock Exchange with
funds paid out of the Company’s resources in order to satisfy the outstanding
awards under the Share Award Scheme.

Save as disclosed above. neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries had
purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year under review.
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DETAILS OF PERFORMANCE GUARANTEE UNDER
RULE 14.36B

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 15 December
2020, pursuant to a capital injection agreement dated 15 December 2020
(the “Capital Injection Agreement”) and entered into among Jiangxi Yaxing
Construction Co., Ltd.* TP EEZH B R A F]) (the “Target Company”),
Yu Nanhui (;kF98E), Li Peng (ZM5) and Chen Chen (BR2)
Shareholders”) and Zhuhai Singyes Green Construction Technology Co., Ltd.*
(BREE ¥z ERERRAMR AT, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company) (“Zhuhai Singyes”) in relation to the acquisition of 51% equity

(the “Target

interest in the Target Company by way of an injection of capital of RMB39.9
million into the Target Company by Zhuhai Singyes (the “Capital Injection”).
Pursuant to the Capital Injection Agreement, the Target Shareholders
undertake and guarantee to Zhuhai Singyes that the audited net profit (after
deducting non-recurring profit and loss) of the Target Company shall not be
less than RMB30.00 million, RMB60.00 million and RMB90.00 million for
the financial years ending 31 December 2021, 2022 and 2023 (“Guaranteed
Period”), respectively (the “Guaranteed Profit(s)”).

Should the actual profit of the Target Company fall short of the Guaranteed
Profit of any particular year, the Target Shareholders undertake to make
up the difference by way of a compensation in cash to the Investor (the
“Compensation”). In the event the Target Shareholders are unable to satisfy
the Compensation in cash, the Investor is entitled to demand the settlement
of the Compensation by way of a transfer of the equity interest in the Target
Company held by the Target Shareholders (the “Compensated Equity
Interest”).

Based on the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company for
each of the three financial years ended 31 December 2021, 31 December
2022 and 31 December 2023, the Target Company recorded net loss of
approximately RMB3.02 million, net profit (after deducting non-recurring
profit and loss) of RMB5.09 million and net loss of RMB2.03 million for
the financial years ended 31 December 2021, 31 December 2022 and 31
December 2023, respectively. The actual profits of the Target Company fell
short of the Guaranteed Profit for the financial years ended 31 December
2021, 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2023, respectively. Accordingly,

IR 14.36B IR 1EH 2 EE R
FEER

BIAREBBA—E_EF+-_A+HAN
AEFERE IR ERRERAR(EER
all) - REE W EEE(BERE])
RKGEEGCEERBZAERLR (KRR FHE
Z2EMBERR - [HRERE])FTIAHA=
E-FE+ - THBANTERE (TEW
1) NRBRAEEERBISERARIFEAR
# 39,900,000 L ([EE ) U KE B Z QA
51% Mg o RIBFE W% - BIEREMAKE
B 5 v I AR B B R R R A AR AR (F0BR
FEEEMIERR) PABTOREBEE=_S=—
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LEEFE (MR FHAM 1) 9 A K #530,000,0007T, »
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Compensations of RMB7.32 million, RMB12.17 million and RMB20.41
million are payable by the Target Shareholders to the Investor, for the financial
years ended 31 December 2021, 31 December 2022 and 31 December
2023, respectively.

As at the date of this report, RMB39.90 million in Compensations remains
unsettled. It has come to the knowledge of the Company that the Target
Shareholders are unable to satisfy the Compensations in cash. The
Company, as a security measure, had took a charge over the 49% equity
interests in the Target Company held by the Target Shareholders. Since the
Guaranteed Period has just ended, the Company is negotiating with the
Target Shareholders on the payment of Compensations. The parties agreed
to conduct a special audit of the Target Company and, based on the audit
result, to further negotiate and finalise the time and amount of Compensation
payment, settlement arrangements and other details after the audit is
completed. The Company will make further announcement(s) on any material
development as and when the terms of settlement are finalised between the
parties.

INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE
DIRECTORS AND THE CHIEF EXECUTIVES OF THE
COMPANY IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2023, so far as the Directors are aware, the Directors
and chief executives of the Company and their associates had the following
interests and short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which (i) were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (ii) were
required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein; or (iii) were required, pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange:
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Company/name
of associated

corporation Number of Approximate %
Name AT Capacity Type of interest shares of shareholding?®
"z 1HEHEE T 80 R BRHER IRERAE R
Mr. Chen Fushan Company Beneficial interest 2 Long 1,400,000 0.05%
BRAEIL S RAT] Bt ? rA
Mr. Liu Hongwei Company Interest of a controlled Long 202,038,750 8.01%
BATHE S WIN/NE] corporation ! A
S ol
Beneficial interest 2 Long 1,500,000 0.06%
B2 rA
Sub-total 203,538,750 8.07%
NEF

Note:

1. These 202,038,750 Shares are held by Strong Eagle Holdings Ltd. whose share
capital is 53% owned by Mr. Liu Hongwei. Mr. Liu Hongwei is deemed to be
interested in these Shares by virtue of the SFO.

2. Such interest represents the shares awards granted to the respective directors
under a share award plan as announced by the Company on 29 December
2020.

3. The percentage is calculated on the basis of 2,521,081,780 Shares in issue as
at 31 December 2023.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, none of the Directors had
any interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations that was required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO or recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.

B

1. 202,038,750 4% B% 1% F Strong Eagle Holdings
Ld. 3% & + T 2 4T 4 5¢ & % 7 Strong Eagle
Holdings Ltd. B¢ AN 2 53% » 1R {5 & % M HA & 1%
Bl - BIATHE S R AR SRR D R A e -

2. HEBEREAATANR-Z-EF+ -
—HABEBN—ERG EBHEETSE
EHR 158 -

3. ZEOHTMRZE_=F+=-A=1+—H
T 31T/ 2,521,081,780 XD BEMTE -

BEXHEEEN RZB-_=F+_A
=1+—RB - BEEENAQRSEEAERE
Bkl - AREAR D EEE D EERREE
FRAEGEGIEXVEET7 RSHMMEART R
B PSSR R - RAREE S L
B 15 352 (R M AR IR - A
RBIRAE TR SITANG AR B Bt 32 A (1]
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INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2023, so far as the Directors are aware, save as disclosed
above, the persons or corporations (not being a Director or a chief executive
of the Company) who have interest or short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be
kept under section 336 of the SFO or have otherwise notified to the Company
pursuant to the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or who
were, directly or indirectly, interested in 10% or more of the nominal value
of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at
general meetings of any other member of the Group and the amount of each
of such persons’ interest in such securities, together with any options in
respect of such capital, were as follows:

FERRRIRG - HeElk5 RE
FPHERRER

RZZE_=F+—A=+—0 BESHE"
B EXHBEESN - N T AT ZOEBE (X IEAR
AEFERTBITRAR) RARABRN KA
Bind - R BN RIEE S R ERMIE
3B RAFENELMNERRIER - HRIE
B MEEGRDIFE XV 2 R 3D AF 2 A
RIARRRE 2 EEIORE - HE IR
BN R T EARRE A
KB RAZBRERAE ERE ZAHAIRRIRAR
B10% A FiER - UMRZFATEERZ
SRFFEAERHE  EREAZERLRS
R AT RERRE T

Capacity/nature Approximate %
Long/short of interest Number of shareholding®
Shareholder position 04 of shares Rt
B=® R/E. i BRHEE El i
Water Development (HK) Long position Beneficial owner! 1,687,008,585 66.92%
Holding Co., Limited RE EREAA
IKEEE (BB ERER AR
Long position Person having a security 180,755,472 7.17%
RE interest in shares
RAERMERER
ZAT
IKBEEBRAT Long position Interest of corporation 1,867,764,057 74.09%
ke controlled by you!
Pl 2 EE
Strong Eagle Holdings Ltd. Long position Beneficial owner? 202,038,750 8.01%
RE ERERA?
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1. Water Development (HK) Holding Co., Limited is 100% beneficially owned by
KEEEEFRAT.

2. Strong Eagle Holdings Ltd. is owned by Mr. Liu Hongwei, Mr. Sun Jinli, Mr. Xie
Wen, Mr. Xiong Shi and Mr. Zhuo Jianming as to 53%, 15%, 13%, 10%, and 9%
respectively.

3. The percentage is calculated on the basis of 2,521,081,780 Shares in issue as
at 31 December 2023.

Save as aforesaid, as at 31 December 2023, the Directors are not aware of
any other person who had any interest, directly or indirectly, or short position
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the
SFO.

NON-COMPETITION

The Directors confirm that they have no interest in any business (apart from
the Group’s business) which competes or is likely to compete, either directly
or indirectly, with the Group’s business.

The interested Director shall abstain from the meeting where there is actual
or potential conflict of interest.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transactions” below, no
contract of significance to which the Company, its holding company, or any of
its fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries was a party subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year ended 31 December 2023.

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transactions” below, no
transaction, arrangement or contract of significance in which a Director is or
was materially interested, either directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year ended 31 December 2023.
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Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transactions” below,
no contract of significance for the provision of services to the Company or
any of its subsidiaries by our controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year ended
31 December 2023.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance
with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. For details, please refer to the section
headed “Significant Investments, material acquisitions and disposals”.
Save as disclosed below, none of the related party transactions in Note
37 to the Financial Statements constitute connected transaction or
continuing connected transaction (as the case may be) which are subject to
announcement, circular or independent shareholders’ approval requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

Acquisition of certain target companies

On 9 December 2022, Hunan Shuifa Singyes, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, entered into Share Transfer Agreements with each of Shuifa
Energy and Shuifa Fengyuan Energy and Shuifa Energy (Tongyu), whereby
Hunan Shuifa Singyes has conditionally agreed to acquire and Shuifa Energy
and Shuifa Fengyuan Energy have conditionally agreed to sell 24% of the
equity interest and 16% of the equity interest in Shuifa Energy (Tongyu),
respectively, at the aggregate consideration of RMB491,299,700 (equivalent
to approximately HK$550,255,664).

Upon completion of the Share Transfers, Shuifa Energy (Tongyu) will be
owned by Hunan Shuifa Singyes as to 40% and the board of directors of
Shuifa Energy (Tongyu) will be controlled by Hunan Shuifa Singyes. As such,
Shuifa Energy (Tongyu) will become a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company. Accordingly, the financial results of Shuifa Energy (Tongyu) will
be consolidated into the Company’s consolidated financial statements upon
Completion of the Share Transfers.
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On 9 December 2022, Hunan Shuifa Singyes, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into (i) the Share Subscription Agreement with
Shuifa Clean Energy, pursuant to which Hunan Shuifa Singyes has agreed to
subscribe for 105,613,100 shares of Shuifa Clean Energy at the aggregate
subscription price of RMB503,774,500 (equivalent to approximately
HK$564,227,440); and(ii) the Supplemental Share Subscription Agreement
with Shuifa Energy with respect to the undertakings regarding the Share
Subscription.

Shuifa Clean Energy is owned as to approximately 98.55% and 1.45% by
Shuifa Energy and Linre New Energy, respectively. Upon completion of the
Share Subscription, (i) Hunan Shuifa Singyes, Shuifa Energy and Linre
New Energy will hold 51%, 48.29% and 0.71% of the total equity interest
(on an enlarged basis) in Shuifa Clean Energy, respectively; and (ii) Shuifa
Clean Energy will become a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.
Accordingly, the financial results of Shuifa Clean Energy will be consolidated
into the Company’s consolidated financial statements upon Completion of the
Share Subscription.

For details, please refer to the Company’s announcements dated 9 December
2022 and the circular dated 27 February 2023.

On 29 December 2023, Shuifa Clean Energy Technology Co., Ltd, a non-
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, has entered into the Equity Transfer
Agreement with the Shuifa Lvdong (Zibo) New Energy Co., Ltd, pursuant to
which the Shuifa Lvdong (Zibo) New Energy Co., Ltd has agreed to acquire
and Shuifa Clean Energy Technology Co., Ltd has agreed to sell 100% equity
interests in Shuifa Clean Energy (Yingkou) Co., Ltd at the consideration of
RMB7,427,934.50 (equivalent to approximately HK$7,947,889.92). Upon
completion of the Disposal, the Company will no longer have any interest
in the Shuifa Clean Energy (Yingkou) Co., Ltd. and it will be ceased to be a
subsidiary of the Company. Accordingly, the financial results of Shuifa Clean
Energy (Yingkou) Co., Ltd will no longer be consolidated in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

For details, please refer to the Company’s announcements dated 29
December 2023.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023, save as the above and in this report,
the Group we did not have significant investments, material acquisitions or
disposals of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in this report, the Group did not have any future plans
for material investments or capital assets as at the date of this report. Any
material investments of the Group will be funded by internal resources and
external borrowings.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-
laws, or the law of Bermuda, being the jurisdiction in which the Company is
incorporated.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listing Issuer as set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules as
the code of conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors. Upon
the enquiry made by the Company all Directors confirmed that they had
complied with the Model Code for the year ended 31 December 2023.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are set
out in the Corporate Governance Report contained in this annual report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year ended 31 December 2023.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEREE

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee on 19 December 2008 with
terms of references adopted on 19 December 2008 in compliance with the
Code set out in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules. The members of the audit
committee are the three independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Yick
Wing Fat, Simon, an independent non-executive Director, is the Chairman
of the audit committee. The audit committee is to serve as a focal point for
communication between other directors, the external auditor and the internal
auditor (where an internal audit function exists) of the Company as regards
their duties relating to financial and other reporting, internal controls, external
and internal audits and such other financial and accounting matters as the
Board determines from time to time. The audit committee is to assist the
Board in providing an independent review of the effectiveness of the financial
reporting process, internal control and risk management system of the Group,
overseeing the audit process and performing other duties and responsibilities
as may be assigned by the Board from time to time. The audit committee has
reviewed the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2023, including the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group. For further details of the audit committee and other
committees of the Board, please refer to the section headed “Corporate
Governance Report”.

KEY FINANCIAL AND BUSINESS PERFORMANCE
INDICATORS

The key financial and business performance indicators comprise profitability
trend and financial risk management. Details of profitability analysis are
shown in “Management Discussion and Analysis” section of this annual
report. Details of financial risk management are shown in Note 3 to the
Financial Statements in this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE

The Group is committed to contributing to the sustainability of the
environment and maintaining a high standard of corporate social governance
essential for creating a framework for motivating staff, and contributes to the
community in which we conduct our businesses and creating a sustainable
return to the Group.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group has implemented energy saving practices in its offices and
premises where applicable. The Group also plans to upgrade its air-
conditioning and electricity systems to achieve the energy saving and
provision of clear air to workplace where possible.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

The Group also understands that it is important to maintain good relationship
with its suppliers and customers to fulfil its long-term goals and development.
To maintain its brand competitiveness and market status, the Group
aims at delivering consistently high standards of quality in the service to
its customers. During the year ended 31 December 2023, there was no
material and significant dispute between the Group and its suppliers and/or
customers.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group has compliance and risk management policies and procedures,
and members of the senior management are delegated with the continuing
responsibility to monitor adherence and compliance with all significant legal
and regulatory requirements. These policies and procedures are reviewed
regularly. As far as the Company is aware, it has complied in material aspects
with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
business and operation of the Company and its subsidiaries.
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RELATIONSHIPS WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

The Group’s success also depends on the support from key stakeholders
which comprises employees, customers and shareholders.

Employees

Employees are regarded as the most important and valuable assets of
the Group. The objective of the Groups’ human resource management
is to reward and recognize performing staff by providing a competitive
remuneration package and implementing a sound performance appraisal
system with appropriate incentives, and to promote career development and
progression by appropriate training and providing opportunities within the
Group for career advancement.

Customers

The Group has the mission to provide excellent and creative customer service
whilst maintain our long-term profitability, business and asset growth. Various
means have been established to strength the communication between the
customers and the Group in the provision of quality customer service towards
market penetration and expansion.

Shareholders

One of our corporate goals of the Group is to enhance corporate value to
shareholders. The Group is poised to foster business developments for
achieving the sustainability of earnings growth and rewarding shareholders by
stable dividend payouts taking into account capital adequacy levels, liquidity
positions and business expansion needs of the Group.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, the Company has maintained the prescribed
public float of not less than 25% of the issued share capital of the Company
pursuant to the Listing Rules and as agreed with the Stock Exchange, based
on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules and considers all the Independent Non-Executive Directors
to be independent.

AUDITOR

The financial statements of the Company for the year have been audited
by PWC which will retire, and being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting. A resolution for the
re-appointment of PWC as auditor of the Company is to be proposed of the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

By order of the Board

Wang Dongkai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2024
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To the Shareholders of China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

BBk EREEREERRAT2BKRE
(REFEZMALZ BRAA])

BR
BIEEZAT

KT ERHNESIAE 248 B Ky H F k3
BMECREIEFRAN(ERF ) REWSB

The consolidated financial statements of China Shuifa Singyes Energy
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which

are set out on pages 83 to 248, comprise: RANEER ) Z2REYBRE - WEYK
HEBIE

. the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December . R-ZZBE-—=F+=-A=+—HBN44EE
2023; BIRRR

. the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then . HEZHIEFENGE2ERER
ended;

. the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then . HEZH EFENGEEREHER
ended;

. the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and . HEZHILFEMNGEABEERER &

. the notes to the consolidated financial statements, comprising material . REMBHRERMTE  BRENSHEER
accounting policy information and other explanatory information. BR R H MR E R o

Our opinion EMMWER

BARR - ZEREUBHRRCBIBRERMS

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view

of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2023, ML ENEEM AR EEER
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows TEC=F+ A=+ —HOEREMBAKRR K
for the year then ended in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards and BEZBIEFENGEUMBRBENGEESN
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements £ WEBRBEBARKICEEREZ AR
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. & o

PEKEEEEREEER QA
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing (“ISAs”). Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International
Independence Standards) issued by the International Ethics Standards Board
for Accountants (“IESBA Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

. Revenue recognition for provision of construction services
o Impairment assessment of trade receivables and contract assets

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023
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Key Audit Matter
FAEEZER

1. Revenue recognition for provision of construction services

FEPESIRTE AVIRNATER

Refer to note 4(i) in critical accounting estimates and
judgements, note 5 to the consolidated financial statements,
and summary of material accounting policies.

BLEE BT RABHI T 4>) - 4RE M SRR FES LA
RERGTHEHRE

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group has
recognised revenue from provision of construction services
of approximately RMB1,671,698,000 based on the progress
towards the complete satisfaction of the Group’s performance
obligations under the respective construction contracts with
customers (the “completion progress”). Management applied
the input method to determine the completion progress which
is measured mainly by reference to the proportion of contract
costs incurred for works performed to date to estimated total
budget construction costs for each contract. The input method
involves the use of significant management’s judgement and
estimates on the total budget construction costs, completion
progress and the remaining costs to completion for each of
the construction projects. In addition, revenue, cost and gross
profit realised from such projects may vary from the Group’s
original estimates because of changes in conditions and
service scope (e.g. variation orders).
BHE_Z_=F+-_A=+—HLFE  EHEHDIR
B EEEERFRITNSEREANETELAEENT
2RERAEE(TIEE ) BARHBBERBBADARE
1,671,698,0007T - ERERMBBNEEETIEE TS
ZRIIEMEENESHRRIERENTEEEERERR
WEBIETE - MAES REREREHSREEANEES
BERA  TTHE RSB T T IRANEXHE R - 1t
G HRNGE R RBHE NS (HINEEETE) - ZFHE
BROWA - AREMNATEE SEENRERAGFAERD
[ o

8

<

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
PARERSEEEZ PR INTEEN

We obtained an understanding of the management’s internal
control and process of revenue recognition for provision
of construction services and assessed the inherent risk of
material misstatement by considering the degree of estimation
uncertainty and level of other inherent risk factors, such as
complexity, subjectivity and susceptibility to management bias
or fraud.

BT BRE IR B A AR ) IR SR AR S A B HE R AR
Fr - WiE@E R T RARARE R R A A Bl @k E & (e
M FEE - BIRERRIMGFRE S RGURMT) MIRE TG
BAREREME A ERR

We evaluated and tested the key controls over the revenue
recognition for provision of construction services.

BP9 BB S R R SE RIS HER AR = BRI I AE

We compared the actual construction costs for projects
(including variation orders) as completed in the current year
with the prior year estimation to assess the effectiveness of
management’s estimation process on a sample basis.
BMEAFETKNIER (BREEEE) WERBENARE
F—FREFHETER - BB ERERTEFNER
M o

We reviewed the construction contracts terms including the
service scope, total price and tested progress billings accepted
by the respective customers on a sample basis.
BMBEHRZES OGN (BERGHEREE) - WdBmEK
AR EPEZNEERE

PEKEEEEREEER QA
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Key Audit Matter
FAREXER

§

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
FAREZSE TSP R INTEEN

1. Revenue recognition for provision of construction services (continued)

TR BRI ATWAERR (&)

We focused on this area due to the magnitude of revenue as
generated from the provision of construction services and
the high degree of estimation uncertainty of management’s
judgements and estimates applied when using the input
method.

AR REREERBAEENBARRERLN - URERELE
FR# ACERE FTRE A 2T RS ST T REEES - MR
MEER L EE -

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited

We tested the actual construction costs as incurred (including
costs material used, labor costs and other costs) by validating
the relevant underlying supporting evidence, such as contracts
with suppliers, salary lists and supplier invoices etc., on a
sample basis.

BMBAMEREAEENNEH  FTHEEREERER
ZRABRE  ARERELENRERN(BFEERHMEK
AN ADRARRHEMAA) o

We performed physical inspection of significant construction
projects and discussed the completion progress of the
construction services with the respective project managers-in-
charge on a sample basis.
BMEEREEBERETEMMRER -
m SRS T TR -

WERIAEBEAME

We checked the mathematical accuracy of the management’s
calculations of (i) the completion progress (calculated based
on the total actual costs incurred to date and the latest total
budget construction costs); and (ii) the amounts of revenue to
be recognised based on the completion progress of different
construction projects.
BMEREERETE () T TEE (REEZEENERELD
R RGN EEAREERATE) » R>NBREBETRESE
T8 B /) 5e T E S TR A SRS EmRMT -

Based on the procedures performed, we considered that the
management’s judgments and estimations used in the revenue
recognition for the Group’s provision of construction services
were supportable by the evidence we have gathered.
ERFTATHRER  BMRATREEY ESERHESER
TEHVU A TSR B 2 i N AT 15 2 R AP P U SR B8 55 o
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Key Audit Matter
FAEEZER
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
PARERSEEEZ PR INTEEN

2. Impairment assessment of trade receivables and contract assets

JEWE BB ERIEEMBIETE

Refer to note 3.1 in financial risk management, note 4(ii) in
critical accounting estimates and judgements, and notes 19
and 21 to the consolidated financial statements, and note
40.12 in summary of material accounting policies.
FELHMBRRBEEMNIEIL B2 RABOM T
A%i) - RERAMIEHRERAMFELIO R 2] - UREBRGFHBORH
LHMFE40.12 ©

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had gross trade
receivables other than the receivables in connection with
unpaid subsidies on tariff adjustment (the “Tariff Subsidy
Receivables”) and gross contract assets of approximately
RMB4,382,553,000 and RMB4,298,243,000, respectively
and the corresponding provisions for impairment losses
as recognised on these assets amounted to approximately
RMB1,019,838,000 and RMB317,494,000, respectively.
RZZEZZF+ZA=+—H  EXEEKESHIELRE
(T ERFERXZ M EEREMAERE RUGKE ([EREE
AL RENBEEEFED K RARE 4,382,553,000 7T & A
R#4,298,243,0007T * Mtz EEERANIBEBMEREES
RIH A AR 1,019,838,000 7T & A R# 317,494,000 7T °

We obtained an understanding of management’s internal
control and the process of assessment of impairment of trade
receivables and contract assets and assessed the inherent
risk of material misstatement by considering the degree
of estimation uncertainty and level of other inherent risk
factors, such as complexity, subjectivity and susceptibility to
management bias or fraud.

B TREREYEWE SFIARE N EERRERNNIE
il R AR - Wik R E BT T AR R R A E B @R
EZ(EHEN - T8  EEERAIBMFNEE R BUX
M) AR ERHE BRI R E A AR -

We understood and tested the management’s key controls over
the impairment assessment of trade receivables and contract
assets.

BATHREEEEEBELNEKE HHIBRENEERER
REVRASHIT BT T iR s -

We performed the following procedures to assess the
recoverability of trade receivables (other than the Tariff Subsidy
Receivables) and contract assets:

B2 MITA TR 7 2R U E 5 508 (B U B E /LR
4N Ra#EERATI DL -
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Key Audit Matter
FAREXER

f T R Kk 38

W

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
FAREZSE TSP R INTEEN

2. Impairment assessment of trade receivables and contract assets (continued)

JEWE BHEREKIEELBIETG (&)

In respect of the Tariff Subsidy Receivables which amounted
to RMB1,722,898,000 as at 31 December 2023, management
considered that the expected credit loss on these receivables is
insignificant, considering the regular settlement from the State
Grid Corporation of China which are funded by the Ministry of
Finance of China and there was no history of default.

R B _=F T _A=T—HOEREEHBEARYK
1,722,898,000 M E - &ZE R o EH BRI E e BB
BRNAIEHAE B MENRS  BRERAZIEUGIE
WIEEEEBIEIT NERX -

Management assessed the impairment of trade receivables
and contract assets based on an assessment of the lifetime
expected credit losses (“ECL”) methodology. The impairment
of individually significant trade receivables and contract assets
were assessed on an individual basis based on management’s
estimates on the discounted future cash flows. Individually
insignificant trade receivables and contract assets balances
were grouped based on their shared credit risk characteristics
for overall evaluation. The collective impairment provision
was determined by management based on historical loss
experience, taking into considerations of forward-looking
macroeconomic data, industry risk and other factors.
EREENH>RBHREEEHE([FRBMEEEE]) 7A8T
R AEERE S HRIBERENEENRE - EREREWRE
SRIEARANEENRENREEEEHURARKESRE
B ETHERIFT L o @R FNEXRNEWE FRIERENEELS
HIBBEEAENEARBFEETOEETERETI® - &
BRERER gﬁ'!élﬁ?fﬁﬁaﬂfﬂéﬂaé%ﬁ e B RAEEE
BROBEUE - ITERRERRETE -
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tested, on a sample basis, the aging of trade receivables
at the year end to supporting evidence;

TS AREOR SR Y & 5 SRR ARG AR SO /6 RE

for trade receivables and contract assets assessed on
an individual basis, we evaluated the appropriateness
of the judgements used by management by examining
of the historical payment supporting evidence, on a
sample basis, and checking the financial position and
creditworthiness of the debtors
HREBTEHNREKESTIRAREHNEE - BMIEBEH
eV EYERNE i%%ﬁu&*ﬁ@ﬁ@ﬁﬁﬂﬁ%ﬂ&
ERMRARHERECR AN EE I

for trade receivables and contract assets assessed on
group basis, we assessed the historical default rate
by considering the payment profile of debtors. We
tested the historical data used in the calculation of the
historical default rate, on a sample basis, to supporting
documents; and

HRAKREAERTHNERKE HFTIERENEE - &
1F33Ei@%ﬁﬁ%}\Eﬁﬁfk'%ﬁ?ﬁé‘%aiﬂ&tﬁﬁ“R o A

HRANFTEATENXNBERBETHENR - UB
A RESRIRE

evaluated management’s assessment of current
conditions and forward-looking factors including the
indices of Gross Domestic Product (GDP) and Consumer
Price Index (CPI) of China based on our understanding
of the client’s industry and with reference to external
data sources.
BERMETPITEN TR 2EINIEERIR - 74
BB ETE AR K R B B A A EE 4R 1B (GDP) $5 8 FIH
BEMERE(CP) FREIER =T -
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Key Audit Matter
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
PARERSEEEZ PR INTEEN

2. Impairment assessment of trade receivables and contract assets (continued)

JEWE ZHEREKIEELREE (&)

We focused on this area due to the magnitude of trade
receivables and contract assets and the high degree of
estimation uncertainty of management’s judgements applied
in assessing the impairment of such balances, and estimates
involved in the impairment assessment for these assets.

HRERESRERESNEENRERER  AREREEN
it Lk KR B ERRL(E RE FIT FE R 9 71 T DA R 5% 55 B EE O ORUE ATk P
BREOEFFESENEEN - HRMEFRUERE -

We performed the following procedures to assess the
recoverability of the Tariff Subsidy Receivables:

BT T AT IR /7 2R AT PR B (B FHRG RO AT W m 1

o discussed with management to understand the nature
and the judgement involved in their determination
that the expected credit loss on the Tariff Subsidy
Receivables;

HERE RN TRESE TR EERNNEREE
B R A K

o checked the approval documents for the Group’s
eligibility to the subsidies;
BE BEEERSHLERNREH

. circulated confirmation letter to the State Grid
Corporation of China to confirm the unpaid balance of
the Tariff Subsidy Receivables; and

M BEEREAR R HER R BREKEE LR
RATEREE - &
. checked the subsequent settlement of the Tariff Subsidy

Receivables on a sample basis.
MRS RN EE R RIENREGHITN -

Based on the procedures performed, we considered that the
management’s impairment assessment of trade receivables
and contract assets was supportable by the evidence we have
gathered.

ERFAITHRRT  BMBREBEHRKESFIBEREL
BENRERHE 2B PIPTUER B BIRE 5 -
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all of the information included in the annual
report other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with IFRS Accounting Standards and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

B AZ AR S

pwec

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
B A% B R

pwec

B RE

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

B AZ AR S

pwec

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Dou Wang, Angel.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 28 March 2024

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023

BREpRE

BAEERABRBRTFENEXBE - KR
i EXERRASEE  eRRMEER
AR R YRR O (E R KR

BPTTRERABRZER  SRARMENS
BB IENRERBEER  WERKREEBM
B EMERREFERIIELIEMRER
REAMEIR - AR AHERREE M RERETTE &
FER B E4E i (TR ©

RHEBARBBNEERT - LIVREBLSE
AR MBRRNBERR/ER
MEKEAREZER - RIS ERBEHRSH
RUELEIR  MEAEER T AFE R SR
TEH AR - AEERFERNOBERT - 58
BIEFAHE RN RE PR BREERM AN
Eﬁ?ﬁ%ﬂ“ﬁﬁiﬂEFEEﬁ’&%ﬂﬁé B
SHELEER T ERETEBZER -

HAARBY B RENETRE ABAER
=5

BERGESEHETEER
B BATAD

B8 —ZE-WNFE=A=-+N\RH



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

a2 E W

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=t+—HLEE

2023 2022
—EBC-=F —E-_—F
Note RMB’000 RMIB'OOO
PEE ARETT AREEFTT
(Restated)
(g&E:%))
Revenue L PN 5 4,360,280 5,146,301
Cost of sales SHE A 6 (3,365,404) (4,021,251)
Gross profit E£H 994,876 1,125,050
Distribution costs DEHFX 6 (44,898) (68,173)
Administrative expenses TR 6 (306,545) (382,313)
Net impairment losses on ERRENEERERE
financial and contract assets FRE (200,300) (137,221)
Other income Hablg A 8 45,307 44,322
Other gains — net E S F R 9 59,402 867
Operating profit EEEF 547,842 582,532
Finance income RE WA 10 27,086 3,155
Finance costs BEERLAR 10 (547,188) (442,780)
Finance costs — net BB KA E R (520,102) (439,625)
Share of net results of associates DI EERE AR &
accounted for using the equity method NEIE 639 1,363
Profit before income tax BRFR S8t puia F1 28,379 144,270
Income tax charge s i 11 (17,650) (36,186)
Profit for the year AEERF 10,729 108,084
Other comprehensive income: Hih 2mErs
ltems that will not be reclassified TRIREEF D EEBER
to profit or loss TH B SNESEE 1 =R
Currency translation differences (16,398) (106,824)
Items that will be reclassified to profitor loss ~ RIEEEFT D IEEIBZH
HH
Changes in fair value of equity BEAVEFEAEE
investments at fair value through gt AR EmEUR
other comprehensive income SRR AN R
FEEE) 79 464
Total other comprehensive loss FEEHMB2EEIEEE
for the year (16,319) (106,360)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income FEERE(EE) M
for the year %8 (5,590) 1,724

TR FFHR PEKEEEEREEARAT
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FEEEWmE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HIL=EE

2023 2022
== —E-—F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BaE ARETT AREFT
(Restated)
(&=E5)
Profit/(loss) attributable to: AT AL EESER (8
8):
Owners of the Company KARHER A (22,743) 43,418
Non-controlling interests JEVERR R 2 33,472 64,666
10,729 108,084
Total comprehensive (loss)/income UTALTEEEE
attributable to: (FB18) Wi -
Owners of the Company ViN/NETE 2N (39,062) (62,942)
Non-controlling interests JEIE R A 33,472 64,666
5,590 1,724
Earnings per share for profit attributable to FERAASHHAELS
owners of the Company during the year BRA(LEBRARESY
(expressed in RMB per share) F5R)
— basic and diluted - EARREE 12 (0.009) 0.017

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should be read VA_E#RE 2 TR S 2% 8 ERRE P B 5 — GBS RE -
in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e BRI R

As at 31 December 2023 R=FE==F+=A=+—H

At 31 December

At 31 December

2023 2022
MR- =% R-TB-—4F
+=-HA=+—H +=—RA=+—8
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BaE AREFT AREFTT
(Restated)
(gE7)
ASSETS &E
Non-current assets EREEE
Property, plant and equipment VI~ BB MRE 14 7,330,572 7,484,448
Right-of-use assets FREEE 15 334,809 381,044
Investment properties "EME 16 334,458 335,182
Intangible assets B EE 17 101,081 106,588
Prepayments BN RE 45,593 93,451
Deferred tax assets BRI IEE E 31 339,761 312,947
Investments accounted for using the AR EARNRE
equity method 3,439 2,801
Equity investment designated at fair value ~ 18E AR AFEFEH
through other comprehensive income HEHALMEMA
W RIEE 38,366 23,567
8,528,079 8,740,028
Current assets RENEE
Inventories wE 18 71,084 80,106
Contract assets BREE 19 3,980,749 3,904,782
Trade and bills receivables EUE 558 & EINE
B 21 5,091,689 4,494,348
Prepayments, other receivables TERTFRIE  HfhREUGR
and other assets HEREMEE 22 1,978,022 1,344,179
Financial assets at fair value BAFEFEEEEE
through profit or loss SFABENESREE 5,753 6,469
Pledged deposits HEIRTF K 23 99,793 336,877
Cash and cash equivalents Re MREEEY 23 1,883,283 493,545
13,110,373 10,660,306
Total assets EEAE 21,638,452 19,400,334
EQUITY KL
Equity attributable to owners EATHE AELELS
of the Company
Share capital A& 24 174,333 174,333
Reserves Ei 26 2,251,344 2,243,325
Retained earnings REBEF 1,892,481 1,939,899
4,318,158 4,357,557
Non-controlling interests eI AE = 1,090,588 1,103,812
Total equity HEES4REE 5,408,746 5,461,369

EER
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e AR &

As at 31 December 2023 R=F==F+=A=+—H

At 31 December At 31 December

2023 2022
R-B-=% RZE-_—F
+=HA=+—H +=—A=+—8
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BaE ARETTT AREFT
(Restated)
(=75)
LIABILITIES B
Non-current liabilities JEREEE
Borrowings e 29 5,056,324 5,448,610
Bonds payables &S 30 50,450 75,500
Lease liabilities HEAE 15 65,905 116,057
Deferred tax liabilities BEMBHARE 31 105,724 106,961
Deferred income RIEUA 32 155,307 167,141
5,433,710 5,914,269
Current liabilities RENEE
Trade and bills payables ENESFEREMNE
K 27 3,338,108 3,102,262
Other payables and accruals H A FE FRE R EETER
18 28 3,312,961 2,013,245
Borrowings BE 29 2,352,196 2,411,518
Bonds payables FERIH &SR 30 1,507,182 =
Contract liabilities ARAE 5(d) 105,073 349,902
Income tax payable ETPTSEE 154,667 142,056
Lease liabilities HEaE 15 25,809 5,713
10,795,996 8,024,696
Total liabilities BEEE 16,229,706 13,938,965
Total equity and liabilities EREERERE 21,638,452 19,400,334

The above consolidated statement of financial position should be read in LA 474 BATE AR S 3R FE R BB B BT 5 — RS -
conjunction with the accompanying notes.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 83 to 248 were approved by FRREUSEMGAEMBEHRERCEARARAE
the Board of Directors of the Company on 28 March 2024 and were signed EFEER_ZE-_MF=/ -+ /\BHELHUT

on its behalf. ATREEE -
Mr. Wang Dongkai Mr. Zhou Guangyan
EFRISAE AEERE
Director Director
EE EE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

mEEREHR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE—ZT-_=F+_-_A=+—RHIFE

Fair value
resenve
offinancial
assets at
fair value
throughother ~ Statutory  Enterprise Share Safety  Exchange Non-
Issued Capital Merger ~ Contributed comprehensive feserie  expansion option ~ fund surplus  fluctuation  Retained controlling
capita resene Tesere surplus income fund fund Teserve resene Tesene profits Total interests Tl equity
HATER
BEEEH
itARf2
Tty
it 8\ SHERY R ORER 0 BEE  zREe  ENRD 8 E3 i
BEfRE  BAEE fife Bt ATEHE i i B EREE fife i it i 48
RMB'000  RMB'OO0  RMB'000  RMB'OO0  RMB'000  RMB'OO0  RMBO00  RMB'OO0  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT  ARETR  ARRTR ARBTR  ARETR ARRTR ARBTR  ARETR ARMTR ARBTR ARETR ARMTR ARETR  ARETR

At 1 January 2023 R-§-=E-R-B 174333 1949456 (57,982) 48,035 (10359) 392512 115,969 56,619 - (250925 1939899 4357557 1103812 5461369
Proft for the year K5 - - - - - - - - - - ) @M B 1072
Other comprehensive income KEREMAENG

Torthe year:

Changes n fair value of equity BATEEARS
insrumens t fir vale tiough A2 AR
aher comprehiensive ncome, net o HERTANATE

fax Pl - - - - 7 - - - - - - 7 - 7
Eichange dferences on bansition ~~ EBEERNES 28

offinancial statements - - - - - - - - - (16,398) - (16,398) - (16,398)

Tota comprehensive income for he year - A B2 A EE - - - - Ji o - - - (16398) (274 (39062) 33472 (5,590)

Captal inection by ron-<onroling.—~—— BAZBEARER TS

interests of subsidleries - - - - - - - - - - - - 39995 39,995
Disposalof subsiaries EEMT Al o o o a o o a o o a o - (66802 (66,802)
Transectonwith non-contoling nterest  ~FEPBATFARER

ofa Subsidiary (ﬂx% - - - - - - - - - - - - (1898  (1,898)
quitysefted shere opfion amrangement B E 2 BRERH - - - - - - - 337) - - - (337) - (31
Distrbution to non-controling bl 111NV 224

interests of a subsidiary B - - - - - - - - - - - - (17991 (17991
Transfer to contrbuted surplus T8\ By - - - - - U 5 - - - (u6m) - - -
Estalishment forsaety fund suplus— RURZESRRGE

Tesene - - - - - - - B ALY E VAT - - -
Utlsaton of safey fund surglus esene. - BER2ESBHGE - - - - - - - B (VAT VA c o 5
At 31 December 2023 RoBoZEZAZT-B 14333 194945 (57982 48,035 (10,280) 417187 115969 56,282 - (267323) 10892481 4318158 1,090,588 508,746

A5 S gn

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read in LA_E4R At a B B 2R B BRE P B SE— 01 BB
conjunction with the accompanying notes.

o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

GARREBHE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #E=—ZE=_=F+=-A=+—HIFE

Fair value
Tesene
of inancia
assefsat
fair value
throughother ~ Statutoy ~ Enterprise Share Safely  Exchange Non-
Issted Caplal Merger  Contributed compreensive fesene  expansion opton ~ fundsurplus~ fluctuaion ~ Retained controling
capital Tesene TESere surplus ncome fund fund Tesene Tesene TEServe profts Total inferests ~ Total equity
ML &S
At #A R ¢¥%%E Bl nefe ﬁwiﬁ 2 R i
BEARE  AXER i B4 i B RAGE i) it s g

Noie  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBOOO  RMBO RMB’OOB RMBOOO RMBOOO  RMBOOD RMBOOO RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RWBO
W ARETT ARBTT ARMTR  ARETR ARETR ARMTR  ARETR ARETR  ARETR  ARBTR ARETR  ARBTR ARMTR  ARETR

At 1 January 2022 R-§-ok-R
(Previously reported) -B(%a248) 17438 200143 (57.982) 8252 (183) 38493 11599 5,32 - (97189) 1785081 43773711 04628 4681999
Business combination under EEENHTZER
common control A 36 - - - - - - - - - - 71541 7154 127169 204710
At 1 January 2022 (Restated) R=§-2k-A
- (&) 17438 200143 (57.982) 8252 (183) 3493 11599 5,32 - (97189) 1862622 4454912 81797 4886709
Proitfor theyear RERRT) B _ B . _ - - - = - B4 B48 eApt6 108084
Other comprehensive income KEEEMREN
forthe year: &
Chnges in fair vlue of equiy BLTEER
insiruments at ar vl through ABEHA
ather comprehensive income, netof  E2ENE
for HESTEH
ATERY
EHE - - = = 4o - - - - = - 464 = 464
Exchange dferences on bansitin ~ EBEERH
offinancialstaements EXEE - - - - - - - - - (15373%) - (1%73%) - (18373%)
Toal comprehensive income forthe year - A5 E 2 Al
g - - - - o4 - - - - (18373 8348 (10984 04,666 45,188)
Caplel necton by roncortroling.~—— FEEERBGEEE
interests - - - - - - - - - - 413% 413% 582,761 624,159
Dispose of subsares HEHEL B _ _ ) _ B} B - - B ET) [
Aoquistion of subsideries EnaEna , , , , . - - - - = = s 84 84
Transacton with non-contoling inerests E—EHBA A
of asubsidiry ThEasRs - (B8 - - - - - - - - - %) Bl =
Distution o non-contrling ART-FHEL
inerests of a Subsidiry A FaRiEs - - - - - - - - = = = - B0 B0
Tanster to cortrbuted surplus EEAAR B , _ _ _ 759 _ _ , _ 75%9) _ _ .
Dettcomerin A - - - - = - - - = - R 10
Transfer from share premium zcoount - EBERHEEE - ~ : B B : R B B} R R ,
2021 firaldividend pid 5o
AHRE 3 - - - B - - - = - - - ) - B
Etablishmentfor safetyfund surplus~ RUR2ESEH
TEServe i = - - - - - - 1297 90198 - (90,19) 1297 - 197
Utisaion ofsfelyund supls esene - B2 54EH
G = = = = = = = - (%0,198) - 90198 - - -
At31 December 2022 Restated) ~ W=F-ZE+Z
R=t+-A(88
) 174333 194945 (57.982) 803 (1039 32512 11599 56,619 - (509%) 1939899 43757 1103812 5461369

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read in VA_E#r A s B Eh 3% e LR FT BT 5 — O BRE -
conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS
Eﬁ:ﬁ/)lbi%

n‘/T\

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_-ZT - =

Fr-A=t—RLEFE

Year ended 31 December

BFE+-A=+—HILLEE

2023 2022
—EF-= T —F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Lk ARETT AREFIT
(Restated)
(g =%))
Cash flows from operating activities: KETRBABRESRE
Cash generated from operations KEEBMBRS 34(a) 240,339 600,662
Income tax paid EPRSH (54,800) (63,450)
Net cash generated from operating activities &2 GBS FRE 185,539 537,212
Cash flows from investing activities: REFRBABRERE
Payment for acquisition of subsidiary, WREMT B A R (FBRERE
net of cash acquired )R (20,000) (182,308)
Payments for property, plant and equipment 9% - iR= & RE K (735,651) (862,608)
Purchase of intangible assets BEEFEE (44) (609)
Payments for leasehold land HE TR (4,380) (11,038)
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries HEH B R RS HIE 15,474 (157)
Payments for financial assets at fair value & AF{EFH8 B E &85t
through other comprehensive income AHEAM2E R S E
BE 21,180 (16,000)
Proceeds from sale of property, HEWE - ME &EE
plant and equipment BRIAE 18,468 5,954
Repayment of loans by related parties EEERTHEES 71,300 141,037
Interest received U B &8, 16,338 =
Payment of loans to related parties YHERTREES (97,055) (346,763)
Proceeds from sale of financial assets at HERAFEFEBESE
fair value through other comprehensive FEr AL EEmK =R
income SREEMSHIA 466 2,000
Payment of financial assets at fair value BAER 28 EZ8E
through other comprehensive income AEM 2SS
BEMK (10) -
Payment of loans to third parties BEBRTE=H (371,481) (107,774)
Repayment of loans by third parties FE-HEERER 119,436 39,247
Decrease/(Increase) in balance of BERFERESRRLD (3
pledged deposits pil1}) 237,084 (315,057)
Net cash used in investing activities KEESAFRS (728,875) (1,654,076)
ZECSFFR PEKBEEEREEFRAR]
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

an\ IE%/)ILE%

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #E=—ZE=_=F+=-A=+—HIFE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HIL=EE

2023 2022
—E'== —Eo—F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
kg ARETR AREFT
(Restated)
(FgE51)
Cash flows from financing activities: BRERHABRESRE
Capital injection by a non-controlling —RI B A AR IEEAR i
interest of a subsidiary =EE 39,995 624,161
Proceeds from bonds payables FEfHEH PR F0R 1,497,750 81,500
Proceeds from borrowings BEEMSHAE 3,027,760 4,342,081
Proceeds from loans from related parties RAEE 5 B ATS F0E 2,817,353 1,228,050
Redemption of senior notes fEEELAER - (1,593,424)
Redemption of the bonds payable fEEERES (25,050) (6,000)
Repayments of borrowings BEEE (3,358,865) (1,933,878)
Repayments of loans from related parties BB HER (1,723,238) (1,525,331)
Principal elements of lease payments HENRAEEH (13,568) (3,406)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests {5 FIEIEREZS RIILE (14,579) (3,480)
Dividends paid 2k E - (45,217)
Interest paid EIRF & (315,357) (300,017)
Net cash generated from financing activities && & ENFT1SIR & F58 1,932,201 865,039
Increase/(Decrease) in cash and cash RERRESEYIEMN 1,388,865 (251,825)
equivalents CR)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FUHeRREEEY
of the year 493,545 740,572
Effects of exchange rate changes on HNIE B SR B B IR & K IR
cash and cash equivalents EEYHTE 873 4,798
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year ~ FRIEESRIRESEEY 23 1,883,283 493,545

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in
conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR MY et

For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE—ZT—_=F+=-A=+—HItFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated as an exempted company with limited liability in Bermuda
on 24 October 2003. The registered office of the Company is located
at 4th Floor, North Cedar House, 41 Cedar Avenue, Hamilton, HM12,
Bermuda. The principal place of business of the Company is located at
Unit 3108, 31st Floor, China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 168-
200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) were principally engaged in the design, manufacture, supply
and installation of conventional curtain walls, wind farm construction
and building integrated solar photovoltaic systems, as well as the
manufacture and sale of solar power products in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”). There were no significant changes in the nature
of the Group’s principal activities during the year.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company (the “Directors”), the
immediate holding company, intermediate holding company and
ultimate holding company of the Company are Water Development (HK)
Holding Co., Ltd., which is incorporated in Hong Kong, Shuifa Energy
Group Limited (KEEREREB AR AT, “Shuifa Energy”), which is
incorporated in the PRC, and Shuifa Group Co., Ltd UkBEEBEHRE R
&], “Shuifa Group”), which is incorporated in the PRC, respectively.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB”) unless otherwise stated. These consolidated financial
statements have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors of
the Company on 28 March 2024.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IR MY aE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

2. FEETBOREE

RENEAV B REMEANERER
BOR#SIMNT - BRIFXAETA - BRI
ERRCERBERNAEZWMFE

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation 2.1 RREHE

92

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable IFRS Accounting Standards
(“IFRS”) and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance Cap. 622. These consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by certain equity investments and
financial assets which have been measured at fair value.

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements
in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements, are disclosed
in note 4.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR MY et

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(a)

Business combination under common control

On 9 December 2022, Hunan Shuifa Singyes Green
Energy Co., Ltd. (“Hunan Green Energy”), an indirect
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
an equity transfer agreement with Shuifa Clean Energy
Technology Co., Ltd (“Shuifa Clean Energy”), a company
controlled by the ultimate holding company, Shuifa Group.
Pursuant to the equity transfer agreement, Hunan Green
Energy agreed to subscribe for 105,613,100 new shares
of Shuifa Clean Energy, representing 51% equity holding
in Shuifa Clean Energy, at an aggregate subscription
price of RMB503,774,500 (equivalent to approximately
HK$569,265,185). The transaction was completed on 29
March 2023.

The Company, Hunan Green Energy and Shuifa Clean
Energy are all under the control of Shuifa Group before
and after the above transaction. Therefore, the above
transaction was accounted for as business combinations
under common control using the principles of merger
accounting. The financial statements of Shuifa Clean
Energy have been included in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements as if the acquisition had occurred
from the date when the ultimate controlling shareholder
first obtained control. Therefore, the opening balances
and the comparative figures of the consolidated financial
information of the Group as at 31 December 2022 and for
the year ended 31 December 2022 have been restated.

2. EEEFBOREIE(E)

2.1 RWEE(E)

(a)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B FE ¥R MY RE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(b)

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited

Disposal of subsidiaries

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group
disposed various subsidiaries, of which the below two were
the major ones:

On 28 June 2023, Tongyu Gaodengsai Electric Power Co.,
Ltd. (“Tongyu Gaodengsai”) an indirect non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into an equity transfer
agreement with Qingdao Chengtai Green Energy Co.,
Ltd. (“Chengtai Green Energy”), a third party company,
pursuant to which Tongyu Gaodengsai disposed its 100%
equity interests in Tongyu Qiangfeng Power Co., Ltd., an
indirect wholly owned subsidiary of Tongyu Gaodengsai
to Chengtai Green Energy at cash consideration of
RMB67,000,000 included in “Prepayments, other
receivables and other assets”. At the date of disposal of
28 June 2023, the total assets and net assets of Tongyu
Qiangfeng Power Co., Ltd. were RMB840,201,000 and
RMB51,096,000 respectively. The Group derived a gain of
RMB15,904,000 from the disposal, which was recorded
in “Other gains — net”.

Annual Report 2023
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR MY et

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(b)

Disposal of subsidiaries (Continued)

On 28 October 2023, Zhuhai Jiudui New Energy
Technology Co., Ltd. (“Zhuhai Jiudui”) (formerly known
as “Shuifa Singyes Energy Supply Chain (Zhuhai) Co.,
Ltd”), an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a capital increase agreement
with the non-controlling shareholder, Shanghai Jiudui
New Energy Technology Co., Ltd.(“Jiudui New Energy”),
pursuant to which Jiudui New Energy increased equity
interests to 90% in Zhuhai Jiudui, at a cash consideration
of RMB82,000,000 injection to Zhuhai Jiudui. At the
date of disposal of 28 October 2023, the total assets and
net assets of Zhuhai Jiudui. were RMB113,670,000 and
RMB5,848,000 respectively. The Group derived a gain of
RMB10,298,000 from the disposal, which was recorded
in “Other gains — net”.

The Group derived in aggregate a gain of RMB19,669,000
(2022: Nil) from disposal of subsidiaries during the year
ended 31 December 2023 (Note 9).

2. EEEFBOREIE(E)

2.1 RWEE(E)

(b)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IR MY aE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE =T —_=F+=-A=+—HItFE

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 2. XEEFBREME(B)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 2.1 RREE(E)
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures 211 ZIEERRFEEZE)

(@) New and amended standards adopted for the
current reporting period

A number of new or amended standards became
applicable for the current reporting period. The
Group did not make retrospective adjustments as a
result of adopting these standards.

(a)

N3R5 BRFE AR AN O
7] R ARIERT A

TR SERTE
A@ AR AR & 8
] o 7N B 3 S 3R
Mz SRR MELE
HAE -

Effective for annual
periods beginning

Standards and amendments  Key requirements on or after

RUTE#sZ
A RAETAE EEHE B EERE AN
IFRS 17 Insurance contracts 1 January 2023

BIBR B TS ¥R 2E RS 17 5% RERA K

IAS 8 (Amendments) Definition of Accounting Estimates

B e ERIER(ERIA) ErtEFTMER

IAS 12 (Amendments) Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction
BIpR & s RIS 1258 HELBE - SNEERABIERLY
(fEETA) EEIE
IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Disclosure of Accounting Policies

Statement 2 (Amendments)
B ERE 1R RER SBROESR
R EENERRES

258 (IBFTAN)
IAS 12 (Amendments) International Tax Reform — Pillar Two
Model Rules
BIFR ST ERIZE 1257 BB E — ST RAEAR
({&3TA)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR MY et

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (Continued)

(b)

New or amended standards and interpretations not
yet adopted

Certain new or amended accounting standards
have been published that are not mandatory for the
year ended 31 December 2023 and have not been
early adopted by the Group. The Group has already
commenced an assessment of the impact of these
new standards or amendments, certain of which are
relevant to the Group’s operation. These standards
are not expected to have a material impact on the
Group in the current or future reporting periods and
on foreseeable future transactions.

Standards and amendments  Key requirements

A R AERT FEEXK

2. EEEFBOREIE(E)

2.1 RWEE(E)

211 BiBRRBELE ()

(b)

i R BR AN 2 #TAT A
CHESI &

AN B I R 1R R AN
REBEEZZT==F
+-—A=+—HILF
S B M08 & R 54
HERREE TR ET SR
BRI TR - K&
BT hZES
HRISHEFTRE -
He g FaREE
KEBR o ZEER
g HASEE
AT SR 2R ¥ B
LA R ¥9 7] R AR A 22
SEEEATE -

Effective for annual
periods beginning
on or after

RUTE#SZ

1&FAMERY F EHIR AN

IAS 1 (Amendments)

Classification of Liabilities as

Current or Non-current

RERTERE 1R (IEFT )

IAS 1 (Amendments)
Bl &t R 198
({83T)

HBRED B AR HIERB

Non-current liabilities with covenants

MARENIFERBAE

1 January 2024

—E-mFE—HF—H

1 January 2024
—ZE_WFE-A—H
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IR MY aE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 2. FEEBEBECE)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 2.1 RREE(E)
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (Continued) 211 BHKENFESE(F)
(b) New and amended standards and interpretations (b) EARERZ TR
not yet adopted (Continued) 1BRT2ER 3208 (48)

Effective for annual
periods beginning

Standards and amendments  Key requirements on or after
RUTE#=SZ
E 31D 3CH) EFEER EREMERRRAEN
IFRS 16 (Amendments) Lease liability in sale and leaseback 1 January 2024
BB mERAFEL6H BREADNEEEE —E_WFE—-A—H
(BETA)
IAS 21 (Amendments) Lack of Exchangeability 1 January 2025
REEERIE 2157 Bz A Kt —E-RF—-H—H
(BRTA)
IFRS 7 and IAS 7 Supplier Finance Arrangements 1 January 2024
(Amendments)
BIFR B R 5 RIE 7R R HEEEIE 28 —ZE_WF-A—H
et ERET75R(E
HEN)
IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between To be determined
(Amendments) an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture
BRI B EE 105 R  REEZHARE QRN ERE ZHr s

£
BRTERE 285k (1EFTA) BEHERIEA
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR MY et

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market

risk (including foreign exchange risk, fair value interest rate risk and

cash flow interest rate risk), credit risk, and liquidity risk. The Group’s

overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of

financial market and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the

Group’s financial performance.

3.1 Financial risk factors

(a)  Market risk

(M)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group’s subsidiaries mainly operates in the
PRC with functional currency as RMB. Foreign
exchange risk arises from commercial transactions
and recognised assets and liabilities including
cash and cash equivalents, borrowings, and other
payables and accruals denominated in USD and
HKD which are not the functional currency of the
relevant group entities.

As at 31 December 2023, if USD has strengthened/
weakened by 5% against RMB, with all other
variables held constant, the profit before income
tax for the year would have been approximately
RMB11,012,000 (2022: RMB45,527,000) lower/
higher, mainly due to foreign exchange gains/losses
on translation of USD denominated cash and cash
equivalents and borrowings.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

3.

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a)

Market risk (Continued)

0

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

As at 31 December 2023, if HKD has strengthened/
weakened by 5% against RMB, with all other
variables held constant, the profit before income
tax for the year would have been approximately
RMB22,506,000 (2022: RMB25,722,000) lower/
higher, mainly due to HKD denominated cash and
cash equivalents, borrowings, and trade receivables
as well as trade payables.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group’s income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in market
interest rates. The Group’s interest-rate risk arises
from borrowings. Borrowings obtained at variable
rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate
risk. Borrowings obtained at fixed rates expose the
Group to fair value interest rate risk. Details of the
Group’s borrowings have been disclosed in Note 29.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 &

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

B2-FE—

=Ft+-A=+—HItFE

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a)  Market risk (Continued)

3.

(i) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk (Continued)

As at 31 December 2023, if interest rates on

borrowings at variable rates had been 100 basis

points higher/lower with all other variables held

constant, the profit before income tax for each year
would have been approximately RMB74,085,000
(2022: RMB67,659,000) lower/higher, mainly as a
result of higher/lower interest expense on floating

rate borrowings.

(b)  Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk in relation to its cash

and cash equivalents, financial assets at fair value through

other comprehensive income, contract assets, trade

receivables and other receivables. The carrying amounts

of cash and cash equivalents, contract assets, trade

receivables and other receivables represent the Group’s

maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financial

assets.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)  Credit risk (Continued)

Credit risk on trade debtors is managed by the
management of the individual business units and
monitored by the Group’s management on a group basis.
Most customers are sizable and renowned. Management
assesses the credit quality of smaller customers by
considering their financial position, past experience
therewith and other relevant factors. The utilisation of

credit limits is regularly monitored.

(i) Credit risk of cash and cash equivalents

To manage this risk arising from bank balances,
the Group primarily transacts with reputable
banks which are all high-credit-quality financial
institutions. There has no recent history of default in
relation to these financial institutions. The expected

credit loss is close to zero.

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Credit risk of financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income

All of the Group’s financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income are
considered to have low credit risk because they
have a low risk of default and the issuer has a
strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow
obligations in the near term.

Credit risk of trade receivables and contract assets

The Group has trade receivables and contract assets
for provision of services or sales of goods subject to
the expected credit loss model on adoption of IFRS 9.

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach
to measuring expected credit losses which uses
a lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade
receivables and contract assets.

3. MBEREER(E)
3.1 MBEBRER(E)

(b)
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE =T —_=F+=-A=+—HItFE

3.

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

(iii)

Credit risk of trade receivables and contract assets
(Continued)

Management assessed the impairment of trade
receivables and contract assets based on expected
credit losses methodology. The impairment of
individually significant trade receivables and
contract assets were assessed on an individual
basis based on management’s estimates of the
discounted future cash flows. Individual insignificant
trade receivables and contract assets balances were
grouped based on their credit risk characteristics
for overall evaluation. The collective impairment
provision was determined by management based on
historical loss experience, taking into considerations
of forward-looking macroeconomic data, industry
risk and other circumstances.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade
receivables and contract assets have been grouped
based on their credit risk characteristics for overall
evaluation. The contract assets relate to unbilled
work in progress and have substantially the same
risk characteristics as the trade receivables for the
same types of contracts. The Group has therefore
concluded that the expected loss rates for trade
receivables are a reasonable approximation of the
loss rates for the contract assets.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

(iii)

Credit risk of trade receivables and contract assets
(Continued)

The expected loss rates are based on the payment
profiles of sales over a period of 60 months (5
years) before the balance sheet date and the
corresponding historical credit losses experienced
within this period. The historical loss rates are
adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking
information on macroeconomic factors affecting the
ability of the customers to settle the receivables.
The Group has identified the CPl and GDP to be the
most relevant factors, and accordingly adjusts the
historical loss rates based on expected changes in
these factors.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had
receivables of RMB1,722,898,000 relating to tariff
subsidy receivables. The expected credit loss of
these receivables is insignificant as continuous
settlements were noted and there was no history of
default. The settlement of these subsidies are paid
by the State Grid Corporation of China or China
Southern Power Grid Company and funded by the
Ministry of Finance of China.

3. MBEREER(E)
3.1 MBEBRER(E)

(b)

1=EEE (&)

(iii)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B FE ¥R MY RE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z —Z —

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

=F+-A=+—HItFE

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

(ii) ~ Credit risk of trade receivables and contract assets

(Continued)

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had trade
receivables (excluding tariff subsidy receivables)
and contract assets amounting to approximately
RMBA4,382,553,000 (note 21) and RMB4,298,243,000
(note 19), respectively. Provisions for impairment
of approximately RMB1,019,838,000 and
RMB317,494,000 were recognised on the trade
receivables (excluding tariff subsidy receivables) and

contract assets, respectively.

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited
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3. MBERER(E)
3.1 MBEBRER(E)

(b)

=EEE (&)

(iii)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR MY et

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

3. MBERER(E)
3.1 MBEBRER(E)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)  Credit risk (Continued) (b) (EEEE (&)
(iii)  Credit risk of trade receivables and contract assets (i) MEREZFERED
(Continued) BEMEERR (B)

The loss allowance as at 31 December 2023 RZEBEZZFR=ZF

and 2022 was determined as follows for trade ——E+-A=+—
receivables (excluding tariff subsidy receivables) ARERE S B
and contract assets: (TBErRKEEM
B RENEEEE
B EE AT
Trade receivables Within 181 to
31 December 2023 180 days 365days lto2year 2to3year Over 3 year Total
EKESNE 1810F
Z¥-ZETZA=1-H 1808/ 365H -EWE ME=E ZENE it
Expected loss rate kil gz 2.04% 2.93% 4.94% 36.74% 49.94% 23.27%
Gross carrying amount FEEE
- trade receivables -8B SREYGUE
(RMB'000) (AREFT) 1,049,207 376,342 967,522 408105 1581377 4,382,553
Loss allowance (RMB'000) &8 HHE
(ARETL) (21,401) (11,038) @7776)  (149921)  (789,702) (1,019,838

—E=HEFR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B FE ¥R MY RE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)  Credit risk (Continued)

(ii) ~ Credit risk of trade receivables and contract assets

3. MBEEER(E)
3.1 HEERER(E)
(b) (EEmR ()

(i) MEREZHREREHD

(Continued) BENEERR (&)

31 December 2022 Within 181to
(Restated) 180 days 36bdays 1to2year  2to3year  Over3year Total
“Z--%+-fA=1-H 181HZ
(mE3)) 180B 3%5H  —EWE BERZF ZFNE &5t
Expected loss rate kil oy ok 2.85% 4.78% 1847% 18.10% 51.02% 2.77%
Gross carrying amount REEE

~ trade receivables -BoRKE

(RMB'000) (ARETT) 912,959 891,784 531,026 410608 1,360,004 4,106,381
Loss allowance (RMB000) BB %

(ARETTT) (25998)

(42,603) (98,054) (74337)  (693,893)  (934,885)

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR MY et

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3. MBEEER(E)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 HAHEMEEAR(E)
(b)  Credit risk (Continued) (b) EEEREE)
(i) Credit risk of trade receivables and contract assets (i) BWESHEREL
(Continued) BENEERR (B)

Contract assets

31 December 2023 Within credit terms
BHEE
—T-=#+-_fF=+—H RIEEHR
Expected loss rate TEHRES AR 7.39%
Gross carrying amount IREB%E - G0NEE

— contract assets (RMB’000) (ARETFT) 4,298,243
Loss allowance (RMB’000) EERE(ARETT) (317,494)
31 December 2022 (Restated) Within credit terms
ZEF+ZA=+—HEEHN) MMEE R
Expected loss rate TEHRES IR R 5.83%
Gross carrying amount IREB%E - GNEE

— contract assets (RMB’000) (AR®TT) 4,146,431
Loss allowance (RMB’000) EERE(ARETIT) (241,649)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IR MY aE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)  Credit risk (Continued)

(iii)

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited

Credit risk of trade receivables and contract assets

(Continued)

The loss allowances for trade receivables and

contract assets as at 31 December is reconciled to

the opening loss allowances as follows:

3. MBERER(E)

3.1 MBERERE(E)

(b) EEmmE (&)

(iii)

EWE S ARAK
BEEMNEERR(B)

FEWE IR R A K
EERT-_A=1+—
BH BB EHEEY)
B 18 % 5 19 ¥ B 40
T

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HIL=EE

2023 2022
== —E-_F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFT
(Restated)
(&E5)
Trade receivables and JEWE SFIEREHNEE
contract assets
Opening loss allowance R—RA—HWFEEE
at 1 January B fs 1,176,534 1,039,627
Provision for impairment BB REEE
losses 186,924 136,907
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR (26,126) —
Closing loss allowance R+—A=+—H&FX
at 31 December EERE 1,337,332 1,176,534
Trade receivables and contract assets are written KRB SHHIEREL
off where there is no reasonable expectation of BENEESIETEH

recovery.

Annual Report 2023
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR MY et

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3. MBEBEER(E)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 MBEEEE (&)
(b)  Credit risk (Continued) b) EEERE)
(iv)  Credit risk of other receivables (iv) HEKRFENEE
el

Other financial assets at amortised cost

The loss allowance for other financial assets at
amortised cost as at 31 December reconciles to the
opening loss allowance as follows:

R SRS AR Y E
hEREE

R+—A=+—8#&%
HSHR AT BR A HoAth
S REEEBEER
FUIGERENEE
W

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HL=EE

2023 2022
—EC-=F B4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFT
(Restated)
(E5)
Other receivables Hfth pE U SR E
Opening loss allowance K—A— BOFEVESIBEE
at 1 January 109,950 109,636
Increase in the allowance FARN BT ERNEE
recognised in profit or loss N
during the year 13,376 314
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR (10,132) —
Closing loss allowance R+=—A=+—H&FXK
at 31 December EERE 113,194 109,950

TR FFHR PEKEEEEREEARAT

111



112

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B FE ¥R MY RE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

3.

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining
sufficient cash and cash equivalent and the availability of
funding through an adequate amount of committed credit
facilities. The Group aims to maintain flexibility in funding
by keeping committed credit lines available.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Group’s
liquidity reserve on the basis of expected cash flow.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities
into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
period from the balance sheet date to the contractual
maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows.

Annual Report 2023
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(c)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR MY et

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3. MBREMREE(E)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 MBEBER (&)
(c)  Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) mEBELER (&)
Within 1 year 1-2 years 2-5years Over 5 years Total

-k -EWE WERF  AFUL L)
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTLE ARBTR AR®TR AREBTRT ARETR

At 31 December 2023 RZZE_=F
+ZA=1+-H

Borrowings (including interest & (RIEEFFIS)

payable) 2,683,258 1,122,047 2,610,968 2,405,758 8,822,031
Bonds payable (including interest [Ef &% (BIEEMFIE)

payable) 1,712,536 54,486 - - 1,767,022
Lease liabilties BEAR 26,315 2,294 33,440 33,162 95,211
Trade and bills payables EREFTARENEE 3,338,108 = = - 3,338,108
Other payables and accruals Hf R uE R B FR 2,699,421 = = - 2,699,421
Total it 10,459,638 1,178,827 2,644,408 2,438,920 16,721,793
At 31 December 2022 (Restated) R=-E-—#+-A=+—H

(=51)

Borrowings (including interest 5 & (BHEEMFIE)

payable) 2,798,79% 1456861 2447781 2612506 9,315,944
Bonds payable (including interest  FE( &% (BLEMERFIS)

payable) 6,040 6,040 79,946 - 92,026
Lease liabilities HEBR 20,518 28,772 10,369 64,770 124,429
Trade and bills payables ERESTERENRE 3,102,262 - - - 3102262
Other payables and accruals Hf MR ER R 1,490,970 = = - 1490970
Total it 7418586 1491673 253809 2677276 14,125,631
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IR MY aE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

3. BBERER (&)
3.2 EXEEER

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce
debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors
capital on the basis of the net debt to total capital ratio. This
ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt
is calculated as bonds payables, total borrowings, amount
due to related parties and lease liabilities less cash and cash
equivalents and pledged deposits. Total capital is calculated as
‘total equity’ as shown in the consolidated statements of financial
position plus net debt.

The gearing ratios at 31 December 2023 and 2022 were as

FEBEERERERRRER
SERELENE  EMARK
REBHLBR R BEMR D ERMH
Mgt WHEFREBERNEBIAR
EEAREA -

RERFXRAEERERE  ~&E
AREEHEXMN TERRNKRES
B MRERREEAR BT
HHEBEARDE

BEENEMAR - AEER
BEEBEAEALXRERE
AR o LR AT R ARE AT
H- FEBRENES  BF
- ENEBOFEREEAR
BMERE MRS EEY RS ER
R E - RERNRGE PR
MRFTEI6 [ 48K | IFES

follows: A=+—BMERLENT :
As at 31 December
BR+=-A=+—H
2023 2022
—E-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFTT
(Restated)
(geE5)
Net debt FETE 9,332,081 8,340,425
Total equity B 5,408,746 5,461,369
Total capital 1B 14,740,827 13,801,794
The net debt to total capital ratio FES BB AL X 63% 60%

The gearing ratio of the Group remains fairly stable.

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR MY et

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3. MBEMEEE(E)
3.3 Fair value estimation 3.3 AF{EEET

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair
value by valuation method. The different levels have been
defined as follows:

. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities (level 1).

. Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
(that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from
prices) (level 2).

. Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level
3).

TRARBBERERATFES
ENERITEDH - TRERED
EERWT -

s HRBEXRENEZETS
MIRE CREHE) (F—E
) -

. BEEE—ERERE (A
ERER) kM (B E
RIS ) BRABHEENK
B ERE AN A IR
(B=E®H) -

o WIHRENABERMBSHEN
BEEXAERARE (BT
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AR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B FE ¥R MY RE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z —Z —

=F+-A=t+—AILFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

3. MBEBEER(E)
3.3 AFEMGE (&)

The fair value measurements by level of the fair value BAFEFEERSSHATE
measurement hierarchy were as follows: T2
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
—E& ZEBR EZBH #Et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFIT ARBTT ARETT ARETET
At 31 December 2023 ﬁé:;ﬁ:EEJr:
A=+—
Financial assets at fair value ~ ZAF(E qu)\?,?iﬁ_EL
through profit or loss MEREE
— Listed equity securities - ETRAESE 5,753 = = 5,753
Financial assets at fair value ~ ZAFEFFE2EH
through other comprehensive & &hst A H 2
income HK &= RE
I3
— Equity securities - RAFEFH - = 38,366 38,366
At 31 December 2022 RZEZZF+=A
(Restated) =+—H((KE=E5)
Financial assets at fair value R AF(EFFAER
through profit or loss e REE
— Listed equity securities - FTRAE S 6,469 = = 6,469
Financial assets at fair value ~ ZAFEEAR
through other comprehensive ~ E & &zt A
income Hib 2wz
— Equity securities - BAES = = 23,567 23,567

During the year ended 31 December 2023, there were no

significant changes in the business or economic circumstances

that affect the fair value of the

Group’s financial assets.

The carrying amounts of equity securities approximate their fair

values.

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR MY et

For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE—ZT—_=F+=-A=+—HItFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT

Estimates and judgement are continually evaluated and are based

on historical experiences and other factors, including expectations

of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the

circumstances. The Group makes estimates and assumptions

concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by

definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates

and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material

adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the

next financial year are addressed below.

(i)

Revenue and costs of constructions service

The Group applies input method to measure the progress of
constructions service provided by the Group, which is based
on the entity’s inputs to the satisfaction of constructions
service relative to the total expected inputs to the satisfaction
of constructions service. Because of the nature of the activity
undertaken in constructions, the date at which the contract
activity is entered into and the date when the activity is
completed usually fall into different accounting periods. In
the contract progress, the management of the Group regularly
reviews the transaction price and contract modification, contract
costs in the budget prepared for each contract, the progress
of the contract performance and the accumulatively actual
cost. If there are circumstances that there are changes in
the transaction price, the contract costs in the budget or the
progress of the contract performance, estimates are revised.
These revisions may result in increasing or decreasing in
estimated revenues or costs and are reflected in profit or loss
in the current period. Where the actual contract revenue is less
than expected or actual contract costs, an expected loss may

arise.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA TSR R MY 5T

For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE =T —_=F+=-A=+—HItFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited

Provision for impairment of receivables and contract
assets

The Group’s management determines the provision for
impairment of receivables and contract assets based on the
expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss
allowance. The loss allowances are based on assumptions
about risk of default and expected loss rates. The Group uses
judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs
to the impairment calculation, based on the Group’s past history,
existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates
at the end of each reporting period. Details the key assumptions
and inputs used are disclosed in note 3.1(b).

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful
lives and related depreciation charges for its property, plant and
equipment. This estimate is based on the historical experience of
the actual useful lives of property, plant and equipment of similar
nature and functions. It could change significantly as a result
of technical innovations and competitor actions in response
to severe industry cycles. Management will increase the
depreciation charge where useful lives are less than previously
estimated lives, or it will write-off or write-down technically
obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or
sold.

Annual Report 2023
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR MY et

For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE—ZT—_=F+=-A=+—HItFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT (Continued)

(iv)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. The recoverable
amounts have been determined based on value-in-use
calculations or market valuations. These calculations require the
use of judgments and estimates.

Management judgment is required in the area of asset
impairment particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event has
occurred that may indicate that the related assets values may
not be recoverable; (ii) whether the carrying value of an asset
can be supported by the recoverable amount, being the higher
of fair value less costs to sell or net present value of future
cash flows which are estimated based upon the continued
use of the asset in the business; and (iii) the appropriate key
assumptions to be applied in preparing cash flow projections
including whether these cash flow projections are discounted
using an appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions selected
by management in assessing impairment, including the discount
rates or the growth rate assumptions in the cash flow projections,
could materially affect the net present value in the impairment
test and as a result affect the Group’s financial condition and
results of operations. If there is a significant adverse change
in the projected performance and resulting future cash flow
projections, it may be necessary to take an impairment charge to
profit or loss.

4. EEEsHERHAE (B)

(iv)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA TSR R MY 5T

For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE =T —_=F+=-A=+—HItFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT (Continued)

(v)

(vi)

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited

Impairment of the Group’s assets

The Group follows the guidance of IAS 36 to determine whether
the Group’s assets are impaired. As stated in IAS 36, the equity
attributable to owners of an entity that exceeds its market
capitalisation is an impairment indicator which would require
an estimate of the recoverable amount to be performed. As
at 31 December 2023, the Group’s market capitalisation was
approximately RMB822 million, which is lower than the equity
attributable to owners of the Company of RMB4,318 million.
The Group needs to assess whether its assets are impaired. This
assessment requires significant judgment and estimations. In
making these judgment and estimations, the Group evaluates
and considers both qualitative and quantitative factors that will
affect the value-in-use of an asset or a cash-generating unit
(“CGU") such as the extent of difference between the equity
attributable to owners of the Company and market capitalisation,
composition of the Group’s assets, results and timing of previous
impairment tests.

Income taxes and deferred income tax

There are certain transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the current and deferred tax assets and
liabilities in the period in which such determination is made.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR MY et

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT (Continued)

(vii) Income taxes and deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary differences
and tax losses are recognised when management considers it
is likely that future taxable profits will be available against which
the temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised. When
the expectations are different from the original estimates, such
differences will impact the recognition of deferred tax assets and
income tax charges in the period in which such estimates are
changed.

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Board of Directors of the Group has been identified as the

chief operating decision-maker. The Board of Directors reviews the

Group’s internal reporting in order to assess performance and allocate

resources. Management has determined the operating segments based

on these internal reports.

The Board of Directors assesses the performance according to four

main business segments as follows:

(M)

Construction services: Revenue from the provision of
construction services is recognised over time, using an input
method to measure progress towards complete satisfaction of the
service, because the Group’s performance creates or enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the asset is created or
enhanced. The input method recognises revenue based on the
proportion of the actual costs incurred relative to the estimated
total costs for satisfaction of the construction services.

Sale of products: Revenue from the sale of products is
recognised at the point in time when control of the asset is
transferred to the customer, being when the products are
delivered to the customers.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B FE ¥R MY RE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Sale of electricity and related tariff subsidy: Revenue from the
sale of electricity is recognised in the accounting period when
electricity is generated and transmitted. Revenue from the tariff
subsidy represents subsidies received and receivable from the
government authorities in respect of the Group’s solar power
plant business. Tariff subsidy is recognised at its fair value where
there is a reasonable assurance that the additional tariff will be
received and the Group will comply with all attached conditions,
if any.

Others: The other remaining segments include the thermal
transmission and the rendering of design as well as consultation
service. Revenue from thermal transmit is recognised at the
point in time when the steam is transmitted. Revenue from the
design and consultation service is recognised, when the services
are rendered.

The board of directors assesses the performance of the operating

segments based on gross profit for the year. The Group’s revenue by

segments is as follows:

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B SRR MY

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

5. WERPEER(E)

(Continued)
Year ended Year ended
31 December 2023 31 December 2022
BE_T_-_=f HE-ZT-—F
+=-A=+—H +=—A=+—H
ILEE IEFE
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
ARBTR % ARKETTT %
(Restated)
(FeE751)
Revenue from contracts BEPEHBA
with customers
Construction services RS 1,671,698 38.34 3,361,277 65.31
Sale of products EmEE 1,815,506 41.64 830,900 16.15
Sale of electricity BHHE 765,492 17.56 690,612 13.42
Others Efth 107,584 2.46 263,512 5.12
Revenue WA 4,360,280 100.00 5,146,301 100.00
ZEZEFE PEKBREEEREEERAR]
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IR MY aE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WERkpEpER (8E)
(Continued)
(@) Segment results (@) SEBUTAN
The segment results for the year ended 31 December 2023 and BE_T_=ZFfrk-_FT_—
2022 are as follows: T A=+—RIEFENDEE
B
Construction Sale of Sale of
services products electricity Others  Elimination The Group
BHER EnfE  BNHE Hih e 35E

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETRE  ARETR AR®TR ARETR ARBTR ARETR

Year ended 31 December 2023 BE-B-=
+ZR=+-
BILEE

Revenue from contracts with customers:  EPAXIMA

- Recognised at a point of time - REER SRR - 1815506 765492 36,015 - 2,617,013
— Recognised over time -BEISRIHERER 1,671,698 = = 71,569 - 1,743,267
Total revenue from external customers  SMBEFBAME  1671,698 1815506 765492 107,584 - 4,360,280
Inter-segment revenue DR 229,415 612,184 = 39,973 (881,572) -
Segment revenue SR 1,901,113 2,427,690 765,492 147,557  (881,572) 4,360,280
Gross profit £ 159598 324,784 447910 86,525 (23,941) 994,876
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR MY et

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &

B2-FE—

=Ft+-A=+—HItFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

(a)

Segment results (Continued)

5. WERPEER(E)

(@) SHEBMLA (48)

Construction Sale of Sale of
Services products electricity Others Elimination The Group
BEAR EmEE ENEE Hity i T5E
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETn
Year ended 31 December 2022 S S
(Restated) +=-A=1+-H
LEFE
(EE5I)
Revenue from contracts with customers:  EPAXIMA
— Recognised at a point of time - REEEEED = 830,900 690,612 188,120 - 1709632
— Recognised over time - BEREESER 3,361,277 = = 75,392 - 3436669
Total revenue from external customers  SMRZFMAGEE 3361277 830,900 690,612 263,512 - 5146301
Inter-segment revenue SEEBA 98,526 459,536 = 21,093 (579,155) =
Segment revenue SHBIEA 3459803 1290436 690,612 284,605 (579,155) 5,146,301
Gross profit £l 559,287 111,255 412,577 78,504 (36,573) 1,125,050

ZRC=FFR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
LUE R ER:

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WEsRkpEpES (48)

(Continued)
(b) Segment assets/liabilities (b) PEEE &R

The segment assets/liabilities as at 31 December 2023 and BE_T_=ZFfrk-_FT_—

2022 are as follows: T A=+—BIEFENHHE

E/aEnT
As at 31 December 2023
RZFZ=£+-R=1+-H
Construction Sale of Sale of
services products electricity Others  Unallocated The Group

BARE EREE  IHEE Rib *HE 558

Segment assets NHEE 15,282,486 3,840,152 12,160489 535156 743,588 32,561,871
Elimination B3] (10,923,419)
Total assets aEE 21,638,452
Segment liabilities HB&E 7,004,035 1821983 6,283,354 168,771 11,483,834 26,761,977
Elimination B (10,532,271)
Total liabilities HBEfR 16,229,706
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA RS ¥R AR MY RE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5.

(Continued)

(b) Segment assets/liabilities (Continued)

Reconciled to entity assets and liabilities as follows:

Wts & 3 EREH ()

(b) SEEEEFEE)
REREERARAHNT :

As at 31 December 2023
R=T=-=%+=-A=+—H

Assets Liabilities
&E Bff
Segment assets/liabilities after HEENHBEE A&
elimination 20,894,864 4,745,872
Unallocated: ROEL -
Deferred tax assets/liabilities EEBEEE, A& 339,761 105,724
Loans to/from related parties ERTRES,BEHER 385,288 2,257,291
Long-term equity investments REERRE (BIERATF
(including FVOCI) E5t 8 B EZ T AHM
ZHEHUE) 18,539 -
Borrowings BE - 7,408,520
Bonds payable EH{ES = 1,557,632
Income tax payable (CIT) FER TSR (REATER) - 154,667
Total st 21,638,452 16,229,706

ZRC=FFR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IR MY aE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WERDEIEE(E)
(Continued)
(b) Segment assets/liabilities (Continued) (b) PEPEE BREE)

As at 31 December 2022 (Restated)
RZE-—F+-A=1+—H (L)

Construction Sale of Sale of

Services products electricity Others  Unallocated The Group

BERE  Em#E ENHE Efts ARE A5E

Segment assets ShEE 16873268 3168107 12,471,457 408949 615203 33,536,984
Elimination B3] (14,136,650)
Total assets g 19,400,334
Segment liabilities SHER 9711523 2598257 6,204,442 6293 9298094  27,875252
Elimination BE (13,936,287)
Total liabilities a8k 13938,965
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA RS ¥R AR MY RE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5.

(Continued)

(b) Segment assets/liabilities (Continued)

Reconciled to entity assets and liabilities as follows:

Wts & 3 EREH ()

(b) SEEE B
REREERARAHNT :

As at 31 December 2022 (Restated)
RZZE-_—F+=-RA=+—8H

(®&575)
Assets Liabilities
BE 8E&
Segment assets/liabilities after HEEENSBEE A&
elimination 18,785,131 4,640,871
Unallocated: ROBC :
Deferred tax assets/liabilities EXEHIBEE,AE 312,947 106,961
Loans to/from related parties BRTEES AEFER 275,888 1,113,448
Long-term equity investments REAE=RE (BRERAT
(including FVOCI) B2 B HE S AHM
2EKE) 26,368 -
Borrowings EE = 7,860,128
Bonds payable ERES = 75,500
Income tax payable (CIT) FERTFTS R (REATSHR) - 142,057
Total st 19,400,334 13,938,965
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IR MY aE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. KimkaEpEs (E)
(Continued)
(c) Other segment information (c) HihpEImEHE
Revenue generated by regions, based on the locations of the RIBEBATLE D SHEE
business is as follows: ERALT ¢

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=t+—HLEE

2023 2022
—®== —EB--F
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
AREBTT ARETIT
(Restated)
(gg&E7)
Domestic — Mainland China Bl - B ARE 4,001,575 91.77 4,926,566 95.73
Overseas PEZ 358,705 8.23 219,735 4.27
4,360,280 100.00 5,146,301 100.00
The total of non-current assets other than equity investments FRAR AR5 & KB IE S i 8 E S
and deferred tax assets located in different regions is as follows: MR TR EAIEREEELE
NN

As at 31 December

nW+=A=+—H
2023 2022
—F== T F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT AREETFIT
(Restated)
(s&=:%))
The total of non-current assets RemITAREEMSHEE
other than financial instruments SNIERBIEERE
and deferred tax assets
Domestic — Mainland China B — A B KR 8,107,429 8,363,301
Overseas MBI 15,955 13,782
8,123,384 8,377,583
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR MY et

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WaRyEEE (&)
(Continued)
(d) Liabilities related to contracts with customers d) HEE&4EFEAE
(i)  The Group has recognised the following liabilities related () AEEEHERATEERE
to contracts with customers: #FERAR B E ¢

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—H
2023 2022
—E-=F B
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETTT
(Restated)
(fe&%))
Construction services LR 68,641 190,078
Sale of products EmiHE 36,432 159,824
Total contract liabilities BHaEREE 105,073 349,902
(i) The following table shows how much of the revenue (i) TRETRKRARESHEE
recognised in the current reporting period relates to HAL A BERAWA ¢

carried-forward contract liabilities:

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=t+—HiLLEE

2023 2022

—F-= T F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETRT AREETFTT

(Restated)

(g =:%))

Construction contracts RIS 188,105 58,586

Sale of products EmiEE 156,598 129,541
Total revenue from contract REAHEENRALLEE

liabilities 344,703 188,127

TR FFHR PEKEEEEREEARAT
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA TSR R MY 5T

For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE =T —_=F+=-A=+—HItFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

(e)

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited

Accounting policies of revenue recognition

(i)

Construction service

The Group provides construction services for customers.
Revenue from the provision of construction services is
recognised over time, using an input method to measure
progress towards completion of the satisfaction of
performance obligation, because the Group’s performance
creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls
as the asset is created or enhanced. The Group records
revenue from construction services based on the
percentage of completion of the respective construction
services. The percentage of completion is determined by
applying the input method that measured the progress
towards completion of the satisfaction of that performance
obligation, depending on the nature of the contract,
is measured mainly by reference to the proportion of
contract costs incurred for work performed to date to
estimated total contract costs for each contract.

Claims to customers are amounts that the Group seeks
to collect from the customers as reimbursement of costs
and margins for scope of works not included in the
original construction contract. Claims are accounted for
as variable consideration and constrained until it is highly
probable that a significant revenue reversal in the amount
of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the
associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved. The Group uses the expected value
method to estimate the amounts of claims because this
method best predicts the amount of variable consideration
to which the Group will be entitled.

Annual Report 2023

5. WERPEBER (E)

(e)

W\ B Z BT BUR
() RRRH
AEERESRUBER

% o IR MRS H s hE
BEER - ERBAEE
TEBITRENER B
REEZ BT RAIERN
RTEFPHEEEWRANENK
RIFCHEHINEE - RNEE
RIBERZERBTH TR B
7 LRSS SE ARG A s
BT AN TRAEAET
ERBENEBNETEE -
HEFAMEEMmE T2
2EHFSHE TR
FREENAHRNMEENE
KR EETA A KR ASEY LA
MatE

AEFPRER/RARES KA
B P YRR A B B R
BN ARSI TIZHE
MR Z 3R - REARKRT
TERERELZ IR - B
E=HEA A ERREA TR
RREERERE - CHER
MRFTRASBRAETE
BRI - REEE A
BHEBEEEAFRESR
R BT AR TR R AR E
BERKBHWAZERES
o



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR MY et

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

(e) Accounting policies of revenue recognition
(Continued)
(i) Sale of electricity and related tariff subsidy

(i)

(iv)

The Group sells electricity to customers. Revenue from
sales of electricity and tariff subsidy is recognised at a
point in time when electricity is generated, transmitted and
delivered to the customers. Revenue from these sales is
recognised based on the price including the respective on-
grid electricity rates and subsidy received and receivable
pursuant to prevailing government policy in respect of the
Group’s renewable energy projects.

Thermal transmit

The Group provides thermal transport to the customers.
Revenue is recognised when hot steam has transmitted.

Sale of products

The Group manufactures and sells a range of construction
material in the market. Revenue is recognised when
control of the products has transferred, being when the
products are delivered to the customers, and there is
no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customers’
acceptance of the products. Delivery occurs when the
products have been shipped to the specified location, the
risks of obsolescence and loss have been transferred to
the customers, and either the customers have accepted
the products in accordance with the sales contract, the
acceptance provisions have lapsed, or the Group has
objective evidence that all criteria for acceptance have
been satisfied.

5. WERPEER(E)

(e)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IR MY aE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WmBRpEEE (E)
(Continued)
(e) Accounting policies of revenue recognition (e) WeAWERRZEFTBUR (&)
(Continued)
(iv)  Sale of products (Continued) (iv) #HEEm (&)
As receivable is recognised when the products are JE W SR IE RN EE G R A B
delivered as this is the point in time that the consideration R EEHAREBEGMY
is unconditional because only the passage of time is RIBFFE 2L - A AN REIE
required before the payment is due. ZRRFELB—BRREME -
(v)  Rendering of design and consultation service (v) FEHRERET RF AR
The Group provides design and consultation services for AEBIRHEFT KBRS
the customers. Revenue from the design and consultation FRE o Rt KARREH
services is recognised over time, when the services are L 55 1T TR A AR 75 B e i ) e
rendered. R o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR MY et

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

6. EXPENSES BY NATURE 6. HMEHESRX

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=t+—HILEE

2023 2022
—EBC-=HF —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT AREFT
(Restated)
(®&E71)
Raw materials consumed and changes FERE R RHA K SRR G

in inventories of finished goods and rERTEED

merchandise 2,490,468 2,563,675
Outsourced labor costs HNEI &S TR AN 336,580 974,249
Employee benefit expenses (Note 7) RSB (FH7E7) 229,140 265,599
Depreciation of property, plant and W - RE M EETTE (MIFE14)

equipment (Note 14) 290,586 262,535
Amortization of right-of-use assets (Note 15)  {EFHEAEE#S (3£ 15) 19,038 18,596
Depreciation of investment properties REYEE (3E16)

(Note 16) 8,047 7,904
Amortization of intangible assets (Note 17) mR A EEE (WHRE17) 5,552 5,733
Travel and office expenses ZIR R AR 28,158 24,297
Consulting services expenses RIS X 20,495 29,557
Repair and maintenance expenses HIEREEER 13,706 10,328
Short-term rental expenses EHRSRY 8,693 7,779
Design expenses RETFIX 7,532 5,907
Impairment loss on property, Y - BB REERERE

plant and equipment (Note 14) (PffFEE14) (28,113) 13,605
Auditor’s remuneration 1% £ Bl 357 B 11,083 14,250

— Audit service — B AR 7,193 7,262

— Others - Hitb 3,890 6,988
Others Hith 275,882 267,723
Total of cost of sales, distribution cost HIHENAR - 2R

and administrative expenses MITBAX 3,716,847 4,471,737
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IR MY aE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

7. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 7. EEEFIREX
The aggregate amounts of staff costs including directors’ emoluments BRESNSEANNE TRAREN
are as follows: T

Year ended 31 December

BE+-RA=t+—HLEE

2023 2022
—EBC=HF —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AREFT
(Restated)
(&E71)
Employee benefit expense (including EERMAX (BEEEK
directors’ and chief executive's TREZEME)
remuneration)
Wages and salaries and relevant benefits TENFEREBRET 217,907 254,165
Pension scheme defined contributions RIREFTEIE R 11,570 11,434
Equity-settled share option reverse IRAGEE 2 IR R 2 (337) -
Total Ky 229,140 265,599
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

7. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (Continued)

(a)

Five highest paid employees

(a)

The five highest paid employees during the year included one

(2022: one) director, details of whose remuneration are set out in

note 39. Details of the remuneration of the remaining four (2022:

four) highest paid employees who are neither a director nor chief

executive of the Company are as follows:

7. RERMFER(E)

AfimEHES

FAN AfimmHEREFTBE
—NER(ZTZ_F: —fuE
B BEOMSFIBRHNME
Ve HBTUG(ZFT=ZF: I
) ERRREES I THBH R
BEHEEFANBISFFIBENT

Year ended 31 December

HE+-A=t+—HLEE

2023 2022
—EBC=HF —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AREFT
(Restated)
(&E751)

Salaries, allowances and benefits e R REYAE
in kind 6,171 6,132
Pension scheme contributions RIRSEEIHR 165 168
6,336 6,300
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IR MY aE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

7. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (Continued) 7. EERAAEX(E)
(@) Five highest paid employees (Continued) (a) AfUmEFES (&)
The remunerations of the remaining highest paid employees BN T BEERA RS HE
whose fell within the following bands: BREEMT :

Number of employees

ES®H
2023 2022
—F== —E-—F
(Restated)
(geE5)
HKD500,001 to HKD1,000,000 500,001 7T ZE 1,000,000 7T 3 -
HKD1,000,001 to HKD1,500,000 1,000,001 7T ZE 1,500,000 7T 1 3
HKD1,500,001 to HKD2,500,000 1,500,001 7T 2 2,500,0007%8 70 -
4 4
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LR Rl ER:

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

8. OTHER INCOME 8. HtiliA

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=t+—HILEE

2023 2022
—EBC-=HF —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AREFT
(Restated)
(®&E71)

Operating lease rental income from REAKEYHEREMB
investment properties and others KEHERS WA 24,366 20,760

Amortisation of deferred government iR AE U #60 Bh B 8

grants (Note 32) (FizE32) 11,834 12,826
Others H 9,107 10,736
45,307 44,322
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IR MY aE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

9. OTHER GAINS-NET 9.

H bl s iFEE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=t+—HLEE

2023 2022
—E== - —
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTR AREFIT
(Restated)
(&5751)

Fair value gain of financial assets at FVPL BEATEE A EE8)ETAR
@A & RE EN A T ERE 38,285 =

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (Note 2.1(b)) HEME QRS

(B3 2.1(b)) 19,669 —
Profit compensation s F (8 12,504 =

Disposal gain/(loss) of property, plant and HEME - HEMEEARE
equipment and intangible assets FEEMRZ (EE) 7,779 (223)
Gain on disposal of equity investment HERARE KR 76 =
Gain on disposal of associates ink=—3ik NS = ol - 2,496
Rental cost s AN (12,533) (7,699)
Others EHoh (6,378) 6,293
59,402 867
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

10. FINANCE COSTS, NET

10. RAE R A FEH

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=t+—HILEE

2023 2022
—EC-=F —E-CF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFTT
(Restated)
(geE5)
Finance cost: BHEERRA :
— Interest on bank and other loans —RITRHMBERF S 464,907 262,845
— Interest on senior notes - BEEEFS - 87,553
— Interest on bonds payable (Note 30) - ERHESFILE (M1EE30) 14,997 1,594
— Interest on amounts due to related parties — — FETREE T FIEF 2 58,529 55,209
— Interest on lease liabilities (Note 15) - HEBEF L (i 15) 5,009 5,437
— Others - Hfh 2,346 421
— Foreign exchange losses, net - SNEETIEFEE 14,885 46,502
560,673 459,561
Less: Interest capitalised B BAEFE (13,485) (16,781)
Total finance costs BB KA 4258 547,188 442 780
Finance income: BUEIA :
— Bank interest income — RITHIBUA (16,338) (3,155)
— Interest income on amounts due from — FERFERE 5 SR IE R BULA
related parties (10,748) -
Total finance income REWALREE (27,086) (3,155)
Finance costs — net REEE R AR 520,102 439,625

ZRC=FFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

11. INCOME TAX CHARGE 11. P8I
The amount of income tax charged to the consolidated statement of RARARERAZAGHES SR
comprehensive income represents: N

Year ended 31 December

BE+T-A=+—HILEE

2023 2022

—E'-= T —F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFR AREFTT

(Restated)

(geE5)

Current income tax & HAFR S 59,381 48,975
Deferred income tax credit RIEFTISFIR R (41,731) (12,789)
Income tax charge s i it 17,650 36,186
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

11. INCOME TAX CHARGE (Continued) 11. R8BI (&)
The difference between the actual income tax expense charged to the Nk BGRE2ERSRNERATSHE
consolidated statement of comprehensive income and the amounts S Bk BR AR A F B A B B R R S
which would result from applying the enacted tax rates to profit before HeRE FEREAFAHIT

taxation can be reconciled as follows:

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=t+—HLEE

2023 2022
—g-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBFT
(Restated)
(Fe5E751)

Profit before income tax R FS A AT & A 28,379 144,270
Tax calculated at tax rates applicable &M A B8R FE A e &

to profits of the respective subsidiaries FHTEMTIE 22,053 43,008
Impact of preferential tax rate entitled ZEEBREHTE (12,452) (11,040)
Income not subject to tax BABFHUA (11,223) (23,470)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes AR 19,347 18,542
Recognition of deferred income tax HERR SR R FERR

previously not recognised ZIRIEFTET - (2,777)
Temporary difference for which no BIERRLERIEEE

deferred tax asset was recognised MR EE (2,588) 10,805
Tax losses for which no deferred EERELCHIEEE

tax asset was recognised KR IEE 18 24,145 26,735
Utilisation of the tax losses unrecognised R LRI ATER

previously KFIEE IR (4,360) (1,967)
Super deductions from research and i ket

development expenditures (16,846) (13,339)
Prior year tax filing difference LARTF E IR i =5 (426) (10,311)

17,650 36,186
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE =T —_=F+=-A=+—HItFE

11. INCOME TAX CHARGE (Continued) 11. Frg8HiZH (&)

144

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited

The applicable corporate income tax (“CIT”) rate for Mainland China
subsidiaries is 25% (2022: 25%) except for certain subsidiaries that
are entitled to preferential tax rates as discussed below:

For Mainland China subsidiaries which are qualified as High and New
Technology Enterprises, they are entitled to a preferential tax rate of
15%. For subsidiaries engaging in encouraged industries in Western
China, they are entitled to a preferential tax rate of 15% for the period
from 1 January 2011 to 31 December 2030. For subsidiaries engaging
in the approved projects of solar power station construction, they are
exempted from CIT for the first three years and are entitled to a 50%
tax reduction for the subsequent three years (“=%=&¥") since
their respective first revenue-generating years. Thereafter, they are
subject to CIT at a rate of 25% or 15%.

The Group’s subsidiaries registered in Hong Kong are subject to a rate
of 16.5% (2022: 16.5%). on the estimated assessable profits for the
year ended 31 December 2023. For the year ended 31 December
2023, the Group’s subsidiaries incorporated in Hong Kong did not have
assessable profit and therefore have not provided for any Hong Kong
profits tax.

The Group has operation in Mainland China and Hong Kong. It
is within the scope of the OECD Pillar Two model rules. As of the
reporting date, there is no public announcement in Mainland China.
Hong Kong has announced that it plans to implement the Global
Minimum Tax and Hong Kong Domestic Minimum Top-up Tax starting
from 2025 onwards but it is still under public consultation with the
expectation that draft legislation will be published in the second half of
2024. Since the Pillar Two legislation was not effective at the reporting
date, the group has no related current tax exposure. The Group applies
the exception to recognising and disclosing information about deferred
tax assets and liabilities related to Pillar Two income taxes, as provided
in the amendments to IAS 12 issued in July 2023.

Annual Report 2023

FEAEHMBARZEREEMEN
(TeXRAEM]DHER225% (ZF——
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR MY et

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE 12. BikEF

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is based on
the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
Company, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of the
Company in issue during the year.

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per share
amounts presented for the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022
in respect of a dilution as there is no dilutive effect since the exercise
prices of the Company’s outstanding share options were higher than
the average market prices for the Company’s shares during the current
and the prior year.

BRERBH HREARN R LB ERS
FAARBIGFERENRARRFAC HE
TTE BRI EH -

HRBEZT_=FRZF__F+=
A=+—B1tFE  AQRMAKITER
BENITEERNANRFROHFEEM
B« HUSBEERUE - At WAETN A
FERBEFEZINNERRGOERE
FERIELEEERE -

Year ended 31 December

BE+-RA=t+—HILEE

2023 2022
—EBZ=HF T —F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBFT
(Restated)
(BE751)
(Loss)/profit attributable to equity holders RARE=FB ARG

of the Company (E1R) i A (22,743) 43,418

Weighted average number of B TS mRA T
ordinary shares issued 2,521,082 2,521,082
Basic earnings per share EFRREARRF (0.009) 0.017

FFHR  PEUKREXEREEARAR
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13. SUBSIDIARIES

subsidiaries are as follows:

T2-E—

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IR MY aE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &; =F+-A=+—HILFE

As at 31 December 2023, particulars of the Company’s principal

13. iIB2AE]

RZZEZ=F+=A=+—H0 ' ARH
FTEMRBRRZFIBWOT :

Percentage
Place of Nominal of equity
incorporation/ value of interests
registration and paid-up attributable to Principal
Company name business share capital the Company activities
HmmIL ESAGIAN 5
AT EH BAREEHE HRBRAEE BRI TEEH
%
Directly held:
EERE:
Singyes Engineering (H.K.) Co., Ltd.  Hong Kong HKD1 100% Design, supply and
(“Singyes Engineering”) 5k 1571 installation of curtain
EERETRERAH walls
([HETR]) Rt HERTERE
Zibo Qilu Chemical Industrial Zone  PRC/Mainland China RMB 47.5% Research and
Thermal Power Co., Ltd. (‘Zibo AL/ FREIRHE 100,000,000 development of
Qilu") AR energy-saving thermal
SERBBIEREN 100,000,000 power supply
BRAR(DEEER ) eIzl
Jiangxi Yaxing Construction PRC/Mainland China RMB 51.0% Construction and
Co., Ltd (“Jiangxi Yaxing”) RE R AR 61,230,000 decoration
TRREERBR A AR BEREE
(NIAHE]) 61,230,000 7T
Foshan Xinye Renewable Energy PRC/ - 100% Investment and
Technology Co., Ltd. (“Foshan Mainland China technology
Xinye”) RE /R EARE development of solar

FmMRER RN AR AR
(T D)

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2023

photovoltaic power
stations

PNGED A
REER MR E



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA RS ¥R AR MY RE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

13. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 13. BASE (&)
Percentage
Place of Nominal of equity
incorporation/ value of interests
registration and paid-up attributable to Principal
Company name business share capital the Company activities
R, KATIRE(EHED
AT EH BAREEHE YRBRAEE BRI TEEH
%

Directly held: (continued)

EERE: ()

Foshan Keliyuan New Energy PRC/ RMB 100% Design, manufacture,
Technology Co., Ltd. (“Foshan Mainland China 30,000,000 supply and installation
Keliyuan”) R /B ARE ARE of solar photovoltaic

BILRE DRI RER A 30,000,0007C power stations
BRAR([RLBHE]) Rit o BE - RER

ZRAGRER AT

Singyes MRW Joint Venture Co., Ltd.  Hong Kong HKD 100% Design, supply and
(“MRW") 5k 10,000 installation of curtain

Singyes MRW Joint Venture Co., Ltd. 10,0007 walls
(TMRW1) Rit - HERTERE

Shuifa Clean Energy Co., Ltd. Hong Kong RMB 51% Sales photovoltaic
(“Shuifa Clean Energy")(note 2.1) &8 207,084,500 Equipment and other

KEBRERRNAERAR ([KEE AR product materials
BER ) (MEE2.1) 207,084,5007¢ HERRSEREM

Emik

Indirectly held:

L3RR

Macao Singyes Renewable Energy ~ Macau - 100% Design, supply and
Technology Co., Ltd. (“Macao ol installation of curtain
Singyes”) walls

RFIEEIRERRIR R HER
ARAR (NRFHESE ) ZRER
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

13. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 13. MIBAS ()

Percentage
Place of Nominal of equity
incorporation/ value of interests

registration and paid-up attributable to Principal

Company name business share capital the Company activities
R, KATIRE(EHES

AT EH BAREEHE HRBRAEE B TEEH
%

Indirectly held: (continued)

BERE : (8)

China Singyes New Materials Bermuda usb 62.4% Investment holding
Holdings. Co., Ltd. BRE 5,200,000 RAEER
(“Singyes New Materials”) 5,200,000 7T

BB EHER AR A F)

([EEEHEL)

Zhuhai Singyes Green Building PRC/ usb 100% Design, manufacture,
Technology Co., Ltd. (“Zhuhai Mainland China 48,960,807 supply and installation
Singyes") B RE 48 960,807 7T of curtain walls and

WEREZEEERK solar photovoltaic
BERAR ([TREHE]) power stations

RaT BUE - BER
ZRER R ARG
KRB

Shuifa Singyes Energy (Zhuhai) Co.,  PRC/ usb 100% Design, manufacture,
Ltd. (“Shuifa Singyes Energy”) Mainland China 47,868,500 supply and installation
(formerly known as Zhuhai Singyes  * B/ BI A 47 868 500 7T of curtain walls and

Renewable Energy Co., Ltd")

solar photovoltaic

KERERR (K8 BRAT power stations
(IkBEERZERER ) REr - 2E fER
(ABRBRETER TEER ARG
BRAR) HE

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

13. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 13. MIBAT (&)
Percentage
Place of Nominal of equity
incorporation/ value of interests
registration and paid-up attributable to Principal
Company name business share capital the Company activities
R, KATIRE(EHED
AT EH BAREEHE YRBRAEE BRI TEEH
%

Indirectly held: (continued)

BERE : (8)

Zhuhai Singyes Xinye Electricity PRC/ usb 100% Development of new
Technology Co., Ltd. (“Singyes Mainland China 20,000,000 energy materials,
Xinye") B/ B AR 20,000,000 57T and development

WEEXENREBRAR off marine biology
([&%E7)) technology

FRESTRERMTE R
R MR

Zhuhai Singyes New Materials PRC/ usb 62.4% Research, manufacture
Co., Ltd. (“Zhuhai Singyes Mainland China 50,000,000 and sale of
New Materials”) RE /B RE 50,000,000 7T photovoltaic film

WEREMMHBEER AT % - BEREE
([FRBEERMH ) KKER

Hunan Singyes Solar Technology PRC/ usb 100% Research, manufacture
Co., Ltd. (“Hunan Singyes”) Mainland China 410,143,300 and sale of

HEREEAGERERERAR Bl B AR 410,143,300% 7T photovoltaic film
=) % RERIEE

KIKER

Zhuhai Singyes Energy saving PRC/ usb 100% Research and
Technologies Co., Ltd. (“Singyes Mainland China 65,000,000 development of
Energy saving”) RE /B RE 65,000,000 7T energy-saving

mEEESHEREERAR products
(=30 AR RFRESHEER

T EEFR PBRUKBREERREREGRAT
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

13. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

13. MBAE (&)

Percentage
Place of Nominal of equity
incorporation/ value of interests

registration and paid-up attributable to Principal

Company name business share capital the Company activities
R, KATIRE(EHES

AT EH BAREEHE HRBRAEE B TEEH
%

Indirectly held: (continued)

BERE : (8)

Xinjiang Singyes Renewable Energy ~ PRC/ RMB 60.2% Research and design
Technology Co., Ltd. (“Xinjiang Mainland China 438,270,000 of and investment in
Singyes”) B AR N solar power projects

MEEENERARAA 438,270,000 7T % - Rt RIEE
([BEE]) INCEZEE]

Singyes Green Energy Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB 100% Research and
(“Green Energy”) (formerly known Mainland China 912,000,000 development of
as “Hunan Singyes Green Energy B /rR Bl AE AR electricity and new
Co., Ltd") 912,000,000 7T energy

KERZESEHEROBRAR (5 HREFAZRENR
Bk ) (AIEN R REZERR R
BRAR)

Gansu Singyes Green Energy PRC/ RMB 100% Research, construction,
Technology Co., Ltd. (“Gansu Mainland China 20,000,000 and operation of solar
Singyes”) hE /R EARE ARE power stations

HREZREERIE 20,000,0007C % Bk
BROE ([HHREE]) ARGaEE

Wuwei Dongrun Solar Energy PRC/ RMB 60.16% Research, construction,
Development Co., Ltd. (“Wuwei Mainland China 5,000,000 and operation of solar
Dongrun”) R/ B RE AR power stations

REREAGERE 5,000,0007C % R

BRAR(TRERAE))

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2023

KBRS



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA RS ¥R AR MY RE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

13. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 13. MIBAT (&)
Percentage
Place of Nominal of equity
incorporation/ value of interests
registration and paid-up attributable to Principal
Company name business share capital the Company activities
R, KATIRE(EHED
AT EH BAREEHE YRBRAEE BRI TEEH
%
Indirectly held: (continued)
BERE : (8)
Gansu Singyes Solar Technologies PRC/ RMB 100% Research, development,
Co., Ltd. (“Gansu Technologies”) Mainland China\ 20,000,000 manufacture, and
HREZAGHREER AT HE /B KRE AR sale of solar products
(THERED) 20,000,0007C % RE HER
HEAGER
Yangjiang Singyes Green Energy PRC/ RMB 100% Research, and design
Technology Co., Ltd. (“Yangjiang Mainland China 184,080,000 of and investment in
Singyes”) B ARE AR solar power stations
BIIEF5EHRRE 184,080,000 7T % - Rtk
BRAR((HI&%E]) BEKGRESEI
Yangjiang Huazhi Green Energy PRC/ RMB 100% Research, and design
Technology Co., Ltd. (“Yangjiang Mainland China 20,000,000 of and investment in
Huazhi") RE R EARE AR solar power stations
SIERGELRRHL 20,000,0007% B Rtk

BRAR(EIEE])

Suixi Xinye Photovoltaic Electricity PRC/

Co., Ltd. (“Suixi Xinye") Mainland China
FEEMELRENERAR RE /R ARRE
([HEMED)

REAGREL

100% Research, and design
of and investment in
solar power stations

N )
REKGRE B
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KERE LR BHREER
BRAHE
(IkE#x2))

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited
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13. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 13. MIBAT (%8)
Percentage
Place of Nominal of equity
incorporation/ value of interests
registration and paid-up attributable to Principal
Company name business share capital the Company activities
EmmIL KATIRE(EHES
AT EH BAREEHE HRBRAEE B TEEH
%
Indirectly held: (continued)
BERE : (8)
Zhuhai Gangxing Technology PRC/ - 100% Research, and
Co., Ltd. (“Zhuhai Gangxing”) Mainland China development of
KEBANBBRAR /B ARE energy-saving raw
([HEBE]) materials
O G-
e
Huabei Limited (“Huabei") Hong Kong HKD 62.4% Investment holding
ZRARAR([ER]) e 10,000 REER
10,0007
Shenzhen Kangsheng Photoelectric ~ PRC/ RMB 46.8% Research, manufacture,
Technology Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhen Mainland China 16,000,000 and sale of solar
Kangsheng”) R B AR ARE products
RITRELERE 16,000,000 7T % 8ER
BRAR (RYIEREE]) HEAGER
Shuifa Green Construction (Beijing) ~ PRC/ RMB 60% Design services
Urban Technology Development Mainland China 15,000,000 RETERTS
Co., Ltd (“Shuifa Green R/ B ARE AR
Construction”) 15,000,000 7T
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z —Z —

13. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

=Ft+-A=+—HItFE

13. MIBAE (&)

Percentage
Place of Nominal of equity
incorporation/ value of interests

registration and paid-up attributable to Principal

Company name business share capital the Company activities
EmmIL KATIRE(EHED

AT EH BAREEHE YRBRAEE BRI TEEH
%

Indirectly held: (continued)

BERE : (8)

Dunhuang Anjie Renewable Energy ~ PRC/ - 100% Research, construction
Technology Co., Ltd. (“Dunhuang Mainland China and operation of solar
Anjie”) R, B ARE power stations

HEL IR B ER AT % - R
([guezzl) BE KGRI

Sishui Yixin Renewable Renewable ~ PRC/ - 60% Research, manufacture
Resources Co., Ltd (“Sishui Yixin") Mainland China and sale solar

MK AR B R AR /B ARE products
(Ml ) % 8ER

HEAG R EM

Heze Development Zone Shuifa PRC/ RMB 100% Research, construction
Guangyao New Energy Co., Ltd Mainland China 1,000,000 and operation of solar
(“Heze Guangyao”) RE/hEARE AR power stations

TERBEKERITR 1,000,000 7 % B
BRAT YN
([E2HE))

Xintai Zhongmu New Energy PRC/ RMB 86% Research, construction
Technology Co., Ltd. (“Xintai Mainland China 36,000,000 and operation of solar
Zhongmu”) hE R EARRE AR power stations

HEMR BRI ER AT 36,000,0007T % B REE
(IFzP)) AIG8ED

= HER

PEKEEEEREEER QA
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

13. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 13. MIBAT (%8)
Percentage
Place of Nominal of equity
incorporation/ value of interests
registration and paid-up attributable to Principal
Company name business share capital the Company activities
s FATIREIGHED
ATEHE B REEME HRBAEE Bk TEER
%

Indirectly held: (continued)
BERE : (8)

Dongying Tianze New Energy PRC/ RMB 68% Research, construction
Technology Co., Ltd. (“Dongying Mainland China 60,000,000 and operation of solar
Tianze") B AR ARE power stations

REREHERRBEER R 60,000,000 7C % BRREE
((REXRZ]) YNGR

Shigatse Langming New Energy PRC/ - 100% Research, construction
Technology Co., Ltd. (“Shigatse Mainland China and operation of solar
Langming”) RE /R EARE power stations

AR AIREAM R BR AR % BRREE
(TRmERIAEA]) YNGR

Shuifa Smart Energy (Zhuhai) PRC/ - 100% Research, construction
Co., Ltd (“Shuifa Smart Energy”) Mainland China and operation of solar

KBEEZHR RS BRDOF RE /R EARRE power stations
([KEEZ8R]) - Rk

A58 ED

Nanijing Xinfaneng Equity Investment  PRC/ RMB 59.95% Investment holding
Partnership (Limited Partnership) Mainland China 508,700,000 BBER
(“Nanjing Xinfaneng”) E /R ARRE ARE

HREEERERES LS 508,700,0007¢
(BRAa%)

(TAR{E%ERE])

154 China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA RS ¥R AR MY RE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

13. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

13. MIBAE (&)

Percentage
Place of Nominal of equity
incorporation/ value of interests
registration and paid-up attributable to Principal
Company name business share capital the Company activities
EmmIL KATIRE(EHED
AT EH BAREEHE YRBRAEE BRI TEEH
%
Indirectly held: (continued)
BERE : (8)
Shanxi Yida Thermal Insulation PRC/ RMB 51% Research, manufacture
Material Co., Ltd. (“Shanxi Yida") Mainland China 12,630,000 and sale of new
WERERAMHERAR HE /B KR ARE materials
(ThFERE]) 12,630,000 7 A% - SUERHE
GiLzRes
Yijun Tianxing New Energy PRC/ RMB 459% Research, construction
Co., Ltd. (“Yijun Tianxing") (b) Mainland China 530,000,000 and operation of solar
BEGREERERAR([EES +BE,/HEKE AR power stations
KE])® 530,000,000 % BRREERG
LB UL
Shuifa Energy Engineering Co., Ltd. ~ PRC/ - 100% Research, manufacture

(“Energy Engineering”) (b) Mainland China
KB RIIEERAH R,/ B AR
([geRIR®

and sale of solar
power stations
PR - BRRHEELR
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

13. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 13. BBAS] (&)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the ERINTEEFREETEEHASEF

opinion of the Directors, principally contributed to the results for the EHEEMERAEBEEFEENTS

year or formed substantial portions of the net assets of the Group. To WARRIMBAR - EFRA - BHE

give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the Directors, B AR ZFBEHERFRBERNIT

result in particulars of excessive length. Ko

Notes: Bi%E

(@  As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s equity interests in these (@ RZEZ=F+=ZA=+—H0 %%
companies were pledged as collateral for the Group’s bank and other ERZEATNRAERSEER - £
loans of RMB3,244,477,000. BAREE AR 3,244,477,000 TTHISR

TREMEROERR -
(b) On 3 March 2023, the Group’s subsidiary acquired from third parties the

100% of equity interests in Energy Engineering. by RZZE-_=ZF=ZA=8 ' A£BEKE
AEIRE=F YRR T2 100%
& o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
LR Rl ER:

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. % - B ERRE
Office Solar
Plant and Motor ~ equipment and photovoltaic ~ Construction in
Building machinery vehicles fumiture power stations progress Total
HAZRE pNi
gF HERKSE Gt} ki RS HEIR &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AREFR AREFR ARRFR ARRFR ARRFR ARRFR ARRFR

As at 1 January 2023 R-§-zE-R-H

Cost s 1,266,814 482,706 14,082 57,819 5,826,401 1,725,992 9,373,874
Accumulated depreciation Bt

and impairment R (294,625) (290,951) (10,454) (41,222) (1,252,174) - (1,889,426)
Net book amount BEFE 972,189 191,755 3,628 16,657 4,574,221 1,725,992 7,484,448
Year ended HE-%F-=

31 December 2023 +2B=t+-BLFE
Opening net book amount ~ FAIRAFE 972,189 191,755 3,628 16,657 4,574,227 1,725,992 7,484,448
Additions e 13,968 7481 60 1,669 11,424 1,062,946 1,097,548
Transfers &Y = 17476 = = 886,561 (904,037) -
Disposal o subsiciaries ~ tHEKBAH - (138) (289) (105) (735,198) (228,406) (964,136)
Disposals HE = (7,325) 679 120 (10,955) (749) (18,230)
Tensfers ioinvestment BB ERENE

propertes (Note 16) (Hiz16) (7323) - - - - - (7323)
Depreciation charge TETH

(Note 6) (Histe) (24,171) (24,005) (831) (1,402) (240,087) - (290,586)
Impaimentlosses reverse  HBEEER

(Note ) (Hizte) - - - - 28113 - 28,113
Exchange differences A 191 @ 2 10 500 37 738
Closing net bock amount ~~ FREAFE 954,854 185,152 3,249 16,949 4,514,585 1,655,783 7,330,572

Asat 31 December 2003 R=F==

+-A=t-
Cost WA 1,273,744 490,225 11,818 58,959 5,960,683 1,655,783 9,451,212
Accumulated depreciation ~ E3t47E
and impairment R (318,890) (305,073) (8,569) (42,010) (1,446,098) - (2,120,640)
Net book amount BEFE 954,854 185,152 3,249 16,949 4,514,585 1,655,783 7,330,572
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=F+-A=t+—AILFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IR MY aE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z —Z —

14. W - FERRE (E)

(Continued)
(Office Solar
Plant and Motor ~ equipment and photovoliaic ~ Construction in
Building machinery vehicles fumiture power stations progress Total
N W
BT FEREE ot i kKB IR &
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Asatllanuay2022  A=¥=Z%-F-B
(Restated) (4E5))
Cost i 1,247,726 469,525 14632 48069 5435851 762,371 7978174
Accumulated depreciation  Z3HTERE
and impairment (256,910) (266,622) (10,811) (39,178) (1,046,705) = (1,620,226)
Net book amount FHFE 990816 202903 3821 8,891 4,339,146 762,371 6,357,948
Year ended §2-%8--
31 December 2022 +2B=t+-ALEE
(Restated) (4E5))
Opening net book amount ~ FAIRAFE 990,816 202903 3821 8,891 4389146 762,371 6,357,948
Addtions e 21,115 15,409 247 13290 7,004 1073634 1132877
Transfers &Y - 282 - - 15,789 (108,639) (90,025)
Acquistion of subsidiaries  WEEMBA?) = = = = 363,994 - 363,994
Disposals hE (1,195) (836) (13%8) (1,215) = (1,600) (6,179)
Tensfers ioinvestment BB ERENE
propetis (Nofe 16) (Ht16) (24%) - - - - - (249)
Depreciation charge e
(Note 6) (Hzt6) (24,320) (28,546) (1,349) (4.443) (203877) = (262,53)
Impairment losses (Note 6)  EEE (H3t6) (12907) - - - (698) - (13,605)
Exchange differences 5 1,176 = 5 134 2869 il 4469
Closing net bock amount~~— FREAFE 972189 191,75 3628 16,657 4574207 1725992 7484 448
Asat 31 December 2022 R=%=Z
(Restated) +ZRzt-8
(4E31)
Cost A 1266814 182706 14,082 57819 5,826,401 1725992 9313874
Accumulted depreciation  Z3HTERE
and impairment (294.625) (290951) (10,454) (41,222) (1,252,174) = (1,839,426)
Net book amount FHFE 972,189 191,75 3628 16,657 4574207 1725992 7484 448

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2023



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR MY et

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. % - BERRE (B)
(Continued)
Notes: Mi3E
(@)  Depreciation of the Group’s property, plant and equipment has been (@) EBERZAEBYE - BEREZET
recognised as follows: BT

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HIEE

2023 2022

—E-=F —E-—F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFTT ARETT

(Restated)

(&=51)

Cost of sales SHERA 250,992 228,105

Administrative expenses THERAX 38,888 33,998

Distribution costs bakcliaba 706 432

290,586 262,535
(b)  As at 31 December 2023, the following property, plant and equipment of by RZEZ=F+=ZRA=+—8"T7%
the Group were pledged to secure bank and other loans granted to the AEBZME - BEREBEDEIBE
Group (note 29). BERETFASEMNRITREMERZE

R (MiEE29) °

As at 31 December

R+=-A=+—H

2023 2022

—F-=F k=t =

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR AREFT

(Restated)

(gE5))

Buildings, machinery and motor vehicles BT S RAE 1,219,078 1,037,780

Solar photovoltaic power stations RI5EENIRE L 2,466,677 2,809,502
Solar photovoltaic power plant EETAGeENRERE

under construction 1,095,524 1,189,527

4,781,279 5,036,809
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IR MY aE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. ¥ - BERRE (E)

(Continued)

Notes: (Continued) Mtz - (48)

(c)

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited

As at 31 December 2023, the application for the property
ownership certificates of certain buildings with carrying amounts of
RMB100,739,000 (2022: RMB226,631,000) was in progress. Those
buildings can only be sold, transferred or mortgaged when their relevant
ownership certificates have been obtained. In the opinion of the Directors,
there are no major obstacles for the Group to obtain these building
ownership certificates. Those buildings can only be sold, transferred
or mortgaged when their relevant ownership certificates have been
obtained. In the opinion of the Directors, there are no major obstacles for
the Group to obtain these building ownership certificates.

Accounting policies of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment other than construction-in-progress are
stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to
the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable

(c)

RZZT-_=F+=-A=+—8 KA
EA AR 100,739,000 (=T ==
F: ANR®226,631,0000T) 28 F
BFZMEERZEFERBRIES
F oo ZEEFENIEEHABRER
BERHILE EBRNER -ES
RE - FNEBESZSETERES
R fo] B APREE

W BB RREZ TR
BREZTRIN W% - BERRE
BB R E SRR EE BRI -
BEERABEEZRBNEERE
g

REHEE B ABORKEENZE fE—I
BEMAARKE - %R B KA RE

that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the A SEFTER  HENKEAT & EJF7\§
Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying ENREER IBRR/RBIN-EHE
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and E(nEA) BEERITHSHEREER

maintenance are charged to the profit or loss during the reporting period

WA AR - FREEMHEERRER

in which they are incurred. EAr@mEHREEERANRG
Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their MENGERRAEREEKREAD
cost, net of their residual values over their estimated useful lives, as o MR EFBRERE NIRRT YE
follows: FHEAFEREHRITE -

Buildings 20 to 50 years BF 20E504F
Plant and machinery 5 to 10 years = Kk 5& 104
Motor vehicles 5 years RE 54
Office equipment and furnitures 3to 5 years WAERERRA 3EHF
Solar photovoltaic power stations 20 to 25 years APZREN KRB uh 20E 254
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR MY et

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(d)

Accounting policies of property, plant and equipment: (Continued)

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount (Note 40.9).

Gains and losses on disposals (Note 9) are determined by comparing
the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised within ‘Other
gains — net’” in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Construction in progress (“CIP”) represents buildings, plant, machinery
and power stations under construction or pending installation and is
stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost includes
the costs of construction of buildings, costs of plant and machinery, and
interest charges and foreign exchange gain/loss arising from borrowings
used to finance these assets during the period of construction or
installation and testing. No provision for depreciation is made on CIP
until such time as the relevant assets are completed and ready for the
intended use. When the assets concerned are brought into use, the costs
are transferred to respectively categorised property, plant and equipment
and depreciated in accordance with the policy as stated above.

14. W - FERRE (E)

BRE - ()

(d)

EER

W BB RREZ SR (E)

RERSHREHEENTREER
AERERETIRENHRE(ER)

EEEMRAESREG AT KE
B RN MRZEEEH B S
# (M37£40.9) ©

HEEE () YL KIAE
REERERE - UNGREEEKER
B [ e 50 | R RERR o

ERIR(EEIRDEERIFR
KNBT  HF - REREW - YR
A R REBER(INE) 78 -
RABRBRZERBFHOKRA - BB &#
BRAR REZ L LK A BEA
REAZEEEREERENTEMAX
RIER W BiE - ERTRE A
RITEEE  EEAHEEEKLA
HHEERRAL - ERHEERRE
B RATIBRENX  BERR
MERER - WARER D BOR T AT
£

PEKEEEEREEER QA
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IR MY aE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

15. LEASES 15. FHE
(i) Amounts recognised in the consolidated statements (i) MEESHMBRRRPEIN
of financial position &%
The consolidated statements of financial position show the BAPBKAREYATEREAE
following amounts relating to leases: ErERE
As at 31 December
®+=A=+-8
2023 2022
—EF-=F —E-_F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT
(Restated)
€3=27))
Right-of-use assets EREEE
Land use right T fh A 328,716 365,111
Leased plant and office premises EeINE N ES 6,093 15,933
334,809 381,044
Lease liabilities HEaRK
Current mE 25,809 5,713
Non-current IERED 65,905 116,057
91,714 121,770
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR MY et

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &

15. LEASES (Continued)

(i)

Amounts recognised in the consolidated statements

B2-FE—

=Ft+-A=+—HItFE

of financial position (Continued)

Movements in right-of-use assets are analysed as follows:

15. A8 (&)

Leased plant and

(i)

RS M BRI R PHERE

8 (&)

EREEENEFOMAOT

office premises Land use right Total
HERER
WMAEYE T b fE R wst
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT
Year end 31 December 2023 #HE-T-=%F+_"#
=—t+—BULEE
Net book amount as at RZZE_=F—HA—H
1 January 2023 REREDFE 15,933 365,111 381,044
Additions NE 91 4,380 4,471
Disposal of subsidiaries HEME R A - (22,634) (22,634)
Amortisation (note 6) 5 (M3t 6) (3,980) (15,058) (19,038)
Lease modification and HEBEHRRLE
termination (5,966) (3,083) (9,049)
Exchange differences & ZERE 15 - 15
Net book amount as at RZZE=-=F+=A
31 December 2023 =+—HHORmFEE 6,093 328,716 334,809
Year end 31 December 2022 #HE-T-—F+— A
=+—HItFE
Net book amount as at RZE-_—_F—A—HRKN
1 January 2022 (Restated) — FRELF(E (&L E5I)) 9,669 343,216 352,885
Additions NE 10,591 34,142 44,733
Acquisition of subsidiaries ~ UKEEHMT B A R = 2,589 2,589
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMRBAR - - -
Amortisation (note 6) By (fisEe) (3,888) (14,708) (18,596)
Lease modification and HEBHR R
termination (506) (128) (634)
Exchange differences fEH =% 67 - 67
Net book amount as at RZZE-_—F+=A
31 December 2022 =t+—HMERmFE
(Restated) (FgE=751) 15,933 365,111 381,044
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IR MY aE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

15. LEASES (Continued) 15. HE (&)
(i) Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of (i) RESE2ERERERNE
comprehensive income 2]
The consolidated statement of comprehensive income shows the MeEzEBEREIATERME
following amounts relating to leases: EneRE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=t+—HLEE

2023 2022
—E|Z=HF B
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AREFIT
(Restated)
(fe&%))
Depreciation charge EREEEMITERNX
of right-of-use assets
Land use right bR 15,058 14,708
Plant and office premises N N ES 3,980 3,888
19,038 18,596
Interest expense on lease liabilities REEaBENF B
(included in finance costs) (note 10)  (FF ABEERK ) (Hf7E 10) 5,009 5,437
Expense relating to short-term HEPHEREERRE
leases and low value leases BREMNRAY 8,693 7,779
The total cash outflow for leases of the years ended 31 December B2 -=F+=-A=+—H
2023 were RMB27,270,000 (2022: RMB15,876,000). IFFEMHEReREAEAA

FR#27,270,000 L (= F ==
AR#15,876,0007T) °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA RS ¥R AR MY RE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z —Z —

15. LEASES (Continued)

=Ft+-A=+—HItFE

15. HE (&)

(ii) Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of (i)
comprehensive income (Continued)

The Group leases various land use right, buildings, offices,

equipment and others. Rental contracts are typically entered into

for fixed periods. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual

basis and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.

The lease agreements do not impose any covenants, and leased

assets may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

REGE2ENEREZHE
#|(E)

AEBHEHEZHELTWERE 2
£ BRE REAEM- B
BHRBEABESRATYL - HE
Ty BRI ERHE - YBEERZ
B[R R R R Mk A » A E R I
EHINER R BEHEEER
TERIEEERER -

16 &M=

2023 2022

—g=-= T F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT AREEFIT

(Restated)

(#&=%))

Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—HHKREE 335,182 340,590
Transfers from property, plant and ERAYE - BEMRE

equipment (note 14) (FfizE14) 7,323 2,496

Depreciation for the year KEENE (8,047) (7,904)

Carrying amount at 31 December R+ A=+—HB8KREE 334,458 335,182

The investment properties of the Group are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any.

ZRC=FFR

REBZREMEURFBETITER
BAE (108 ) 5Bk -

PEKEEEEREEER QA
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IR MY aE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. B & E
Customer
relationship Software Goodwill Total
EFR% B HE “ast

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFRE ARETR AREFRT ARETR

Year ended 31 December 2023 HE—T=-=
+=A=+—HIL¥EE

Opening net book amount FYREFE 80,402 3,056 23,130 106,588
Additions NE - 45 - 45

Amortisation charge (Note 6) BN (MiRE6) (4,948) (604) - (5,552)
Net book amount BREFE 75,454 2,497 23,130 101,081

As at 31 December 2023 R-E|-=F+-A=1+—H

Cost BN 94,833 11,094 23,485 129,412

Accumulated amortisation REHE Y (19,379) (8,597) (355)  (28,331)
Net book amount BREFE 75,454 2,497 23,130 101,081

Year ended 31 December 2022 ®HE_F_-_%F

(Restated) +=-A=+—HILFE
(&FE7)

Opening net book amount FYEREFEE 85,350 3,229 17,752 106,331
Additions NE - 609 5,733 6,342
Amortisation charge (Note 6) BN (MREe) (4,948) (785) - (5,733)
Impairment charge REZH - - (355) (355)
Exchange differences EHER - 3 - 3
Net book amount BREFE 80,402 3,056 23,130 106,588
As at 31 December 2022 N=—F=-——%F+=-HA=+—H

(Restated) (FE7)
Cost AR 94,833 11,049 23,485 129,367
Accumulated amortisation REHE Y (14,431) (7,993) (355)  (22,779)
Net book amount BREFE 80,402 3,056 23,130 106,588
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR MY et

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Goodwill acquired through business combinations is allocated to each
relevant CGU for impairment testing:

The recoverable amount of each CGU has been determined based on a
value in use calculation using cash flow projections based on financial
budgets covering an projection period approved by management. The
pre-tax discount rates applied to the cash flow projections ranged from
10.2% t0 19.8% (2022: 10.2% to 19.8%).

B EE ()

BAXRTAHESNEENKESER
ReELSAERERR -

EReEE BN IRE S EETIRERGE
FREEE (R EEE B R8I
MHEEFERARSAEEN) BT - &
ARBELREEANB AR RN T
102% % 198% ( = F = = € : 10.2%
£19.8%) o

18. INVENTORIES 18. B&
As at 31 December
W+=A=+—H

2023 2022
—E-=F —E-CF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARSFT ARMEF T
(Restated)
(geE5)
Raw materials R 41,186 42,470
Finished goods and merchandise B & K P S 31,578 41,155
Impairment VERIE] (1,680) (3,519)
71,084 80,106

TR FFHR PEKEEEEREEARAT
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B FE ¥R MY RE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

19. CONTRACT ASSETS

19. EHEE

As at 31 December

®+=-A=+—H

2023 2022

—E|-=F —E-—F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR AREFIT

(Restated)

(&571)

Contract assets BHEE 4,298,243 4,146,431
Loss allowance BB (317,494) (241,649)
Total contract assets BHNEBEERE 3,980,749 3,904,782

Contract assets are initially recognised for revenue earned from
construction services as the receipt of consideration is conditional
on successful completion of construction. Upon completion of
construction and acceptance by the customer, the amounts recognised
as contract assets are reclassified to trade receivables.

Management expected that the majority of the above disclosed contract

assets as at 31 December 2023 will be recovered or settled within one

year.

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR MY et

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

20. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 20. FEMEISHEHTR

The Group holds the following financial instruments: AEERFBE TSI

As at 31 December

B+=-RA=+—H
2023 2022
—F= k=St =
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBFT
(Restated)
(FeE=751)
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at amortised cost R AT R S R E B
Trade and bills receivables W E 558 ke R 5,091,689 4,494,348
Other receivables, excluding HAbEUWGRIA
non-financial assets (TEEESRmEE) 1,678,562 1,130,116
Cash and bank balances Be RIRTTEER 1,983,076 830,422
Equity investment designated at fair value BEBIEATFEFAEM
through other comprehensive income EHEWNEMRIERE 38,366 23,567
Financial assets at fair value through BAFERABRYEN
profit or loss SREE 5,753 6,469
8,797,446 6,484,922
Financial liabilities SRERE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost BN AT R EmMBE
Trade and bills payables eI B 5 58 RE N R 3,338,108 3,102,262
Other payables and accruals, A FE T FRIE RISt RUE
excluding non-financial liabilities (TeiEEEmasE) 2,664,129 1,466,692
Borrowings BE 7,408,520 7,860,128
Bond notes BREZR 1,557,632 75,500
Lease liabilities HERE 91,714 121,770
15,060,103 12,626,352
The Group’s exposure to various risks associated with the financial AEEEGESRTAFENSERER
instruments is discussed in note 3.1. BB 3. 1 AT o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
LUE R ER:

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 21. BB S IE R FEW =R
As at 31 December
W+=A=+—H
2023 2022
—s-= T —4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREETFTT ARETT
(Restated)
(g =7))
Trade receivables from contracts EREFEAHNEME HFHIE
with customers 4,382,553 4,106,381
Tariff subsidy receivables JEUR E (& L 1,722,898 1,292,892
Bills receivables FEUN E & 6,076 29,960
6,111,527 5,429,233
Loss allowance (note 3.1) B e (FRE3.1) (1,019,838) (934,885)
5,091,689 4,494,348
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR MY et

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued) 21. FEUG B SR IE R R E S
Z&E

&)
An ageing analysis of the trade and tariff subsidy receivables as at the REREIR - RREE R RIKRER
end of the reporting period, based on the billing date, is as follows: BETENRYNE S REREREER
BRERER D ATAO T
Trade receivables Tariff subsidy receivables
FEWKE ZFRIE FEW = EHHAL
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2023 2022 2023 2022
—F=-= —2-—F Z®B== —Eo—F
+=A +=A +=A +=A
=+—H =+—~H =+—H =+—H

RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTT ARETR ARETZ

(Restated) (Restated)

(&E751) (&=71)

Within 180 days 180 B 1,049,207 912,959 246,392 280,792
181 days to 365 days 181 HE 365 H 376,342 891,784 231,656 221,037
11to 2 years —EWF 967,522 531,026 501,828 376,488
2 to 3 years ME=F 408,105 410,608 376,488 211,552
Over 3 years =FLE 1,581,377 1,360,004 366,534 203,023

4,382,553 4,106,381 1,722,898 1,292,892

The details of the Group’s trade receivables and credit risk assessment AEEEWE S HEREERB TG
are set out in Note 3.1(b). TBEERFMIFES.1(b)

The Group’s tariff subsidy receivables from the sale of electricity are AREREENHENEREBMHEE
mainly receivables from the State Grid. Tariff subsidy receivables ZREBEREWNEUGRE - BKEE
represented the government subsidies on renewable energy for solar AL TRARIRIR 1T B BUR I Bl R B
photovoltaic power stations to be received from the State Grid based BR 2 K588 ¢ IR 1k v] B A REIRIBUAT 1
on the prevailing government policies. The expected credit loss of tariff B - BN EBRUENBHEEERRT
subsidy receivables is nil (see Note 3.1(b)). (RHFE3.1(b)) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued)

As at 31 December 2023 the Group has pledged tariff subsidy
receivables of approximately RMB1,613,240,000 (2022:
RMB1,100,346,000) to secure bank and other loans granted to the
Group (note 29).

The carrying amounts of trade and bills receivables approximated their
fair values as at the balance sheet date.

The Group’s trade and tariff subsidy (excluding bills receivables)
receivables were denominated in the following currency:

21. %ﬂ&%&%ﬁ&@ﬂ&%ﬂ%

&)

W-ZE-=F+-"F=+—0 &~&EH
BIIRA AREE 1,613,240,000 7T (=F
——f: AR¥1,100,346,000 7T) K&
WEEHIEAR T AEEMNRITRE
M ER 2 R (FIFE29) o

FEE B AN BB RR Z REERE
EABRAEEQTERS

REEEWE 5K N R EE /MR
(T EERKER) A TE¥EHE

As at 31 December

®+=—A=+—H
2023 2022
== —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFRT AR¥EFT
(Restated)
(re&E%)
RMB AREE 6,003,534 5,282,408
HKD BT 78,997 97,271
MOP SRFITT 19,263 15,908
Others Hth 3,657 3,686
6,105,451 5,399,273
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

22. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 22. TARRIE - HiFEKFIER
OTHER ASSETS Hih&E
As at 31 December
m+=—A=+—H
2023 2022
—®'-= —E-_F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETT
(Restated)
(=E=51)
Amounts due from related parties ek R 5 7B (MR 37(b))

(note 37(b)) 385,288 275,888
Loans to third parties ME=FREER 378,421 126,377
Deposits for performance guarantee BHERES 294,852 314,988
Prepayments to subcontractors and suppliers FE15 8 & K 4 g 7 7k 08 299,460 214,063
Other receivables H b fEI IR 733,195 522,813

2,091,216 1,454,129
Less: impairment B ORE (113,194) (109,950)
1,978,022 1,344,179
The carrying amounts of other receivables approximated their fair HEm R ENRmERERNEEARE
values as at the balance sheet date. R BN AFERE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

23. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 23. e RREFEYLRER
PLEDGED DEPOSITS =2
As at 31 December
®+=-A=+—H
2023 2022
—EC-= —E-F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTRT AREETTT
(Restated)
(#eE:%))
Pledged bank deposits HIRIRITIER 99,793 336,877
Cash and cash equivalents ReERRSEEY 1,883,283 493,545
Cash and bank balances Re RIBITHET 1,983,076 830,422
The Group’s cash and bank balances and bank deposits were AEER e RRSSEYWUARBITER
denominated in the following currencies: ATHIEHIE -

As at 31 December

W+=-—A=+—H
2023 2022
—F=-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AREEFTT
(Restated)
(g E:%))
RMB ARHEE 1,684,530 529,827
usD E7T 275,221 282,967
HKD BT 9,525 10,250
Others Hih 13,800 7,378
1,983,076 830,422
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

23. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 23. IRERIREXFEWLL K

PLEDGED DEPOSITS (Continued)

RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies. However, according
to Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks that are authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business.

As at 31 December 2023, the weighted average effective interest rate
on bank deposits with maturities within 3 months was 0.55% (2022:
0.31%) per annum.

=™ (E)

ARBAAIEREBBEMER - R
i - AR P K Bk M) S B 32 (R D1 e A
g SERIEEERE  TEEREE
BBEEEREINEEZBNRITEAR
KRB REME

W-_Z-_=%+-F=+—8 ' =@A4
NEIEZ SRITE R Z INE I E R EF|
RAE055% (ZB-—4F : 0.31%) °

24. SHARE CAPITAL 24. Ig&
As at 31 December
R+=-A=+—H
2023 2022
—F-= —E-—F
’000 ‘000
T Tt
(Restated)
(E7)
Authorised: SETE
3,200,000,000 ordinary shares 3,200,000,000 fi% =A% E1E uUsSD32,000 USD32,000
of USDO0.01 each 0.01 =T E @M 32,0003E7T 32,0003t
Issued and fully paid: BEITREHR
2,521,081,780 ordinary shares 2,521,081,780 lx & EE USD25,211 USD25,211
of USDO0.01 each 0.01 ETHE B 25,2113%5T 25211% 7T
Equivalent to RMB1,000 e AR 1,0007T 174,333 174,333

AR®174,3335t AR¥ 1743337

There was no movement in the Company’s issued share capital during
the year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

ARRBBITRARBE_ZE-_=FK
TR+ A=+ HIEFETE
) o

TR FFHR PEKEEEEREEARAT
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

25. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

(a)

25. FERxHESTE

The Company’s share option scheme (@) FATRIEEREHESTEI
The Company had an option scheme (the “Former Scheme”) ARAaERBRESE( &R
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible 2]) BEMRMEAEEEEN
persons who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. ERIEL ERIBE B A TRH
The Former Scheme was terminated on 19 December 2018 HENMLEE  EFHEERF
and the share options already granted continue to be effective —NF+ZA+ABKILE -2
till 21 May 2027. A new option scheme (“New Scheme”) was REBRER_Z_+FHA
approved by the Company’s shareholders on 4 June 2018 and “+—HREEER . —HFH
will remain in force for 10 years from that date. Eligible persons BRETE ((FEE D ER=T
of the New Scheme include directors, employees, consultants —N\FERNAMAERRD BRI
and suppliers of the Group. Please refer to the Group’s annual A W BEZBREIOFEER - 7
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018 for FFEMEERALTERASERN
details. Ex - EE BERREER -
BRESHAEERZE T —\F
T A=+—BILEFENFEY
TEHEK ©
No options have been granted under the New Scheme since it BHFEERN = — \F RN
was adopted in 2018. R AT SIS DRI REARE -
The following share options granted under the Former Scheme RIBEF SR EA A TERER
were outstanding during the year: REFHARITHE
2023 2022
k- el —E-CF
Weighted Weighted
average Number average Number
exercise price of options exercise price of options
InfEELY FERRiE IEFH fafikiE
T L] 1168 £
HKD '000 HKD ‘000
per share per share
BiET T BT T
At 1 January till 31 December R—A—HEZE
+=A=+-A 6.26 18,026 6.26 18,026

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

25. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)
(@) The Company’s share option scheme (Continued)

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options
outstanding as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

25. R HERTEI (8)
(@) FATBIREMAESE (45)

BT H R R 1T (B A 2 17
EERATERT

Number of shares
BEE
Year ended
31 December

B#E+=-A=+—H
LEERE

Exercise price Exercise period 2023 2022
1TEE 1T{EH —EBC=Hf —E-F
HKD per share '000 ‘000
FRET F 13
11.65 22/5/2016-21/5/2025 2,008 2,008
11.65 22/5/2017-21/5/2025 2,009 2,009
11.65 22/5/2018-21/5/2025 2,009 2,009
3.55 05/4/2018-21/5/2027 4,000 4,000
155 05/4/2019-21/5/2027 4,000 4,000
3.55 05/4/2020-21/5/2027 4,000 4,000

18,026 18,026

The Company did not recognise a share option expense during
the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: nil).

ARAREBE—_ZT_=F+=_A8
=T+ —HIEFEVEERERE
AT (ZEZ=F &) -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

25. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 25. BlRtEsTEl(8)
(b) Singyes New Materials share option scheme (b) HEEMHEIREERES S

A subsidiary of the Company, China Singyes New Materials
Holdings Co., Ltd. (“Singyes New Materials”), operates a share
option scheme (the “Singyes New Materials’ Scheme”), which
was approved by its shareholders on 17 October 2017 and,
unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for
10 years from that date. The Singyes New Materials’ Scheme
was adopted for the primary purposes of providing incentives
and rewards to eligible persons for their contribution or potential
contribution to the growth and development of Singyes New
Materials and its subsidiaries.

The following share options were outstanding under the Singyes

ZAUNCIP A= INSILSIEE )
FHERAR A B ([ EEHM ]
BE TR S ([ EEHT
FEtgl)) - ZErER T —+1F
TAT L REFERRLAE - B
FRTBURKER] - BRI EZ
B 105 AR - ELEEFH1RL 58
SERRBEERME 2 B R K3
RIFELERMBAEBEERRMZAER
ATIRGL SRR S Hr A

RAEE - BEERFMBEET

New Materials’ Scheme during the year: RITE Z BERRAEAOT
2023 2022
—¥-= —E-CfF
Number Number
Exercise price of options  Exercise price of options
fTEE  BikERE I0(E  BEREHE
HKD HKD
per share '000 per share '000
BRET T BB Fin
At beginning of year REH] 1.16 5,100 1.16 7,790
Forfeited during the year EEEBRM 1.16 (740) 1.16 (2,690)
At 31 December R+—A=+—H 4,360 5,100
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

25. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(b) Singyes New Materials share option scheme
(Continued)

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options
outstanding as at the end of the year are as follows:

25. R HERTEI (8)
(b) BEFPERERE S

(%)

RERBRITEBREZTTEE
RATERAOT -

Number of shares
k8 E
For the year ended
31 December

8EZE+=-A=+—H
IFSERE

Exercise price Exercise period 2023 2022
T T —g== —z-—%
HKD per share '000 '000
SR il T
1.16 31/1/2021-30/1/2028 1,453 1,700
1.16 31/1/2022-30/1/2028 1,453 1,700
1.16 31/1/2023-30/1/2028 1,454 1,700

4,360 5,100

During the year ended 31 December 2023, a total of 740,000
options (2022: 2,690,000) were forfeited due to the resignation
of grantees and no options (2022: Nil) were surrendered by a
grantee.

HE-ZT_=F+-A=+—H
IEFE - #£740,00010 8% (=
T~ —4F 1 2,690,00017 ) A &R
ABHEMBLU - T EAE A
WEECMERE(ZZT ==

&) .
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE =T —_=F+=-A=+—HItFE

26. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein for

the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated statement

of changes in equity of the financial statements.

(a)

(b)

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited

Statutory reserves of the PRC subsidiaries

In accordance with the “Law of the PRC on Joint Ventures Using
Chinese and Foreign Investment” and the respective articles
of association of the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China,
appropriations from net profit, as determined in accordance
with PRC generally accepted accounting principles (“PRC
GAAP”) and after offsetting accumulated losses from prior years,
should be made to the statutory reserve fund and the enterprise
expansion fund, and before profit distributions to the investors.
The reserve fund can be used to offset accumulated losses or to
increase capital.

Enterprise expansion fund

The enterprise expansion fund can be used for business
development or to increase capital. The percentages to be
appropriated to the reserve fund and the enterprise expansion
fund in the foreign investment subsidiaries are determined by
the board of directors. In addition, the wholly-foreign-owned
subsidiaries are not required to appropriate the enterprise
expansion fund, and the percentages to be appropriated to the
reserve fund shall be no less than 10%. When the cumulative
reserve fund reaches one-half of the registered capital, the
appropriation is no longer mandatory.

Annual Report 2023

26. EiE

AEBRAFREBEFREZFREHE
NIBAZEH N M ERR 2 REEEE
BRA -

(a)

(b)

PEIM B ASIMEE A

RIBCREARLMBEFINEGEL
BRER)RAE B P BA R
BRRMARER  AitRRS
BARGTEN(FEARES

I ]) EE AR (REHEFR
FHEERR RAKREED KGN
A BWEERHBES MEERER
A ZHEEESITRAREHER
FHEEZGEINE A o

EEEREE

CERERESTAREBERSL
EINER o SR E B D F B
NEREESREERERESH
BAOLLABEESETE © I S
8 A MY B B B 2R i A N R A
EhEBERES  MBNZEEE
HEEHADHLATLRI0% - B
REESRAEZEIEMER—
£ AEEHIE



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR MY et

For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE—ZT—_=F+=-A=+—HItFE

26. RESERVES (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Share option reserve

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of share
options granted which are yet to be exercised, as further
explained in the accounting policy for share-based payments in
note 40.20 to the consolidated financial statements. The amount
will either be transferred to the share premium account when
the related options are exercised or be transferred to retained
earnings should the related options expire or be forfeited. As at
31 December 2023, no share options were forfeited (2022: nil).

Safety fund surplus reserve

Pursuant to Notice regarding Safety Production Expenditure
jointly issued by the Ministry of Finance and the State
Administration of Work Safety of the PRC in February 2012, the
Group is required to establish a safety fund surplus reserve. The
safety fund can only be transferred to retained profits to offset
safety related expenses as and when they are incurred, including
expenses related to safety protection facilities and equipment
improvement and maintenance as well as safety production
inspection, appraisal, consultation and training.

26. f#iE (&)

(c)

(d)

FRRz R

BRERERFERHBERARTT
R EREN N TE  E—2H
it RARE M WA M E40.208
BAARR 17 R ERER A B & 5T IR
B o RFARS N EEBAREET
FEREBRERMDGER - fHE
A A R SO M - BB

EREBN - RZEBE-=F1+=
A=+—8 HBERREE AW
(ZE=—F )
Z2EELEBIMEE

REPRET BRI RERE 2 EE
EBEERBRNR_E—=-F=A
GEEBMNEARLEEEBNB
M AEBARILEES AR
e “2ESRANREERE
BEREEN AR L 2 HEH
X BIEHETRZELRRERT
LgEARLZE2EERSE - 7
it HARIENEENHAE o

PEKEEEEREEER QA
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

27. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 27. BB SRIERERER
As at 31 December
n+=-A=+—H
2023 2022
—T-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTR ARETT
(Restated)
(#==51)
Trade payable JETE 5 FIE 3,204,077 3,042,262
Bills payable JiANESE 134,031 60,000
3,338,108 3,102,262
As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the aging analysis of the trade RZEZ=FR-_FT-__F+=A
and bills payables based on transaction date were as follows: =+—H ERXSHHAENEMNE

SRR EWEBERREATAT

As at 31 December

B+=-A=+—H
2023 2022
—g-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBFT
(Restated)
(5 =%))
Within 3 months =@AM 1,113,107 859,359
Between 3 months and 6 months =Z=EA 237,245 229,749
Between 6 months and 1 year NEAE—F 511,279 1,159,054
Between 1 year and 2 years —EMF 1,115,730 643,973
Between 2 years and 3 years ME=F 193,833 118,945
Over 3 years =FLAE 166,914 91,182
3,338,108 3,102,262
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

27. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES (Continued) 27. BfTESRIEREMSER
The trade and bills payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally ERNESRENENEEAEEWEE
settled within one to three months and between 1 year and 2 years. BR—Z=ZEAHRAR—EMFHELE

g
The carrying amounts of trade and bills payables approximated their ERNESHRERENEEARMERLE
fair values as at the balance sheet date. NFERSE °
28. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 28. HithFEMFRIE R FECtFRIE
As at 31 December
"+=-A=+—H

2023 2022
—E-=F —EC-
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFTT
(Restated)
(fe&%)
Amounts due to related parties (note 37) e B T 5RIE (P52 37) 2,257,291 1,113,448
Tax and surcharge payables JERFR TR K & 457,137 349,283

Payables for acquisition of subsidiaries Lo B BT 1B N B FE ST R IE
(note 2.1(b)) (MiEE2.1(b)) 143,953 163,953
Accrued expenses FERTRIY 44,213 32,642
Dividend payable JERTAR B 12,450 9,038
Interest payables FERTFIE 19,750 6,100
Others Hiftb 378,167 338,781
3,312,961 2,013,245
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

29. BORROWINGS 29. f&&
As at 31 December
n+=-A=+—H

2023 2022
—B=% T —4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFTT
(Restated)
(fe&%))

Non-current IR ED
Bank borrowings — Secured RITEE - 5K 1,178,553 1,775,443
Bank borrowings — Unsecured RITEE - EEH 518,064 472,722
Other borrowings — Secured HAbfEE - G 3,359,707 3,200,445
5,056,324 5,448,610

Current RE

Bank borrowings — Secured IRITIEE - AT 1,352,796 322,766
Bank borrowings — Unsecured IRITIEE - EIKIF 569,781 783,472
Other borrowings — Secured HEEE - K 429,619 608,820
Other borrowings — Unsecured HiEE - i - 696,460
2,352,196 2,411,518
Total borrowings EEBEE 7,408,520 7,860,128

The fair values of the borrowings of the Group approximated their
carrying amounts as at the balance sheet date, since either the interest
rates of those loans are close to current market rates or the loans are of
a short-term nature.

As at 31 December 2023, the bank borrowings were secured by the
pledge of the Group’s property, plant and equipment (note 14), trade
receivables (note 21), and equity shares of the subsidiaries. The bank
borrowings were also guaranteed by the Shuifa Energy, Shuifa Group,
Shandong Shuifa Holdings, and certain subsidiaries of the Group (note
37(d)).

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE -2 —=

29. BORROWINGS (Continued)

FH—RA=+—HLFE

As at 31 December 2023, the other borrowings were borrowed from

finance lease companies, by way of equipment sale-and-leaseback

arrangements, The other borrowings were secured by the Group’s

property, plant and equipment (note 14), trade receivables (note 21),

the right on the annual return of its certain solar photovoltaic power

station and equity shares of certain subsidiaries. The other borrowings

were also guaranteed by the Shuifa Energy, Shuifa Group and
Shandong Shuifa Holdings (note 37(d)).

29. & (%)

R-ZZE-=%F+=-AH
ETAR

(21 »

=+—8 - HihfE
REERERZEZTABRE
MERAREA - HfEEAAREE 2
¥ BB RRE(HELL)

EWE 5
ET KRG NER
F [ ke B oE TP B R AR 2 SRR
PER - HAEE IR AR/KEEERRKE
5 B DA R L SRR B HR AR AR (R FE AR (P RE

37(d)) °
The Group's borrowings are repayable as follows: AEEMEEERATBHES
As at 31 December
R+=-A=+—H
2023 2022
—F== —E-F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREET T
(Restated)
(sE7)
Bank borrowings repayable IRITEEANRA T AEREE
Within one year —FR 1,922,577 1,106,238
In the second year F_F 561,102 899,925
In the third to fifth years, inclusive E=FZENF(PEEEMF) 406,813 758,451
Beyond five years REUE 728,702 589,789
3,619,194 3,354,403
Other borrowings repayable HifEEANATBEERER
Within one year —FR 429,619 1,305,279
In the second year E_F 299,218 308,881
In the third to fifth years, inclusive E=FZENF(PEEREWF) 1,756,642 1,234,978
Beyond five years HEL L 1,303,847 1,656,587
3,789,326 4,505,725
7,408,520 7,860,128
ZEC=FFH PEKEHEEEREEERAA
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

29. BORROWINGS (Continued)

As at 31 December 2023, except for the bank borrowings which
were denominated in USD and HKD, being USD70,000,000
(equivalent to RMB495,462,000) and HKD578,981,000 (equivalent
to RMB524,684,000), all other bank and other borrowings were
denominated in RMB.

The weighted average effective interest rates per annum for the years
ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 were as follows:

29. & (%)

RZE_=Z%+ZA=+—8"
% LA70,000,000 7T (18 & A A R ¥
495,462,0007T ) s E K RTE R K
LA578,981,000/ (18 & M A R #&
524,684,0007T ) HE K SRITEE N
FiA HMR1T R EMEEEAARES
@ o

BHE-_ZT_=FKR-_FT-_—_F+=-A
=+— B ILFEZNEFSERFEF R
o

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=t+—HILEE

2023 2022

—BC-=#f ke Stk 2

(Restated)

(#&=E7))

RMB ARHE 5.24% 5.30%
usD ETT 5.67% 6.42%
HKD BIT 5.23% 5.33%

30. BONDS PAYABLE

30. FEfHES

As at 31 December

R+-A=+—H
2023 2022
—g=-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBFT
(Restated)
(#e&75)
Current ED 1,507,182 =
Non-current FERE 50,450 75,500
1,557,632 75,500
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

30. BONDS PAYABLE (Continued)

The bonds payable recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2023 were as follows:

30. FEfHESH (BB)

R-FB_=F+-_A=t+t—HZ&EEH
BIRRKR PR ENESFAT

As at 31 December

BR+=-A=+—H

2023 2022

—EB=HF T

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETFT

(Restated)

(&E751)

As at 1 January (Restated) K—RA—R &) 75,500 -

Issue of Panda notes BITRESN IR 1,497,750 75,500
Effective interest recognised for the year AEERRNERF S

(note 10) (MzE10) 14,997 1,594

Interest paid during the year REFEAHE (5,565) (1,594)

Redemption of notes BREIEE (25,050) -

As at 31 December R+-—A=+—H 1,557,632 75,500

On 19 January 2023, the Company issued first panda notes with
an aggregate nominal value of RMB100,000,000 (the “First Panda
Notes”) and with a coupon rate of 6.5% per annum. The First Panda
Notes, initially offered to eligible scheme creditors, have been listed
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange since January 2023, and will be fully
payable by 19 January 2026.

On 12 December 2023, the Company issued second panda notes
with an aggregate nominal value of RMB1,400,000,000 (the “Second
Panda Notes”) and with a coupon rate of 4.5% per annum. The
Second Panda Notes, initially offered to eligible scheme creditors, have
been listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange since December 2023,
and will be fully repayable by 12 December 2026.

RZZE_=F—A+TNA  "RAFET
B E A AR 100,000,000 7T H) & it
IR ((EHRMRE] - EEEF
EH65% c EHERBERFEIEITT
BERMETEIBEREA  WH-TZ=F
—ARELEEER S ET - BN
ZEIRNF-AThBRIEYEE

RZZEZ=F+ZA=+—H8 ' E&2
ﬂ??f?,.wﬁfﬁﬁy}\iﬁgl4000OOOOO
TTRE P RBER((E o HRERHE
TJ%J)'TEE%IJTFMS% EHbAE
HMEBRTNETTEERNTEIER
A WEHZEZ=F+= Hfd{L

(AR BH LT BERZ /\¢+_
A+ZHAEEEE -
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30. BONDS PAYABLE (Continued)

The Company has the right to decide whether to adjust the coupon
rate of the Panda Notes at the end of the first and second years of its
existence. After the Company issues a notice on whether to adjust the
coupon rate, the investors have the right to sell all or part of the Panda
Notes back to the Company at the notes’ face value during the resale
registration period as defined in the Panda Notes’ documents.

31. DEFERRED INCOME TAX

The analysis of net deferred income tax assets and deferred income
tax liabilities is as follows:

30. FEfHES (/E)

31.

ARRIBRRERENRMRBFEN
FERE_FERARBURENR
A o FWANARIERIB M ATER © R
ARRIBEEHEDTARRBERENR
EMEE  REEARERMERETE
HE-FRE_FOLESTHRRE
BEHRELESBAMIRBERET AL
7l e

EEFTRREE

RIS HEERELHESHRAETE
DHTEAT -

As at 31 December

R+-A=+—H
2023 2022
—g-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTFT
(Restated)
(Fe5E751)
Deferred tax assets: REPTISHEE -

— to be recovered within 12 months - B+ =@ A RKE 207,246 211,637

— to be recovered after more than 12 - R+ ZEA%ZKRE
months 138,713 103,064
Total deferred tax assets BRI IEE ERTE 345,959 314,701
Set-off with deferred tax liabilities BURERIE B EH (6,198) (1,754)
Net deferred tax assets EEIBEEFE 339,761 312,947
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

31. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

31. EERMIBEE ()

As at 31 December

R+=-A=+—H

2023 2022

—E-=F —E-CF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT AREFTT

(Restated)

(gE5)

Deferred tax liabilities: BEETHEARE -

— to be settled within 12 months - B+ =R RIKE 6,915 1,272

— to be settled after more than 12 months - B+ =@ A &K E 105,007 107,443
Total deferred tax liabilities RIERIB B BT 111,922 108,715
Set-off with deferred tax assets YR IERTE B EE 5 (6,198) (1,754)
Net deferred tax liabilities ELERIBEEFE 105,724 106,961

ZRC=FFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

31. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 1. iBEEFRIBEE (8)
The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the vyear, FABEEMSHEENBB(ALES
without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances within the BEBIER—BREANES) 228
same tax jurisdiction, is as follows: NN
Fair value
Unrealized adjustments
Costincured ~ profit from arising from Tax losses
with invoice ~intra-group  Impairment Lease  Government acquisition  recognized
delayed transactions loss liabilities grants  of subsidiaries  deferred tax Others Total
£8h WEHE ER
YREE ATHRAZ AFEE  EEREZ

Efoix  REREM  WEPR  RERR DAY LTEER  HARR L) it
RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RWBOOD  RMBO0D  RWB000  RMBOOD  RMBOOO  RMBO0O
ARRTR  ARBTR  ARRTR  ARBTR  ARRTR  ARBTR  ARMTR  ARRTR  ARRER

Deferred income tax ~ BREATIBHIAE :

assets:

Atllanvay202  HZF-ZF

(Restated) —A-R(&E3) 103866 14837 155,007 2,00 2111 4478 - - 30349
Recognised in profitor B FRE?
loss (76,802) (4,035) 20712 (306) (1930) (231) 72433 - 11,202

At31 December 2022 R-E-—F

(Restated) tZA=1+-A
(i) 27,064 10802 177,019 18% 21,181 4247 7243 - 314701

Recognised in profitr ~ EE£ AR

[oss 2,040 3619 3,31 (1,384) (843) (233) 6,223 110 44938
Disposal o the HEHBAR

subsidiary (4,645) - (9,063) - - - - - (13708)
Recognised inother ~ REM2ANERD

comprehensive

income - - 8 - - - = = 8

At31 December 2023 R-E-=F
T2A=1-8 24,459 14,481 203,395 511 20,333 4,014 78,656 110 345,959
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31. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 31. BEFRFHREE (&)
Fair value Financial
adjustments assets
arising from Provision for at fair value

acquisition of Right-of-use withholding  through profit

subsidiaries assets income tax or loss Total
BATEdE
Wi B BHEH
ATEEZ fiIn FAEGS
ATEAR ERAEEE  EHES EHEE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBETT ARETT AR®TT ARETT AR%®TR

Deferred tax liabilities: BEBIEEME :

At 1 January 2022 N-TE-—F
(Restated) —A—8
(g E751) 21,337 2,105 86,860 - 110,302
Recognised in the profit #1825 AR
or loss (1,237) (350) = = (1,587)
At 31 December 2022 ~RZZEZ—4F
(Restated) +-A=+—H
(=7) 20,100 1,755 86,860 - 108,715
Recognised in the profit  E1Ez RHER
or loss (1,237) (1,406) - 5,850 3,207
At 31 December 2023 ~HRZZE-—=F
+-A=+—~H 18,863 349 86,860 5,850 111,922
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE—ZE-_=F+-A=+—HIFE

32. DEFERRED INCOME

32.

EIE Wy

Year ended 31 December

R+-A=+—HIEEE

2023 2022
—EC-=HF —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AREETTT
(Restated)
(&5751)
Government grants: AT BN -
As at 1 January n—A—H 167,141 179,967
Released to profit or loss (note 8) #EiE (MFE8) (11,834) (12,826)
As at 31 December W+=ZA=A—H 155,307 167,141

The government grants are recorded as deferred government grants
and credited to profit or loss and on a straight-line basis over the
expected useful lives of the corresponding property, plant and
equipment or land use right.

33. DIVIDENDS

The directors did not recommend the payment of a dividend in respect
of the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: Nil).

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group did not pay
dividend (2022: paid RMB45,217,000).

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE—ZE-_=F+-A=+—RHIFE

34. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 34. FEHRRERME
OF CASH FLOWS

(a)  Reconciliation of profit before income tax to cash generated from (a) PBRETEFADGFHEEEFEELE
operations: IR ERRAT -
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=1+—HIEE
2023 2022
—F== —E-F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARSETR ARETT
(Restated)
(s E:7))
Profit before income tax FR TS A0 A £ 28,379 144,270
Adjustments for: BLATIEE (EL A% -
— depreciation of property, plant and - - B KR
equipment e 290,586 262,535
— depreciation of investment properties - REYEE 8,047 7,904
— depreciation of right-of-use assets - FRBEENE 19,038 18,596
— amortisation of intangible assets - B A E R 5,552 5,733
— share of profits of associates - L E R BRI (639) (1,363)
— net impairment losses on financial assets - SREERAENEE
and contract assets R EE B FEE 200,300 137,221
— impairment losses on inventories - FEREEE (1,838) =
— impairment loss of property, plant and o E )&
equipment BEEE (28,113) 13,605
— fair value change on FVPL - Tz’&?fﬁ AR
NF(EEF (38,285) =
— other impairment reverse - E‘rlﬂﬂ@ﬁ@ - 387
— gain on disposal of subsidiaries - WEHEB A AR (19,669) =
— gain on disposal of associates - LERE N A MIE - (2,496)
— equity-settled share option expense - RAEE 2 B
Ffﬁﬁ (337) 1,297
— loss on disposal of property, plant and - HEYE  BER
equipment and intangible assets SRR LA R
BENERE (7,779) 223
— foreign exchange losses - QI\EJES?E 14,885 46,502
— interest income - FBMA (27,086) (3,155)
— deferred income released to profit or loss = ﬁélﬁliTEﬁnE’]
(11,834) (12,826)
— other gains and losses - Eﬁﬂ”ﬂl:ﬁn&}éﬁ% (6,450) (8,877)
— finance costs - BE A 532,303 396,278
Changes in working capital: BEESEE
— increase in inventories - TFEEM 10,861 (13,060)
— increase in contract assets - AHEEEN (151,814) (252,999)
—increase in trade and bills receivables - B E 5 5RIE R B
Ei 0 (842,624) (890,885)
— increase in prepayments, other receivables - FE5RIE - AR
and other assets TAIE&/\‘rmﬁE
(387,694) (252,959)
— increase in trade and bills payables - F’Eﬁ‘é% RIE R JES
Egie jJD 471,891 592,305
— (decrease)/increase in contract liabilities - /\Z’]Efﬁ wd)
(202,041) 111,922
— increase in other payables and accruals - Hﬁﬂféﬁ KIE K
JE AT IR AN 384,700 300,504
Income tax paid B FiEH (54,800) (63,450)
Cash generated from operations KEEBDEANRS 185,539 537,212
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 &

34. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 34. ZEMERERME(B)
OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities RS ESELEZEEEE
Loans from
related parties
included in
amount due
to the
Leases Bonds related
Borrowings liabilities  Senior notes payables parties Total
A
FEfIRAR A
HIERY
IR A
& HEERE BRER EffEs  REMHER @it
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT ARETR ARETRT AREFRT ARETR
As at 1 January 2022 R-¥-—%-f-H 4,860,207 114,544 1,468,208 - 1,266,481 7,709,440
(Restated) (&=31)
Financing cash flows BERER 2,408,203 (3,406) (1,593,424) 75,500 (297,281) 589,592
New leases e = 7,319 = = = 7,319
Foreign exchange adjustments ~ JNEFIE 53,760 532 113,512 - (22,004) 145,800
Acquisition of subsidiaries iR B A 5] (P 36) 207,262 2,781 = = = 210,043
(Note 36)
Other changes - non cash Hitn88 - ERSEE 289,344 = = = = 289,344
borrowing
Interest expense FIESEY 218,409 5,437 87,553 1,594 55,209 368,202
Interest payments FIBHH (177,057) (5,437) (75,849) (1,594) - (259,937)
As at 31 December 2022 R=%== 7,860,128 121,770 - 75,500 1,002,405 9,059,803
(Restated) +=-RA=+-H
(&=31)
Financing cash flows HERER (331,105) (13,568) - 1472700 1,094,115 2,222,142
New leases or termination il - (15,358) - - - (15,358)
Foreign exchange adjustments ~ SME:HE 35,752 (1,130) = = 29,542 64,164
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAR (968,262) - - - - (968,262)
Other changes - non cash Hi 8 - FReRE 651,883 - - - - 651,883
borrowing
Interest expense FIERY 464,907 5,009 = 14,997 58,529 543,442
Interest payments FEFT (304,783) (5,009) - (5,565) - (315,357)
As at 31 December 2023 R=g== 7,408,520 91,714 - 1557632 2,184,591 11,242,457
+=B=+-H
(&=31)
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

35. COMMITMENTS

The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of the

reporting period:

35. ki

RBER - REEBAATEAFIE

31 December 31 December
2023 2022
—F-= T F
+=-A=+—H +=—RA=+—8H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREEFIT
(Restated)
(fe&E%))
Contracted, but not provided for: BETABEREME
Capital contribution for equity investment SIS EEE 491,300 995,074
Construction of buildings and EREFR
solar photovoltaic power stations NI AN R 52,065 171,512
543,365 1,166,586
36. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS 36. B EH
(a) Business Combination Under Common Control (a) HEEHITHERSH

As mentioned in Note 2, on 9 December 2022, Hunan Green
Energy, an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into an equity transfer agreement with Shuifa Clean
Energy, a company controlled by the ultimate holding company,
Shuifa Group. Pursuant to the equity transfer agreement,
Hunan Shuifa Singyes agreed to subscribe for 105,613,100
shares of Shuifa Clean Energy at the aggregate subscription
price of RMB503,774,500 (equivalent to approximately HK
$569,265,185).The transaction was completed on 29 March
2023.

ZRC=FFR

WA E2R R RZT ==
+ZANAB - HEEEER(EK
ANRIZEZEZEWB AR HEK
BERER (B &KRER A RIK
BEEEFIHAQR) LIRS
B o REBEREEZBE D
FAKEHEERENGRBEA
R #503,774,5007C ( 18 & 7 49
569,265,185 7T ) R K 3B R
82/ 105,613,100 I I 17 © 7% X
SR _E-_=ZF=ZA-1+NB%x
ﬁ °
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36. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued) 36. ¥BE&H (8)
(a) Business Combination Under Common Control (@ HEEHTHEBSH(E)
(Continued)
RATE - HEZEERKIKES
The Company, Hunan Green Energy and Shuifa Clean Energy REFRRAER S 2RI k2%
are all under the control of Shuifa Group before and after ROKEBEEEES c Bt 0 FiiR
the above transaction. Therefore, the above transaction was SWRBHRESEH  KRAE
regarded as a common control combination and accounted for HEtRAETETERIE - R
using the principles of merger accounting. Comparative figures - _F+-_A=+—HE&EZ
as at 31 December 2022 and for the year ended 31 December T —E+A=+—HILEE
2022 were also restated accordingly. KL BB F I EEES -
Reconciliation of the results of operations for the year ended 31 Hz—_Z2-_—_F#+=-A=+—8H
December 2022 and the financial position as at 31 December IEFERREEE R AEB LA
2022 previously reported by the Group and the restated amounts ERR T _FF+A=+—
presented in the consolidated financial statements are set out BB B A AR BT BR + LA KRR
below: EMBRETEINKLES ©HE
&y
As at
31 December As at
The Group ~ The Common 2022 31 December
(as previously Control The Group 2023
reported) Acquisitions Elimination (Restated) The Group
n-%-Z
+ZA=+-B RI¥Z=
A5HE R %8 +=A=t-8
(ERIZH) ke e (EE50) *&E

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®EFRT  ARBFR  ARRTR  AR®TR  ARETR

Financial position MR
Current assets MEEE 9,905,086 779,952 (24,732) 10,660,306 13,110,373
Total assets BEBE 16,971,204 2,453,862 (24,732) 19,400,334 21,638,452
Current liabilities TEERE 7,136,534 912,89% (24,732) 8,024,696 10,795,996
Total liabilities BREES 11,904,318 2,059,380 (24,732) 13,938,965 16,229,706
Equity atiributable to the equity A2 AR B ARE(GE

holders of the Company & 4,199,037 310,824 (152,304) 4,357,557 4318158
Non-controlling interests RS 867,849 83,659 152,304 1,103,812 1,090,588
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(a)

36. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued) 36. ¥ EH (B)
Business Combination Under Common Control (a) HEHEEFITHEBRSH (B)
(Continued)
As at
31 December As at
The Group ~ The Common 2022 31 December
(as previously Control The Group 2023
reported) Acquisitions Elimination (Restated) The Group
n-%=-Z
+ZA=+-B RZBZ=
F5HE *x%B +=-A=t+-H
(GRIZH) SRR fia (&30 F5E
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT N S ARETR PN ARETR
Results of operations megs
Revenue WA 4,914,282 232,019 - 5,146,301 4,360,280
Operating profit B R 436,075 146,457 - 582,532 547,842
Profit for the year FENET 21,123 86,961 = 108,084 10,729
Profit attributable to the owners KA Al B A BT
of the Company 33837 77,608 (38,027) 43418 (22,743)
Profit attributable to the non- ~ FEIEAREZS (R I
controlling interests 17,286 9,353 38,027 64,666 33,472
Basic earnings per share BREKER
(RMB) (AR®) 0.002 0.031 - 0.017 (0.009)
Diluted earnings per share (sl erahl
(RMB) (AR%) 0.002 0.031 - 0.017 (0.009)
ZEZEFE PEKBREEEREEERAR]
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION

Related parties are those parties that have the ability to control, jointly
control or exert significant influence over the other party in holding
power over the investee; exposure or rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and the ability to use its power over the
investee to affect the amount of the investor’s returns. Parties are also
considered to be related if they are subject to common control or joint
control. Related parties may be individuals or other entities.

Same as disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group’s
entities had the following transactions and balances with related parties
during the year ended 31 December 2023, and as at the balance sheet
date:

(@) Transactions with related parties

37. FERXS

MEiERR RS AREHREY
KA EE M AT HIREHRITEENN
ALTTHERFENNAL | FAER
FAEBHE2EKEHR T E D RN
BN AL AR AR AR IRE
HERNENZEREEQBEEOA
T o RARFEHISEE S ZEHE) A LI
BRES - BETAREAREGE

ki)
Az °

LS S ES SR Bl G
A #E-2-=Ft+-A=t+—AL
TERAERERAS AREEER
BET P RAEHIT -

(a) HEEBEFHIRS

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLLEE

2023 2022
—g-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTFT
(Restated)
(ge5E751)
Ultimate holding company: S Sy /NI
Loan interest expense B 46,373 55,209
Fellow subsidiaries: REMBAFR :
Purchase of goods B & 56,643 34,842
Sale of goods HEMM 27,989 97,356
Loan interest expense BRA B 12,156 2,588
Loan interest income BRI B A 10,748 =
Purchase of construction services I B LRSS 8,823 96,538
Provision of construction services R R R 5,895 5,801
Sale of electricity =X 2,101 1,792
Provision of operating leases RS E 592 1,206
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION (Continued) 37. AERRXS (E)
(b) Balances with related parties (b) BAEFLER

As at 31 December

B+=-A=+—H
2023 2022
—g-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBFT
(Restated)
(Fe5E751)
Due from fellow subsidiaries: FEW R KB AR :
Prepayments, and receivables and TEfTFRIE « H A FERGRIE K&
other assets (note 22) HAit &2 (it 22) 358,288 265,888
Contract assets BREE - 8,786
Due from non-controlling interest of FEUR BT BB B FEIE AR fE A
subsidiaries:
Prepayments, and receivables and TEFIE - AMERRIER
other assets (note 22) Em&EE (ME22) 27,000 10,000
Due to the ultimate holding company:  FEfT & ARIZRLA A
Other payables and accruals HAofE B R IERTE A
(note 28) (B3 28) 1,937,169 900,142
Due to fellow subsidiaries: ERRZMEB AR :
Other payables and accruals HA R E R ERTE A
(note 28) (Pt5E28) 320,122 213,306
Dividend payable (note 28) FERTAR S (M15E28) 2,000 =
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE =T —_=F+=-A=+—HItFE

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION (Continued)

(b)

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited

Balances with related parties (Continued)

The amounts due from fellow subsidiaries as at 31 December
2023 included an amount of RMB10,748,000 (2022: Nil), which
was interest bearing at a rate of 5% (2022: Nil) per annum.

The amount due to the ultimate holding company, Shuifa Group,
as at 31 December 2023 included a loan with principal amount
of RMB1,925,937,000 (2022: RMB812,405,000). The loan
was unsecured, interest bearing at a rate of 6% (2022: 6%) per
annum and repayable on demand.

The amounts due to fellow subsidiaries as at 31 December 2023
included a loan due to Shuifa Energy with principal amount of
RMB258,654,000 (2022: RMB190,000,000). The loan was
unsecured, interest bearing at a rate of 6% (2022: 6%) per
annum and repayable on demand.

Apart from the above, all other amounts due from or to related
parties were unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.

Annual Report 2023

37. FERRX S (E)

(b)

BRER &eR (4E)

RZZEZ=F+=A=+—8H"
BRRRMBARNKEAERE
BHEAREKI10,748000 (= =F
TF E)MRIE - RERMEX
5% (T4 \E)58 -

RZEBEZ=Z=F+=ZA=+—
B BNSEERAFIKES
ENRERREASEAARE
1,925,937,000L( =T = =
AR812,405,0007T) KIE K -
BERAERFNERH(ZE
ZZF 1 6%)  WIRERERE -

RZB-_=F+=-A=+—
H - ERR RN B D E KR
BRRBEREASEAARK
258,654,000t (ZF =4 : A
R # 190,000,000 7T ) I E 3K o &
BRERFRER6% (2T
F:6%)  WIREBREE -

Bk Lt &SN - PTE E At U EK
TRARE T IR REER - 8
BARERERE -
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION (Continued)

(c) Compensation of key management personnel of the
Group

37. FERRH (B

(c) FEEXEEEASHIHN

Year ended 31 December

BE+-RA=t+—HILEE

2023 2022

—E-=F —E-CF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT AREFTT

(Restated)

(geE5)

Salaries, allowances and benefits e R REYAE 8,635 12,618
Pension scheme contributions RIREFT B 804 334
9,439 12,952

(d) Guarantees obtained from related parties

The Group’s bank borrowings and other loans borrowings are
guaranteed by related parties of the Group as below.

The borrowings of RMB2,172,263,000 were guaranteed by
Shandong Shuifa Holdings.

The borrowings of RMB1,645,540,000 were guaranteed by
Shuifa Energy.

The borrowings of RMB1,188,750,000 were guaranteed by
Shuifa Group.

The borrowings of RMB49,980,000 were guaranteed by Shuifa
Group and Shandong Shuifa Holdings.

ZRC=FFR

(d) WREFEFRFIER

AEENRITEEREMERE
EmAEEEETREERET -

AR#2,172,263,000 THIEEH

LSRR B ARAEAR -

AR 1,645,540,000 TTEYE & i

IKEEBEIRIELR

AR 1,188,750,000 T B E H

IKEEEIELR

A B # 49,980,000 7T 19 12 & 7K
BEB ML EKEEAER -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B FE ¥R MY RE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

38. XATFMMFFIRRFR

COMPANY
At 31 December At 31 December
2023 2022
N-B-=% . S—
+=HA=+—H +=—A=+—8
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT
ASSETS &E
Non-current assets EFREEE
Property, plant and equipment L E Y 13,218 13,450
Equity investment designated at fair EERATETEEEEE T ALM
value through other comprehensive 2 ERENERRE
income 5,546 5,467
Investment in subsidiaries BB R AIEE 107,909 47,542
126,673 66,459
Current assets REEE
Amount due from subsidiaries i G YNCIE S 1,764,635 1,909,734
Prepayments, other receivables and TERTEIE ~ Eofth FEUCGHIE R B qth & B
other assets 9,073 -
Cash and cash equivalents HeMREEEY 1,546,078 9,584
Pledged deposits HEPTF R - 243,172
3,319,786 2,162,490
Total assets AEMRE 3,446,459 2,228,949
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA RS ¥R AR MY RE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY (Continued)

38. KABIMBIABRRR (B)

At 31 December

At 31 December

2023 2022
R-E|-=%f RZE-—F
+=-A=+—H +=-RA=+—8H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFTT
EQUITY HEx
Equity attributable to owners of the ~ AATHHE ARE(LH#EL
Company
Issued capital BBITIRAR 174,333 174,333
Reserves (a) 1 (a) 2,032,698 2,025,728
Accumulated losses RETEE (1,819,946) (1,632,363)
Total equity HEZRUEEE 387,085 567,698
LIABILITIES B
Non-current liabilities FEREBEE
Borrowings EBE 232,340 253,198
Current liabilities REEE
Amount due to subsidiaries FET BT A B ZRIE 535,687 177
Bonds payables EHES 1,507,182 =
Borrowings B 575,606 1,247,531
Other payables and accruals HAb e RIBE R IERTE A 208,559 160,345
2,827,034 1,408,053
Total liabilities WEE 3,059,374 1,661,251
Total equity and liabilities WS REE 3,446,459 2,228,949

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors of

the Company on 28 March 2024 and were signed on its behalf.

Mr. Wang Dongkai
ERFEE

Director

EF

ZRC=FFR

HEUBRRCEALNAEFEN-F
—mES A=A BHETEATAL

RREE -

Mr. Zhou Guangyan
AEERE

Director

EF

PEKEEEEREEER QA
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IR MY aE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)

38. KABIMMFBKRR ()

(@ A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: (a) ARQEWREBEBRENT :
Fair value reserve
of financial
assets at
fair value
through
Share financial other Exchange
premium comprehensive Contributed Share option fluctuation Accumulated
account income surplus resene reserve losses Total
BATEEE
ABFRAL
2EYENER EXEE
BhERE  AELTHEEE BARS BIRERE e 2iER 5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
At 1 January 2022 RZB--F
-A-B 2,001,435 (7823) 23252 5,322 (112,046) (1,454,454) 505,686
Loss for the year TEEFR - - - - = (177.909) (177.909)
Change infairvalue of equity ~ RAT(EGBEE
instruments at fair value BEHTALMRE
through other comprehensive  MEMERT &
income, net of tax HATERY
Bl = 464 = = = = 464
Other comprehensive income £t 2z = = = = 110,341 = 110,341
Total comprehensive KERRE(FR)/
(loss)income for the year WAEE - 464 - = 110,341 (177.909) (67,104)
Transfer from share premium ~ ERERFEER
account (70,000) - 70,000 - - - -
2021 final dividend declared  EEE=F=—F
RERE - - (45,217) = = - (45,217)
At31 December 2022 RoB--E+-f
=+-f 1,931,435 (7.359) 48035 55,322 (1,706) (1,632,363) 393,365
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
LR Rl ER:

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE  38. AL SIBYEARRIR R T (B)
COMPANY (Continued)

(@) A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: (Continued) (a) AREWREEBRENT : (8)
Fair value reserve
of financial
assets at
fair value
Share through other Exchange
premium comprehensive Contributed Share option fluctuation Accumulated
account income surplus reserve reserve losses Total
BATEHER
2L
RENENSH B iRE
RivaRE — AEATERG SRS Tl ] gith gt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR AR AR ARETT

At 1 January 2023 RZZ-=F
-B-A 1,931,435 (7,359) 48,035 55,322 (1,705) (1,632,363) 393,365
Loss for the year KERER - - - - - (187,583) (187,583)
Change infairvalue of equity ~ RAT(E:TBE
instruments at fair value HEHH ALY
through other comprehensive ~ 2EIEEIER
income, net of tax TENMATE
29 MR - 79 - - - - 79
Other comprehensive income £ 2 EE - - - - 6,891 - 6,891

Total comprehensive KERRE(FR)/

(loss)fincome for the year et - 79 - = 6,891 (187,583) (180,613)
At 31 December 2023 RIZFZZE
+-A=t+-H 1,931,435 (7,280) 48,035 55,322 5,186 (1,819,946) 212,752
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IR MY aE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

39. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 39. EEEAIRER
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed B EWRA - BE R ANERHE 383(1)
pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1) (a),(b),(c),(d) and (g) of (@~ () () (R @ERRAR(HKE
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies BEEFEER)EMNE 2 BRENFAE
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as ERITBBRHEMSIT
follows:
2023 2022
—®'-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT
Fees e 1,210 1,277
Salaries, allowance and benefits in kind e ERREYMRE 877 2,172
Pension scheme contributions RIS FEIHR 209 251
2,296 3,700

206 China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR MY et

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

39. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 39. EEENRELE (E)

(Continued)
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees in kind contributions remuneration
& - ERL BRE
e BTz sHEIERR B &485t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFRT ARBTT ARETT
2023 —F-=%f
Executive directors: WITEE -
Mr. Wang Dongkai (a) (c) TR AE(@)(C) - - - =
Mr. Chen Fushan (b) PR AE LI ST AE (b) - = = =
Mr. Wang Dongwei ERELE 322 675 141 1,138
Mr. Zheng Qingtao (c) BEE A (C) - - - -
Non-executive directors: IEMITES :
Mr. Liu Hongwei (d) BUAT 4 55 4 (d) 322 202 68 592
Ms. Wang Suhui (e) FEIEL T (e) - - - -
Mr. Hu Xiao (f) HARE SR A () - - = =
Mr. Xie Wen (e) H A (e) - = = =
Ms. Li Li (f) TEZLM = = = -
Independent non-executive directors: B IFHITES :
Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon SRS A 268 = - 268
Mr. Wang Ching EREE 178 - - 178
Mr. Tan Hongwei e 120 - - 120
1,210 877 209 2,296
2022 —ET-—4F
Executive directors: WITES -
Mr. Liu Hongwei BUATHE S A& 322 596 76 994
Mr. Wang Dongwei ERELE 322 1,518 169 2,009
Mr. Chen Fushan (b) PR A& LI ST AE (b) - = = =
Mr. Zheng Qingtao (c) #EE ST () - - - -
Non-executive directors: IEMITES -
Mr. Xie Wen (e) AL (o) 27 58 91
Ms. Li Li (f) FERLZLTM - - - -
Independent non-executive directors: JBM FFFITES ¢
Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon PIKELE 267 = — 267
Mr. Wang Ching T REL 179 - — 179
Mr. Tan Hongwei e 160 = — 160
1,277 2,172 251 3,700
ZEC=FFH PEKEHEEEREEERAA 207
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B FE ¥R MY RE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE =T —_=F+=-A=+—HItFE

39. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

(e)

(h)

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited

Mr. Wang Dongkai does not obtain any remuneration from the
Company as he is also a senior executive of Shuifa Group and
his remuneration is borne by Shuifa Group. In the opinion of
the Directors, it is not practical to apportion his services and
remuneration as a director of the Company and as a senior
executive of Shuifa Group.

Mr. Chen Fushan does not obtain any remuneration from the
Company as he is also a senior executive of Shuifa Group and
his remuneration is borne by Shuifa Group. In the opinion of
the Directors, it is not practical to apportion his services and
remuneration as a director of the Company and as a senior
executive of Shuifa Group.

Mr. Zheng Qingtao resigned as an executive director of the
Company on 26 April 2023. Mr. Wang Dongkai was appointed as
an executive director of the Company on 26 April 2023.

Mr. Liu Hongwei was transferred from an executive director to a
non-executive director due to an internal job transfer within the
Group since 21 May 2023.

Mr. Xie Wen resigned as a non-executive director of the
Company on 21 May 2023. Ms. Wang Suhui was appointed as a
non-executive director of the Company on 21 May 2023.

Ms. Li Li resigned as a non-executive director of the Company on
16 October 2023. Mr. Hu Xiao was appointed as a non-executive
director of the Company on 16 October 2023.

Mr. Zhou Guangyan was appointed as an executive director of
the Company on 12 March 2024.

Other disclosures

Annual Report 2023
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR MY et

For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE—ZT—_=F+=-A=+—HItFE

39. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 39. EEEAIRELE (E)

(Continued)

Directors’ retirement benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any retirement benefits
for the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

Directors’ termination benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any termination benefits
for the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services

During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Company
did not pay consideration to any third parties for making available
directors’ services.

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other dealings
in favour of directors, controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors

There are no loans, quasi-loans and other dealing in favour of
directors, controlled bodies corporate by and connected entities with
such directors during the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

Directors’ material interests in transactions, arrangements
or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation to
the Group’s business to which the Company was a party and in which
a director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the years or at any time during the
years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

SEEFH PEKBEEEREREEARAT

EFEKEF

HE-_ZT-_=FR-F=-__F+=A
=+—HIFE  BEZEC WIS
U BT R AR BT o

EEEET

HE-_ZT-_=FRk-_ZF=-__F+=A
=+—HIFE  BEZEC WIS
U BR (R fr] B B 1R ) o

RERESRBAZE=AXHH
RIE

HE_T-_ZFrk-_F-__F+=A
=+—HLFE  ARBEARRESE
ERBEFE=AZARE -

FRARANES  HAMESE
HEERERARENEREZ
B - EERREMX HHEH

BHE_Z_=FK-_F__F+-A
=T—HIEFE TEFEEMNRES -
RIELERAEEEENEREIER
EERREAMRZ S o

EERXS  RUNASHPHE
PN

WEBBAEEEBNARRRIRIIANA
Z—BARRRESRAEPEENEER
BEAEGNEARS « WHHELOR
FRIBEZT-_=FR=-FT=_=
+Z A=+ A LFEEMASHEGFE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IR MY aE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE =T —_=F+=-A=+—HItFE

40. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

40.1 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

40.1.1 Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including a structured entities)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity where the Group is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for business combinations not under common control by
the Group.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
transferred asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of
subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, statement of
changes in equity and balance sheet respectively.

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR MY et

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

40. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

40. EXETBUREE (/5)

40.1Principles of consolidation and equity accounting 40. 1S ANREELSEFTEA

(Continued) (&)

40.1.2 Associates 4012 BE L\ A]

Associates are all entities over which the Group has
significant influence but not control or joint control. This
is generally the case where the group holds between 20%
and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates
are accounted for using the equity method of accounting,
after initially being recognised at cost.

Under the equity method of accounting, the investments
are initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group’s share of the post-acquisition profits
or losses of the investee in profit or loss, and the Group’s
share of movements in other comprehensive income of
the investee in other comprehensive income. Dividends
received or receivable from associates are recognised as a

reduction in the carrying amount of the investment.

Where the Group’s share of losses in an equity-accounted
investment equals or exceeds its interest in the entity,
including any other unsecured long-term receivables, the

BERRANEENERE
W7 akEhig: el g
FHEGIENAER - A&
B — MR #F B 20% E 50% 1%
SR o EARIRAAN T LARE
Rig - REERF ZRET
RERGFHENER ©

BRI  REVR
AR - HEFARIAR
BEERATEEELREY
KWW RBEFESREE - I
REMEERATRERRES
FEMTIRE SR E 2 E A
HEE) - O UCEkEREEE A
AR B R AL EREE
R o

fitt AR 52 B JE 1 LA RE 2 A\ BR IR
BENERAERIBHER
ZEROERR - BIEEM

Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has E b iR R HA R GR TR
incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the REBETSHEREINGE -
other entity. BIEHEREEETEEHRARRE

SREBELNR -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IR MY aE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE =T —_=F+=-A=+—HItFE

40. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

40. EXETBUREE (/5)

40.1Principles of consolidation and equity accounting 0.1 EANREESEFTEA
(Continued) (%)
40.1.2 Associates (Continued) 4012 BER A (E)

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and
its associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in these entities. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of equity-accounted investees have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments
is tested for impairment in accordance with the policy
described in note 40.9.

REEEEBENAETR
FZHIAR B W T LA -
DA SEIS ZE S 4Ll
RR - RIERZEFERRHA
FRrEZEEDRE - TRIK
BHERIT T A o AR
BmARNRE R RO EFTK
RERVRIER - ARER
SRR B PR M BUR (R F5 —
B o

s A\RRICE ORR A (B2 Mt
A 40.9 P A 1) Y 5R H#E 170
BRI o

40.2 Consolidation 40.2 B NER

40.2.1 Business combination 4021 EFESH

212

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for all business combinations, regardless of whether
equity instruments or other assets are acquired. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary
comprises the:

o fair values of the assets transferred

o liabilities incurred to the former owners of the
acquired business

o equity interests issued by the group

. fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a

AEEERBEEEBT
BEBAHAR TwESR
WiEa T ASEMEE -
Lol PNSIIECE ol v
B

s  FHEERBEMNAFE
o HWEXBWAESR
AEEMAE

o REBTITHRGE
o  HKAREBLRUMEL

contingent consideration arrangement, and KM EEXBED
NEE R
. fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the . B /8 A B R AE AT SE Al
subsidiary. GEBRENQATE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR MY et

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

40. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

40. EXETBUREE (/5)

40.2 Consolidation (Continued) 40.2GEBNER ()

40.2.1 Business combination (Continued) 4021 #EFEAGF(E)

|dentifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with
limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair values
at the acquisition date. The group recognises any non-
controlling interest in the acquired entity on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquired
entity’s net identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The excess of the:

. consideration transferred,

. amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquired entity, and

U acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity
interest in the acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired
is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less than
the fair value of the net identifiable assets of the business
acquired, the difference is recognised directly in profit or
loss as a bargain purchase.

HEEBA Grh B AT
BEMEAENRBERIREA
& - iR B e R
Bt 8 HEERHPIIME
o AEEIERIM B ELE
WA ES IR RIREL
PIREE R B R m] %
BEERW I EREAIFHE
PetEzs o

WHEHBARARELRX
§H °

IATNRIR

o EEAE-

e WWEEBBEMIEE
R - &

o BUKEEBMMEMSE
AR Y EE Bl
~FE

AnAR H PTUE FT SRR B
BRFE - BB AR
TERTE - xS BRERAT
WERBAIHAFEENRD
FE - EREENBSRER
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IR MY aE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

40. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

40.2 Consolidation (Continued)

40.2.1 Business combination (Continued)

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration
is deferred, the amounts payable in the future are
discounted to their present value as at the date of
exchange. The discount rate used is the entity’s
incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at which a
similar borrowing could be obtained from an independent
financier under comparable terms and conditions.
Contingent consideration is classified either as equity or a
financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial liability
are subsequently remeasured to fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising
from such remeasurement are recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR MY et

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

40. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

40. EXETBUREE (/5)

40.2 Consolidation (Continued) 40.2GEBNER ()

40.2.2 Common control combinations 4022 L[EIIEHIE GF

For common control combinations, the consolidated
financial statements incorporate the financial information
of the combining entities or businesses as if they had
been combined from the date when the combining
entities or businesses first came under the control of the
controlling party. The net assets of the combining entities
or businesses are combined using the existing book values
from the controlling parties’ perspective. No amount
is recognised in consideration of goodwill or excess
of acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of acquirer’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over
cost at the time of common control combinations, to the
extent of the continuation of the controlling party’s interest.

RARZEHISHNE © 56
MBHRRBREHERNKE
BHETEER - BNZER
HERIEHERIEN T
2HE BREAHEE - A6
ERAFEBNEEFENE
HETAENRBEREEA
B o iR s B AR
MIERT - ARSI A 6
BT emReBEREE
RESWEET R ETT A
HAEE - BERIARAE
B RFEFEE BN
AR S

The consolidated statement of comprehensive income LETERERBESAO
includes the results of each of the combining entities BRI EBHEREEYZA

or businesses from the earliest date presented or since
the date when the combining entities or businesses first
came under the common control, where there is a shorter
period, regardless of the date of the common control

combination.

Transaction costs, including professional fees, registration
fees, etc., incurred in relation to the common control
combination that is to be accounted for by using merger
accounting is recognised as an expense in the year in
which it is incurred.

EHEAHEBIEHER
SRS EHIE B R (AR
RERE)NRE  MBA
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B FE ¥R MY RE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE =T —_=F+=-A=+—HItFE

40. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

40.2 Consolidation (Continued)

40.2.3 Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained
interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair value at
the date when control is lost, with the change in carrying
amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is the
initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This
may mean that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.

40.3 Separate financial statements

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments
in subsidiaries and associates are accounted for at cost less
impairment (note 40.9). Cost also includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries and
associates is required upon receiving dividends from these
investees if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive
income of these entities in the period the dividend is declared or
if the carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR MY et

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

40. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 40. EXETBUERBE (&)
POLICIES (Continued)
40.4 Segment reporting 40.4 Y EPIRE
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with CESHIERA EEEERRE
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision- RIEHABHREEBR AR
maker. The board has appointed a strategic steering committee HE - ARAEEECEARE
which assesses the financial performance and position of the BELZBEEg ZZEgHASE
group and makes strategic decisions. The steering committee, B B R IR AR - M1 I SRR
which has been identified as being the chief operating decision RE -BEZESEWRTEAS
maker, consists of the chief executive officer, the chief financial [RRERRE  ERBIEITERE
officer and the manager for corporate planning. - B EE R ERELE o
40.5 Foreign currency translation 40.5 MR E
(i) Functional and presentation currency (i) EERZZIEH
Items included in the financial statements of each of REBES BB BHREM
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of BIEIEE - IRRERLE
the primary economic environment in which the entity FriE®) = 2B RBMAN
operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated EB([TheeEE D= -
financial statements are presented in RMB, while the HMAEPVERERAAREZ
Company’s functional currency is Hong Kong dollars H| - MARBNINEERE R
(“HKD"). BT (BT -
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218

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B FE ¥R MY RE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE =T —_=F+=-A=+—HItFE

40. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

40.5Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(ii)

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign

currencies are recognised in profit or loss.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are presented
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
within “finance costs, net”. All other foreign exchange
gains and losses are presented in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income within “other gains —

net”.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at
the date when the fair value was determined. Translation
differences on assets and liabilities carried at fair value
are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. For
example, translation differences on non-monetary assets
and liabilities such as equities held at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss as part of the
fair value gain or loss and translation differences on non-
monetary assets such as equities classified as fair value
through other comprehensive income are recognised in

other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR MY et

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

40. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

40.5Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(i)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities

(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary

economy) that have a functional currency different

from the presentation currency are translated into the

presentation currency as follows:

assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

all resulting exchange differences are recognised
as a separate component of other comprehensive

income.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B FE ¥R MY RE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE—ZT-=F+-_A=+—HILtFE

40. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

40.5Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(i)

Group companies (Continued)

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of any net investment in foreign entities, and
of borrowings and other financial instruments designated
as hedges of such investments, are recognised in other
comprehensive income. When a foreign operation is sold
or any borrowings forming part of the net investment
are repaid, the associated exchange differences are
reclassified to profit or loss, as part of the gain or loss on
sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the closing
rate.

40.6 Investment properties

Investment properties, principally comprising buildings, are held

for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both and

are not occupied by the Group. Investment property is measured

initially at its cost, including related transaction costs. After initial

recognition, the Group chooses the cost model to measure all of

its investment properties, which are stated at historical costs less

accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses,

if any. Depreciation of buildings is calculated using the straight-

line method to allocate their costs, net of their residual values

over their estimated useful lives of 50 years.

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR MY et

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

40. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

40.6 Investment properties (Continued)

The investment properties’ residual values and useful lives are

reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet

date. An investment properties’ carrying amount is written

down immediately to its recoverable amount if the investment

properties’ carrying amount is greater than its estimated

recoverable amount. Gains and losses on disposals are

determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount and

are recognised in profit or loss.

40.7 Intangible assets

(i)

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries which
is not under common control, is included in intangible
assets. Goodwill is not amortised but it is tested for
impairment annually, or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that it might be
impaired, and is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Gains and losses on the disposal of an
entity include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to
the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the
purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made to
those cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating
units that are expected to benefit from the business
combination in which the goodwill arose. The units or
groups of units are identified at the lowest level at which
goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes,
being the operating segments.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B FE ¥R MY RE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

40. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

40.7 Intangible assets (Continued)

(ii)

(i)

(iv)

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited

Software

Costs associated with maintaining software programs are
recognised as an expense as incurred. Acquired software
products are capitalised on the basis of costs incurred to
acquire and bring to use the specific software. These costs
are amortised over their estimated useful lives (5 years).

Customer relationship

Customer relationship represents the fair value of
relationship programs arising from the acquisition of
subsidiaries not under common control which is amortised
over the remaining period of validity 20 years.

Research and development

Research expenditure and development expenditure that
do not meet the criteria are recognised as an expense as
incurred. Development costs previously recognised as an
expense are not recognised as an asset in a subsequent
period.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B TSR R MY 5T

For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE—ZT—_=F+=-A=+—HItFE

40. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

40.8 Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful
life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually
for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other
assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which
are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or
groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets
other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting
period.

40.9 Investments and other financial assets

40.9.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

. those to be measured subsequently at fair value

(either through other comprehensive income (“OCI")
or through profit or loss), and

. those to be measured at amortised cost.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #;

T2-E—

=F+-A=+—HItFE

40. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

40.9 Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

40.9.1 Classification (Continued)

The classification depends on the entity’s business model

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited

for managing the financial assets and the contractual
terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will
either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For investments
in equity instruments that are not held for trading, this will
depend on whether the Group has made an irrevocable
election at the time of initial recognition to account
for the equity investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVOCI”).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only
when its business model for managing those assets
changes.

40.9.2 Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from
the financial assets have expired or have been transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 &

B2-FE—

=Ft+-A=+—HItFE

40. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

40.9 Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

40.9.3 Measurement

40. EXETBUREE (/5)

40. 9B ERAMEMEE (B)

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset

at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not

at fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL"), transaction

costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of

the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets

carried at FVPL are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered

in their entirety when determining whether their cash flows

are solely payment of principal and interest.

ZRC=FFR

4093 itZ

BRI BRARTFER
ERHEEHTFABRGE (A
NFEFEBEEEHF AR
s NEREE A%H
NERFEMETEZRR
RESZAEREENK S
BRETTOIARER © ELARD
FEFFEREEHT ABS
MEREERBNIZER
st AfBE -

HRBESHRAXITETARN
EREE  AREHERES
FZEERERERSER
REARS A SRS ©

PEKEEEEREEER QA

225



226

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IR MY aE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

40. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

40.9 Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
40.9.3 Measurement (Continued)

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends
on the Group’s business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are
three measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

. Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in finance
income using the effective interest rate method. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognised
directly in profit or loss and presented in other
gains/(losses) — net together with foreign exchange
gains and losses. Impairment losses are presented
as separate line item in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR MY et

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

40. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 40. EXEBRME(E)

POLICIES (Continued)
409 EREMEREE (B)

40.9 Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

40.9.3 Measurement (Continued) 4093 518 (&)

Debt instruments (Continued) BRIA(E)

Financial assets at fair value through other

BATE B ARY

comprehensive income: Assets that are held for it AR mEkas
collection of contractual cash flows and for selling MemEE  $INE
the financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows HEN ABRFA LAER

represent solely payments of principal and interest,
are measured at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying

RengMlHENS
BMEE MRZEE

amount are taken through OCI, except for the MBS REEARRYE
recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest ReEMF BT -
income and foreign exchange gains and losses Az EEW» BRI
which are recognised in profit or loss. When the ATFEFEREE

financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain
or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss and recognised in
other gains/(losses) — net. Foreign exchange gains
and losses are presented in other gains/(losses)
and impairment expenses are presented as
separate line item in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #;

T2-E—

=F+-A=+—HItFE

40. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

40.9 Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

40.9.3 Measurement (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

. Financial assets at FVPL: Assets that do not
meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI
are measured at FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt
investment that is subsequently measured at FVPL
is recognised in profit or loss and presented net
within other gains/(losses) in the period in which it
arises.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments
at fair value. Where the Group’s management has
elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity
investments in OCI, there is no subsequent reclassification
of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss following the
derecognition of the investment. Dividends from such
investments continue to be recognised in profit or loss as
other income when the Group’s right to receive payments
is established.

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR MY et

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

40. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 40. EXEBRME(E)

POLICIES (Continued)
409 EREMEREE (B)

40.9 Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

40.9.3 Measurement (Continued) 4093 518 (&)

Equity instruments (Continued)

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL are
recognised in other gains/(losses) in the statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income as applicable.
Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on
equity investments measured at FVOCI are not reported
separately from other changes in fair value.

40.9.4 Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the
expected credit losses associated with its debt instruments
carried at amortised cost. The impairment methodology
applied depends on whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified
approach permitted by IFRS 9, which requires expected
lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of
the receivables, see note 3.1 for further details.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA TSR R MY 5T

For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE =T —_=F+=-A=+—HItFE

40. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

40.10 Offsetting financial instruments

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the consolidated statement of financial position where
the Group currently has a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts, and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

40.11 Inventories

Raw materials and stores, work in progress and finished goods
are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
comprises direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of variable and fixed overhead expenditure, the latter
being allocated on the basis of normal operating capacity. Costs
of purchased inventory are determined after deducting rebates
and discounts. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

40.12 Trade and bills receivables, prepayments and other

receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary course of
business. If collection of trade receivables and other receivables
is expected in normal operating cycle, they are classified as
current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current assets.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE—ZT—_=F+=-A=+—HItFE

40. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 40. EXEBRME(E)

POLICIES (Continued)

40.12 FEW EE SRR IE I FE I SR 4R

40.12 Trade and bills receivables, prepayments and other

receivables (Continued)

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of
consideration that is unconditional unless they contain significant
financing components, when they are recognised at fair value.
The Group holds the trade receivables with the objective of
collecting the contractual cash flows and therefore measures
them subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. See notes 21 and 22 for further information about the
Group’s trade and bills receivables, prepayments and other
receivables, and note 3.1(b) for a description of the Group’s

impairment policies.

40.13 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held
at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less that
are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

40.14 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

40.13

40.14
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA TSR R MY 5T

For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE =T —_=F+=-A=+—HItFE

40. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

40.15 Trade and bills payables, other payables and accruals

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that
have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from
suppliers. Trade and other payables and accruals are classified
as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less. If

not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables and accruals are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using

the effective interest method.

40.16 Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in
profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective

interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised
as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this
case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the
extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all
of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a

prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the period

of the facility to which it relates.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR MY et

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

40. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 40. EXEBRME(E)

POLICIES (Continued)

40.16 Borrowings (Continued) 40.16 f&®K (&)

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the
statement of financial position in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying
amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished
or transferred to another party and the consideration paid,
including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed,
is recognised in profit or loss as finance costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for
at least 12 months after the reporting period.

40.17 Borrowings costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets,
which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period
of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added
to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B FE ¥R MY RE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

40. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

40.18 Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax

payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the

applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by

changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to

temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

(i)

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date in the countries where the Company
and its subsidiaries and associates operate and generate
taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation
and considers whether it is probable that a taxation
authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment. The
Group measures its tax balances either based on the most
likely amount or the expected value, depending on which
method provides a better prediction of the resolution of
the uncertainty.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR MY et

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

40. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

40.18 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(ii)

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. However, deferred
income tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from
the initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is
also not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period and are expected to apply when the
related deferred tax asset is realised or the deferred tax
liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable
that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise
those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised
for temporary differences between the carrying amount
and tax bases of investments that the company is able
to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

40. EXETBUREE (/5)

40.18 EMRIEERFH (5)

(i)

EAZFTZH

EEFTSTHIABBEREE
KB EMFREERE N
BHMBHRERANREEMRE
RNERZRTIAER - R
i WEE SR A ERE
VIF BB THER -
AN - (RIREEFT ISR B A
IR B VAERMEENL
BENBEBAHRIRRIN)
MRETR B 2L THE
ST SERTOR M SUEE -
AN HERIREFTSH o BT
PRSETOARIB A 3R & BAR AT
EEMRER O R mE
HEERECHREED#
REFBELEHAREDAE
B EANABERE (KA
B EE -

BRI RER R RERH TR
QY SAEE S Yy S
BRIERT » 77 AT RERIERT
MIBEE °

fird 25 72 B) B8 H4%0 151 485 [0 ET B
MEEFE - BREER
ATBE NE R ] R AG R -
AT g REINETS 2 R E R
EEENE 2 2 EREE
ERARCHEBELE
éc

PEKEEEEREEER QA

235



236

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE =T —_=F+=-A=+—HItFE

40. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

40.18 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(i)

Offsetting

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and where the deferred taxes
assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention to
settle the balances on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

40.19 Employee benefits

(i)

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary
benefits and accumulating sick leave that are expected
to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the
period in which the employees render the related service
are recognised in respect of employees’ services up to
the end of the reporting period and are measured at
the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are
settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee
benefit obligations in the statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR MY et

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

40. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

40.19 Employee benefits (Continued)

(ii)

Pension obligations

The Group companies in Mainland China participate in
defined contribution retirement benefit plans organised
by relevant government authorities for its employees in
Mainland China and contribute to these plans based on
certain percentage of the salaries of the employees on a
monthly basis, up to a maximum fixed monetary amount,
as stipulated by the relevant government authorities.
The government authorities undertake to assume the
retirement benefit obligations payable to all existing and
future retired employees under these plans.

The Group’s subsidiary in Hong Kong participates in
a mandatory provident fund (“MPF scheme”) for its
employees in Hong Kong. Both the subsidiary and the
employees are required to contribute 5% of the salaries
of the employee’s, up to a maximum of HKD1,500 per
employee per month. The assets of MPF scheme are held
separately from those of the subsidiary in an independent
administered fund.

The Group has no further significant obligation for post-
retirement benefits beyond the contributions made.
The contributions to these plans and MPF Scheme are
recognised as employee benefit expense when incurred.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

40. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

40.19 Employee benefits (Continued)

(i)

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited

Other employee benefits

In addition to pension obligation, all PRC employees of
the Group participate in various employee social security
plans, including medical, housing and other welfare
benefits, organised and administered by the governmental
authorities. According to the relevant regulations, the
premiums and welfare benefit contributions that should be
borne by the Group are calculated based on percentages
of the total salary of employees (or on other basis), subject
to certain ceiling, and are paid to the relevant government
authorities.

The Group has no further payment obligations once the
contributions have been paid. The Group’s contributions
to these plans are charged to profit or loss as incurred.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR MY et

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

40. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

40. EXETBUREE (/5)

40.20 Share-based payments 40.20 LARE I B BRI 1

The Group operates a number of equity-settled, share-based
compensation plans, under which the entity receives services
from employees as consideration for equity instruments (options)
of the Group. The fair value of the employee services received
in exchange for the grant of the options is recognised as an
expense. The unit amount to be expensed is determined by
reference to the fair value of the options granted:

. including any market performance conditions;

. excluding the impact of any service and non-market
performance vesting conditions (for example, profitability,
sales growth targets and an employee remaining on
service of the entity over a specified time period); and

. including the impact of any non-vesting conditions (for
example, the requirement for employees to save or hold
shares for a specific period of time).

Non-market performance and service vesting conditions are
included in assumptions about the number of options that
are expected to vest. The total expense is recognised over the
vesting period, which is the period over which all of the specified
vesting conditions are to be satisfied.

In addition, in some circumstances employees may provide
services in advance of the grant date and therefore the grant-
date fair value is estimated for the purpose of recognising the
expense during the period between service commencement
period and grant date.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE =T —_=F+=-A=+—HItFE

40. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

40.20 Share-based payments (Continued)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
vest based on the non-marketing performance and service
vesting conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision to
original estimates, if any, in profit or loss, with a corresponding

adjustment to equity.

The cash subscribed for the shares issued when the options are
exercised is credited to share capital (nominal value) and share
premium, net of any directly attributable transaction costs.

Liabilities for the Group’s long-term incentive plans are recognised
as employee benefit expense over the relevant service period
based on the estimated number of rights that are expected to
vest. The liabilities are presented as employee benefit obligations
and remeasured to fair value at each reporting date, with any
measurement changes recognised in profit or loss as employee
benefit expense. In estimating the fair value, market conditions
and non-vesting conditions are taken into account. Where share
appreciation rights are forfeited due to a failure by the employee
to satisfy the service conditions, the liability is derecognised and

expenses previously recognised are reversed.

For equity-settled share-based payment transactions, the Group
measures the assets or services received, and the corresponding
increase in equity, directly, at the fair value of the assets or
services received, unless that fair value cannot be estimated
reliably. If the Group cannot estimate reliably the fair value of the
assets or services received, the Group will measure their value,

and the corresponding increase in equity, indirectly, by reference

to the fair value of the equity instruments granted.

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023

40. EXETBUREE (/5)

40.20 LARx 3 B EEREIZF (48)

REREIR - NEBEH A
BIEMBRERREIGTEEZ
BRERE 2 et ETER - B
RBmPRERET RGN
E(WH) AR ETHER

o

REBBAERITERRBC EITR
R ARAE (EE) RBH
wE(HRERNEZEERSK
) e

AEERAUBEREENTE
MmO ENEE - R REE
REBENEERNMAS - BE
TER/REBEMNEE YRS
BEAHENFERAAFE A
ERFEBEFGNIERTHERBR
BRERMMAX NMEFATFE
- EEEMSGRERTARE
et o fi 4B B B R m 2 RS R 1
RN IB B4 - AR IERER
BfE - UEOIREBBHF o

A UARE 28 48 B DA D A5 B AT 3R
XHMmE  ARERDEREE
FEERERBHORIFE BE
FFECREBNEERCRENR
1 A RAAREIE IR - BRIE
% B 8 A 5 fl & BUE B
o AN BT RER] S ET E W
MEENCEERBO A FE
AREEH2ECDERENRA
TANRTE BEASHE
18 ARARRIE IR -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR MY et

For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE—ZT—_=F+=-A=+—HItFE

40. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 40. EXEBRME(E)

POLICIES (Continued)

40.20 Share-based payments (Continued) 40.20 LR B BRI T ()

The grant by the Company of options over its equity instruments
to the employees of subsidiary undertakings in the Group is
treated as a capital contribution. The fair value of employee
services received, measured by reference to the grant date fair
value, is recognised over the vesting period as an increase to
investment in subsidiary undertakings, with a corresponding
credit to equity in the parent entity accounts.

40.21 Provisions

Provisions for legal claims are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events,
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to
any one item included in the same class of obligations may be
small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s
best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate
used to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to
the passage of time is recognised as interest expense.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IR MY aE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

40. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 40. EXETBUEREE (&)
POLICIES (Continued)
40.22 Earnings per share 40.22 BSEEF
(i)  Basic earnings per share ()  EFREXEF
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the BREARZFIRBENR LR
profit attributable to owners of the Company, excluding any 18 2 SN AR S HE 2R K AN T4 B8R
costs of servicing equity other than ordinary shares, by the BRAARAREE ARMRE
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding R AZR B SF BTSN 3 3
during the financial year. AR pniE I EETE SR o
(i) Diluted earnings per share (i) EHREEEETF)
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in R ERFAZEAREE
the determination of basic earnings per share to take into FREARRFET - LA
account: K-
. the weighted average number of additional ordinary . fRE&FTE B EE e
shares that would have been outstanding assuming HBIE L BIRE R
the conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary IR T EHITEI
shares. B FE N 3B AR B N
Fg8 -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

40. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

40. EXETBUREE (/5)

40.23 B2

40.23 Dividend income

Dividends are received from financial assets measured at
FVPL and FVOCI. Dividends are recognised as other income in
consolidated statement of comprehensive income when the right
to receive payment is established. This applies even if they are
paid out of pre-acquisition profits, unless the dividend clearly
represents a recovery of part of the cost of an investment. In
this case, the dividend is recognised in OCI if it relates to an
investment measured at FVOCI. However, the investment may
need to be tested for impairment as a consequence.

40.24 Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset is
available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components.
The Group allocates the consideration in the contract to the
lease and non-lease components based on their relative stand-
alone prices. However, for leases of real estate for which the
Group is a lessee, it has elected not to separate lease and non-
lease components and instead accounts for these as a single
lease component.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

40. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

40.24 Leases (Continued)

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain
a wide range of different terms and conditions. The lease
agreements do not impose any covenants other than the security
interests in the leased assets that are held by the lessor. Leased
assets may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured
on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present
value of the following lease payments:

fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments),
less any lease incentives receivable;

variable lease payment that are based on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the

commencement date;

amounts expected to be payable by the Group under

residual value guarantees;

the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option, and

payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension
options are also included in the measurement of the liability.
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40. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

40. EXETBUREE (/5)

40.24 Leases (Continued) 40.24 8 (&)

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined,
which is generally the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the
individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds
necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-use
asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms,
security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

. where possible, uses recent third-party financing received
by the individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to
reflect changes in financing conditions since third party
financing was received;

. uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free
interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held by the
Group, which does not have recent third party financing,
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and % WRBRHEENERRE
EITHE W
. makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term, . EITRHEREENAZ - w0

country, currency and security.

If a readily observable amortising loan rate is available to the
individual lessee (through recent financing or market data) which
has a similar payment profile to the lease, then the group entities
use that rate as a starting point to determine the incremental

borrowing rate.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

40. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

40.24 Leases (Continued)

The Group is exposed to potential future increases in variable
lease payments based on an index or rate, which are not
included in the lease liability until they take effect. When
adjustments to lease payments based on an index or rate take
effect, the lease liability is reassessed and adjusted against the

right-of-use asset.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance
cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease
period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on

the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the

following:

. the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;

. any lease payments made at or before the commencement

date less any lease incentives received;

. any initial direct costs, and
. restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of
the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis.
If the Group is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option,
the right-of-use asset is depreciated over the underlying asset’s

useful life.
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40. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING STBUREIE (58)

POLICIES (Continued)

40. EXE

40.24 Leases (Continued) 40.24 HE (8B)
Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment and HISHIREMRAETERE R

office premises and all leases of low-value assets are recognised
on a straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-
term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less
or less without a purchase option. Low-value assets comprise
equipment and vehicle.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a lessor
is recognised in income on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

40.25 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to shareholders of the Company is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s consolidated balance
sheet and the Company’s statement of financial position in the
period in which the dividends are approved by shareholders of
the Company.
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40.26 Government grants 40.26 BFFiHED
Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value EAAERESSESEHE®
where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be B BAEEBEFE— t)] B 75

received and the Group will comply with all attached conditions.

N

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised EEKAHBNAEERELTA

in profit or loss over the period necessary to match them with the IR - WERZEMmA AT EHEEN

costs that they are intended to compensate. MAEIRA @ EAHEAERE
ﬁgu/u °

Government grants relating to the purchase of property, plant
and equipment are included in non-current liabilities as deferred
government grants and are recognised in profit or loss on a
straight line basis over the expected lives of the related assets.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZ=—ZE==F+=-A=+—HIFE

40. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

40.27 Interest income

Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost calculated
using the effective interest method is recognised in profit or loss

as part of “finance income”.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset except
for financial assets that subsequently become credit-impaired.
For credit-impaired financial assets the effective interest rate is
applied to the net carrying amount of the financial asset (after

deduction of the loss allowance).

For the purpose of consolidated statement of cash flows, the
interest income received arising from deposits is presented as
relating to operating activity, while the interest income received
arising from other bank deposits is presented as relating to

investing activity.
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